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PROCEEDI NGS

9:03 a. m

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: May | have your
attention?

Before we start this hearing this norning I want
to go over a fewthings that will help ensure that this
hearing will be as productive as possible.

First, please turn off your cell phones so that
they don't disrupt this hearing.

Second, anyone planning to testify, other than
those that submtted alternative proposals, nmust sign in at
the Hearing Wtness Roster |ocated in the back of the room

Third, each person has one opportunity to cone

forward and provide testinony for up to 20 minutes. |If you
do not use up all of your allotted tinme you will not be
all owed to conme back up again. Wtnesses will be called in

the order in which they sign up in. The tinme clock to ny

ri ght has been established to assist you when testifying.
Renenber that the testinony you provide for the Hearing
Oficer and the Panel is entered into the record in its
entirety, so you may want to speak to the highlights of your
testinmony if you think you will run out of tinme. You wll
be testifying fromthe chair with the m crophone on the
left.

Fourth, if you want to submt an exhibit, please
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bring it up to me before you testify.

Fifth, renmenber that the purpose of this hearing
is to take testinony and to gather evidence. It is not to
make findings or to render a decision. Therefore, be
courteous and respect the hearing process for those
testifying and those hearing the testinony.

Sixth, the restroons are outside of this room
Make a left and they will be on your right.

W will probably break for lunch around 12: 00
o' clock and we may take a break dependi ng upon the flow of
t esti nony.

This hearing will now cone to order. The
California Departnent of Food and Agriculture has called
this public hearing at the Departnment's Auditorium 1220 N
Street, Sacranento, California, on this day, Mnday, Apri
11t h, 2016, beginning at 9:00 a.m The hearing w ||
continue tonorrow at 9:00 a.m if necessary.

My nanme is John Suther. | ama Branch Chief for
the Departnent. | have been designated as the Hearing
O ficer for today's proceedings. | have no personal
interest in the outconme of the hearing and I will not be
personal ly involved in any decision that may result from
this hearing.

On March 9th, 2016, the Departnent called a public

hearing on its own notion to consider proposed amendnents to
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the Stabilization and Marketing Plans for Market M1k for
the Northern and Southern California Marketing Areas for the
Class 4b pricing fornul a.

This hearing will also consider the factual basis,
evi dence and | egal authority upon which to nake any and/or
all of the proposed anendnents to the Pl an.

Al ternative Proposals were submtted by the Dairy
Institute of California and the California Dairy Canpaign/

M | k Producers Council/Wstern United Dairymen, a joint
proposal. They will each have 30 m nutes to submt
testinmony and relative material to support their proposal,
which will be followed by any questions fromthe Panel.

Anyone who has signed up on the Hearing Wtness
Roster located in the back of the roomw Il be allowed up to
20 mnutes to give testinony and evidence. Please note that
only the individuals who have testified under oath during
the hearing may request a post-hearing brief to anplify,
explain or wwthdraw their testinmony. Only those individuals
who have requested a post-hearing brief period may file a
post-hearing brief with the Departnent. Any information
submtted after the close of the hearing will not be
included in the record for consideration by the Hearing
Panel .

Testinmony will begin with a representative of the

Department who will introduce the Departnent's exhibits.

ALL AMERI CAN REPCORTI NG | NC

(916) 362-2345




© 00 N o o B~ w N P

N RN NN NN R R R R R R R R R
O N W N B O © O N o 00 M W N L O

11

The audi ence may ask questions of the Departnent's
representative only as it relates to the exhibits. This is
the only witness that may be questioned by those other than
t he panel nenbers.

As a courtesy to the panel, the Departnent staff
and the public please speak directly to the issues and avoid
personal i zi ng di sagreenents. Such conduct does not assi st
the panel and will not be permtted.

Questioning of witnesses other than the
Departnment's representative by anyone ot her than the nenbers
of the panel is not permtted.

The hearing panel has been sel ected by the
Departnment to hear testinony, receive evidence, question
Wi t nesses and nmake recommendations to the Secretary. This
panel is conposed of nmenbers of the Departnent's Division of
Mar keti ng Services and the Dairy Marketing Branch and
i ncl udes Don Shi ppel houte, Branch Chief, Hyrum East nan,

Dai ry Econom c¢ Advi sor, Joe Monson, Senior Agricultural
Econom st. Again, | amnot a nmenber of the panel and w |
not be taking part in any discussions relative to the
heari ng.

The hearing is being recorded by the firmof Al
American Reporting, Inc. located in Sacranento. A
transcript of today's hearing will be available for review

at the Marketing Branch Headquarters |ocated in Sacranento
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at 2800 Gateway Qaks Drive and on the Departnment's website
foll owi ng the hearing decision announcenent.

Testinmony and evidence pertinent to the call of
the hearing will now be received. At this tinme MKke
Francesconi, Supervising Auditor with the Dairy Marketing
Branch, will introduce the Departnent's exhibits. The
audi ence may ask questions of M. Francesconi only as it
relates to the exhibits.

M. Francesconi, will you please state your ful
name and spell your |ast nane for the record.

MR. FRANCESCONI : Thank you, M. Hearing Oficer.
My name is M ke Francesconi and it is spelled F-RA-NC E- S
CONI.

Wher eupon,
M KE FRANCESCONI
Was duly sworn.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: You may proceed.

MR. FRANCESCONI: M. Hearing Oficer, ny nane is
M ke Francesconi; | ama supervising auditor with the Dairy
Mar keti ng Branch of the California Departnment of Food and
Agriculture. M purpose here this norning is to introduce
the Departnent's Conposite Hearing Exhibits nunbered 1
through 35. Relative to these exhibits, previous issues of
Exhibits 7 through 35 are al so hereby entered by reference.

The exhibits entered here today have been
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avai lable for review at the offices of the Dairy Marketing
Branch since April 4th, 2016.

An abridged copy of this exhibit is available for
i nspection at the back of the roomat the sign-in desk. At
this time | amgoing to ask that these conposite exhibits be
received so | will bring these up to you

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: Exhibits 1 through 35 are
now entered into the record.

(Exhibits 1-35 were entered into the record.)

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: Are there any questions
of the Departnent's representative?

Seei ng none --

MR. FRANCESCONI: Ckay. M. Hearing Oficer, |
al so request the opportunity to provide a post-hearing
brief.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: Your request to file a
post-hearing brief is granted.

MR. FRANCESCONI : Ckay, thank you.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: | will now call the
representative testifying on behalf of the alternate
proposal submitted by the Dairy Institute of California.
You have a total of 30 mnutes to submt your testinony.

Pl ease notice the tine clock on ny right.
Pl ease state your full nane, spell your |ast nane

and state your affiliation for the record, please.
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DR SCH EK: Yes. M nane is WIIliam Schi ek,
that's SCGHI-E-K, and | amrepresenting the Dairy
Institute of California.

Wher eupon,
DR WLLI AM SCH EK
Was duly sworn.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER:  Your exhibit that you
have given us will be nmarked as nunber 36.

(Exhibit 36 was entered into the record.)

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: |Is he going to testify

al so?

DR. SCH EK: He is here to answer questions so he
may be.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER  Ckay.

MR FISH Patrick Fish, F-1-S-H.
Wher eupon,

PATRI CK FI SH

Was duly sworn.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: You may proceed.

DR. SCH EK: Good norning, M. Hearing Oficer and
menbers of the Hearing Panel:

My name is WIliam Schiek and I am Econom st for
the Dairy Institute of California and I amtestifying today
on the Institute's behalf. Dairy Institute is a trade

associ ation representing 27 dairy conpani es which process
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approximately 67 percent of the state's fluid mlKk,
manuf act ure about 90 percent of the state's cheese and a
|arge majority of its cultured dairy products and ice cream
Dairy Institute' s nenbers operate in both marketing areas in
the state. The position presented at this hearing was
adopt ed unani nously by our Board of Directors. Wth ne
today is M. Patrick Fish of Saputo Foods - Saputo Cheese.
M. Fish is highly knowl edgeabl e about |iquid whey markets
in the Mdwest and will be available to answer any questions
fromthe panel related to whey processi ng and whey

procur enent .

In authorizing the state's dairy regul atory
prograns the | egislature has declared that: "it is the
policy of this state to pronote, foster, and encourage the
intelligent production and orderly marketing of commodities
necessary to its citizens, including market mlk, and to
el i m nate econom c waste, destructive trade practices, and
i mproper accounting for market m |k purchased from
producers."” Indeed, orderly marketing is the stated purpose
of nost dairy regulation. The level of regulated price
plays a key role in nmaintaining an orderly market.

To establish regulated prices so that m |k
production and marketing are orderly, it is inportant that
t he Departnent bal ance the needs of producers, dairy product

processors and manufacturers, and consumers, not favoring
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one group's need over the others. Producers are not
ultimately hel ped when the Departnent sets prices so high

t hat consuner demand is negatively inpacted and invest nent
in new plant capacity, technol ogy and market devel opnent is
stifled. It is not in producers' collective interest if the
Departnment sets prices for mlk so high that it forces
cheese plants out of business by requiring themto pay nore
for mlk than they can obtain in revenue fromthe products
they sell after paying necessary manufacturing and marketing
cost s.

Sadly, the proposal by the three producer trade
associ ations, Western United Dairynen, M|k Producers
Council and California Dairy Canpai gn, under consideration
here today, would do just that. Under their proposal,
cheese plants would be forced out of business. It would
reduce not only the nunber of mlk buyers in the state but
al so the overall plant capacity in the state, shrinking the
size of the California m |k market and | eaving dairy
producers with fewer honmes for their mlk. Their proposal
woul d devastate the cheese industry in the state and woul d
violate the directives to the Secretary set forth by the
| egislature in the state's Food and Agricultural Code. More
detail on the legislature's requirenents of the Secretary in
setting regulated mnimumm |k prices and the governnment's

appropriate role in mlk pricing is contained in Appendi x A
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Dairy Institute's nenbers are acutely aware that
m |k production in California has declined fromthe all-tine
hi gh recorded in 2014, falling by an average of 3.4 percent
for cal endar year 2015, and 2.8 percent on a daily basis
during the first two nonths of 2016. The extended period of
globally Iower mlk prices has taken a toll on producers
just as lower dairy product prices have negatively inpacted
dairy product manufacturers. |In addition, dairy product
processors and manufacturers have been facing increased
costs for environnmental permits, cap and trade credits,

di scharge permts, stormwater permts and air em ssions
permts for sone tinme. No doubt producers have faced
i ncreased regul atory costs as well.

But the key underlying problemfacing our industry
today is an inbalance in the gl obal supply and demand for
dairy products, caused by strong m |k production growth in
Europe and in parts of the US, such as Wsconsin, |arge
inventories of dairy products, weak growmh in key demand
regi ons such as China, and overall weakness in the oi
mar ket s that makes ot her key inporting countries |ess able
to buy dairy products. This supply/demand situation cannot
be amended by shrinking the margins of cheese plants in the
state to the point where they can no | onger operate
profitably, a solution sought by the producer trade

associ ations. Regulated price increases are neither
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appropriate nor effective as a tool for changing the
fundament al econom cs of the marketplace. CDFA cannot
sinply make m|lk worth nore by declaring that it is worth
nore. At the end of the day, the market nust determ ne what
mlk is worth., Wat good is it to try to alleviate the
consequences of the global supply/demand inbal ance by
adopting a supposed "solution"” that will make markets for
California dairynen's m |k di sappear?

Increasing the regulated 4b mlk price in
California will not cause dairy farmers in Europe to nake
less mlk, but it will lead to | ost cheese sales in
international markets as the state's cheesemakers becone

| ess conpetitive relative to their counterparts in other

parts of the world. Increasing the California regul ated
price will not make W sconsin's producers cut back on mlk
production, but it will cause California cheesemakers to

| ose sales to those in the Badger state. China' s demand for
dairy products will not be inproved by raising the C ass 4b
price, but it will ensure that other cheese suppliers wll
gai n an advantage at taking the Chinese business of
California cheesenmakers. Finally, increasing the regul ated
price here will not |ead to a rebound in the oil market, but
it will nmean that other suppliers will have a better chance
at providing the cheese purchased by countries that are

dependant on oil exports.
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There has been repeated argunent by producer
representatives at past hearings that they are entitled to
the Cass Il whey value sinply because that price exists in
anot her market and fairness demands that they receive it
too. It is certainly understandable in a tinme of |ow mlKk
prices that producers will |ook for ways to increase their
mlk price. Unfortunately, the notion that it is desirable
to have parity with FMMO prices is m sguided and not founded
on sound econom c principles. The bottomline is that the
California and Federal Order nmarkets are quite different.
What follows is a summary of sonme of those key differences:

In no existing area covered by a Federal MIk
Mar keti ng Order does USDA require all cheesenakers to pay
the Cass Ill price. Non-pool plants are not obligated to
pay mninmum prices on mlk purchases or on mlk that is
diverted to their plants. The claimthat California dairy
farmers, operating in a systemwhere all G ade A m |k nust
be paid at |east the CDFA announced m ni num price, should
receive the sane regul ated price as FMMO producers operating
under voluntary regulatory system does not hold up under
scrutiny.

Today, spot mlk sales to cheese plants in
federally regul ated areas of the M dwest are being nmade at
prices below Class IIl. That fact is never part of the so-

called "California D scount" discussion. California

ALL AMERI CAN REPCORTI NG | NC.

(916) 362-2345




© 00 N o o b~ w N P

N NN N NN R R R R R R R R R
O N W N B O © O N o 00 M W N R O

20

processors, however, never pay |ess than the Cass 4b price
for market-grade mlk. A review of the 2014-16 Dairy Market
News publications show that spot m |k was available to
cheese plants in the Mdwest at bel ow class prices for
virtually every week from | ate Novenber 2014 through July
2015 and again from m d- Novenber 2015 t hrough the nost
recent week ending April 8th. See appendix B. Cearly,

t hi s ongoi ng bel ow cl ass sal es activity involves much nore
than just holiday and spring flush mlk handling issues.
Much |i ke the P-D advantage that sone Cass | handlers in
California have, this price advantage on spot mlk is

sonet hing that M dwest cheesenakers can use to garner

i ncrenental business and becone nore conpetitive overall in
t he mar ket pl ace.

California' s binding mninmmprice regul ations
[imt conpetition across manufacturers. That has led to
adequate supplies of mlk, limting pressure for increased
prem unmns.

In the Mdwest, particularly Wsconsin, there are
many specialty, val ue-added cheese plants, which generate
nore revenue than commodity products. California's largely
commodity cheese plants were built to accommbdate our | arge
m |k volune and historically rapid m |k production grow h;

t hose conmmodity products generate | ower unit revenue.

M dwest ern cheese plants are half a continent
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closer to our donestic market. California is the nost
di stant dairy region fromdonestic cheese markets. It costs
noney to nove product to nmarket.

"The California D scount” charge nmakes an easy
target of our state's regulated system but the differences
bet ween our industry and those of other nmjor cheese
produci ng states require that mlk prices be lower in
California. The differences in mlk value between
California and the Federal Orders are discussed in nore
detail in Appendix C

At previous hearings we have testified at |ength
about the problens associated with incorporating an end-
product whey factor into the regulated pricing fornmula.
Sonme of those argunments are repeated here: nobst cheese
pl ants receive no revenue for the whey byproduct of their
cheesemaki ng operations, about half of those that do receive
sonme revenue receive less than is assuned in the O ass 4b
formula, and the revenue streans of plants that do capture
value fromwhey find their revenue does not track well wth
dry whey, and only one plant in the state is consistently
maki ng dry whey. Mre on the problens associated with the
i nclusion of whey in the Cass 4b and Federal C ass 11
formulas is contained in Appendi x D.

Both the Departnent's current tenporary whey scal e

and the FMMO C ass |l other solids formula establish a
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value for m |k based on the cheese plant converting the whey
stream byproduct into dry whey. The problemwth this
formula construction is that for a plant that does not
manuf acture dry whey, its revenues do not match up with a
mlk cost that is in part driven by novenents in dry whey
prices. Sone plants make ot her finished whey products that,
at tinmes, allow themto capture enough revenues to
conpensate for the fact that they do not manufacture dry
whey. However, as the testinony of M. Barry Mirphy at |ast
June's 4b hearing indicated, there are many cheese plants in
California that cannot capture revenues to offset their
increased mlk cost. For cheesemakers that do not have
fini shed whey operations, margi ns can becone conpressed and
their financial viability threatened.

| nvest nent costs to make finished whey products -
that is dry whey, WPC or WPI - are very high and a majority
of plants do not have enough volume to justify the
investnment. There are plants that cannot nake fini shed
product and which instead are selling liquid whey to others
who nake the finished product. The value of this sale would
be nore appropriate for a pricing formula because it is
closer to a value that all plants can achieve. The val ue of
t he whey contribution should be capped because there will be
many cheese plants that cannot find any viable market outl et

for their whey and they will capture no value fromtheir
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whey stream

Ceneral ly speaking, end-product pricing for mlk
attenpts to represent a market value for m |k by capturing
t he val ue of the basic commobdities that can be produced from
mlk, less their make cost plus a reasonable return on
i nvestnment to processors. For cheddar cheese, those factors
are reasonably well known. The byproduct from cheese
production is whey and the val ue of whey to a cheesemaker is
much nore difficult to establish. Hi storically, the
basel i ne product that has been chosen to represent the val ue
of whey in both California Class 4b and the Federal MKk
Mar keting Order Class Il other solids price fornulas has
been dry whey. It is thought by sonme to be the | owest
common denom nator anmong the wide array of products that can
be derived fromwhey solids. The costs for drying dilute
[ iquid whey containing approximtely 6 percent solids have
been debat ed and surveyed and have been used in both
California and FMMO regul ated pricing. The experience from
recent years, however, has shown that dry whey prices are
vol atil e and not necessarily indicative of whey's value to
cheesemakers or of industry trends.

In order to capture value for whey it nust be

dried in some form by sonmeone. That gives it the ability to
be stored and shi pped at a reasonable cost. The place to

start in establishing whey's value to a cheesenaker, then,
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is with a finished product in dry formand work backwards
fromthere. The question is which product is the nost
representative indicator of the whey value to a typica
cheesemaker. USDA reports information on Dry Wey, Wey
Protein Concentrates and Whey Protein Isolates inits Dairy
Products annual sumrmary. They \Wey Protein Concentrates are
in two categories: 25 to 49.9 percent protein and 50 to 89.9
percent protein. Wey Protein Isolates contain no | ess than
90 percent protein. In the US just 5 percent of cheese
pl ants produce dry whey.

Cheese whey is approximately 6 percent solids.
About 12 percent of the solids are protein and 88 percent
are other solids, primarily lactose. As neasured by protein
content, which is the nost val uabl e whey conponent, nore
than three tinmes the amount of US dried products is in the
formof WPC/WPI rather than dry whey. Over the past eight
years, production of dry whey has been declining while
producti on of Whey Protein Concentrates and |sol ates has
been increasing. Gowh rates over that tinme based on
production data contained in USDA' s Dairy Products annual
summary for the various categories are as foll ows:

And this is the growh rate for these products
from 2006 to 2014: WPC25 to WPC49.9 has had a growth rate
of 1.1 percent. | believe that's an annual, a conpound

annual growth rate. WPC50 to 89.9 has had a growmh rate of
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8.3 percent, WPI, 9.5 percent; and then aggregating al
types of WPC and WPI, a positive 6.1 percent. Dry whey has
had a growh rate of -3.3 percent.

The difference in prices on a per-pound of protein
basi s between dry whey and WPC34 has been extrenely volatile
over the past eight years. You can see Figure D2 in
Appendi x D. A cheesemaker whose whey revenue is derived
fromthe market for WPC34 while the mlIk price is tied to
the market for Dry Wey has |ikely experienced margin
squeezes over that tinme, which periodically has been
dramati c.

The whey business is a conpletely different |ine
of business fromthe cheese business. The equipnent is
different, the technology is different, the target market is
different, the sales and narketing effort is different and
the products are different. Dry whey and WPC are
nutritional ingredient products utilized in a wi de range of
ancillary products, both human and aninal. Cheese, on the
ot her hand, can be an ingredient product, but the product
made by nost cheese plants is nore likely a consuner product
either at a retail or a food service level. It is judged on
the basis of flavor, texture, aroma, packagi ng and perhaps
performance in its intended use. For many cheesenakers,
maki ng cheese is an art. Wey processing is | ooked upon

nore as a science. The capital cost required for a whey
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processing and drying plant is often |larger than that of a
conpar abl e cheese plant. To justify that size of investnent
a whey processor typically requires a substantial vol une of
resi dent whey, which may or may not be suppl enmented by
addi ti onal sources of external whey. That scal e requirenent
rules out the vast majority of cheese plants in the country.
Despite that fact, the current mlk pricing system
encour ages cheesemakers to venture into that |ine of
business in which they may have little interest, no
proficiency and no passion to pursue.

In 2012 a survey of all 121 Wsconsin cheese
pl ants, which is shown as Appendi x E, conducted by the
W sconsin Agricultural Statistics Service in cooperation
with the Wsconsin Departnent of Agriculture, Trade and
Consuner Protection, found that 80 percent of al
respondents either did not process or did |imted processing
of the whey they generated. Only 20 percent produced sone
form of val ue-added dried product. Limted processing
results in some degree of liquid product transport savings.
Those savings are required to be retained by the cheese
plant to justify the investnent in processing equi pnent and
cover the cost of |abor and operating expense to performthe
processi ng. QOperating expenses include utilities, waste
treat ment equi pnent cl eani ng and mai nt enance along with

depreciation, interest, insurance, taxes and the like. The
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limted processing perforned by smaller cheese operations is
often of negligible value to whey processing facilities that
dry the whey products and have extra capacity to purchase
out si de whey. The value of limted processing |ies al nost
exclusively in the concentration of solids and the resulting
savings in frei ght expense.

In California, according to recent testinony, only
one plant dries whey on a consistent basis. Only 12 of the
59 California cheese plants, that's only 20.3 percent,
process whey in any fashion. Mst plants in the state
receive no value for the whey fromtheir operation or the
value is less than the cost of recovery and transportation.

The proposed whey fornula that we submtted to
CDFA in June 2015 was neant to represent the value to a
cheesemaker of selling liquid WPC to a plant that would then
make the liquid product into a finished dry product. Since
that time, we have been able to gather additional
information on the market for liquid whey being sold by
cheese plants and have found that there are a great variety
of different forns of |iquid whey being marketed, ranging
fromdilute whey to liquid WPC in higher protein
concentrations. While there is variation in the products
bei ng marketed, the concept of adapting a formula that
represents a liquid whey value, rather than a finished dry

whey value, is one that we feel is appropriate.
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The mlk price should reflect what the cheesenaker
can earn by selling his wet separated whey f.o.b. at his
cheese plant. The likely buyer is sonmeone devoted to the
whey processi ng business that has extra capacity and lies
wi thin a reasonabl e distance. Ideally, an ongoing survey of
prices on a pound of protein basis, for which cheese plants
sell the liquid whey to other plants for further processing,
shoul d be the basis for establishing the other solids val ue
for mlk used to nake cheese because it nore accurately
reflects returns achi evable by a greater nunber of plants.
Unfortunately, no such ongoing survey of liquid whey prices
exi sts.

| nstead, the value of whey in the Cass 4b formula
shoul d be a function of the WPC34 narket because that is the
predom nant buyi ng schenme for liquid whey. Wey processors
are interested primarily in the protein portion of the whey.
The | actose or perneate portion or perneate portion
represents a di sposal problem by nost cheesenakers and is
unlikely to be conpensated for by a whey processor. By
utilizing a WPC34 reference price and converting it to a dry
whey equi val ent basis, many of the current factors and
structure used in the whey contribution pricing nmethodol ogy
can be retained. The costs for drying whey have been
surveyed and a dry whey manufacturing all owance, al beit one

that is outdated, is used in the current FMMO Cl ass ||
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formula. The costs for produci ng WPC34 are not known and we
know of no publicly available data of these costs. A dry
whey equi val ent WPC34 price can be cal culated by first
di viding the WPC34 price by 0.34, which would express that
price on a pound of protein basis. This resulting price
woul d then be multiplied by 0.12, the assunmed proportion of
dry whey that is protein, too conplete the conversion

The d ass 4b whey factor woul d be based on the dry
whey equi val ent WPC34 price, |less the nmake all owance, less a
factor to represent the cost of cooling the whey and
delivering it to a nearby whey processing facility. The
proposed nake allowance is the current California NFDM
wei ght ed average nmanufacturing cost plus the difference
between the current FMMO Class Il dry whey nmeke al |l owance
over the current FMMO Cl ass |V NFDM naeke al | owance. This
calculation is done to update the FMMO dry whey
manuf act uring cost allowance to be nore reflective of
current California costs. The transportation cost allowed
is for a distance of 50 miles at $3.00 per mile on 6 percent
whey or $0.05 per pound of whey solids. An allowance of
$0. 03 per pound of whey solids is provided to conpensate for
the cost of cooling the whey. Because the price does not
serve to protect small cheesenmakers when the WPC34 price is
very high, nor dairy producers when the price is low, a

floor price of $0.25 per hundredweight and a ceiling of
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$1.50 per hundredwei ght are proposed. The fornula has been
rendered as a whey contribution scale based on the WPC34
price that woul d serve as part of the cheese hundredwei ght
price calculation as follows. |Itens that have changed
relative to the current fornula are highlighted i n what

foll ows and you can see there is the new whey tabl e based on
ranges of the WPC34 price with the correspondi ng whey
contribution to the Cl ass 4b price on a per hundredwei ght
basi s.

And the remai nder of the fornula, the Fat price is
calculated the same way as it currently is and then taking
t he cheese hundredwei ght price and converting that into a
Solids-Not-Fat is also done the sane way it currently is
done. And we have al so included the fornula form of what
generated these nunbers in the whey table and that fornula
is listed on the bottom of page 8.

The whey price series used in the proposed formul a
woul d be the sinple average of the weekly Central and West
34 percent Whey Protein Concentrate-Mstly prices as
publ i shed in USDA's Dairy Market News between the 26th of
the prior nonth and the 25th of the current nonth.

The changes are proposed to nake the C ass 4b
pricing formula better reflect the current market situation
and to bal ance the needs of producers and the diverse types

of cheese plants that operate in the state of California.
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It is reflective of the value of whey to cheesenmakers that
concentrate |iquid whey and sell it to other plants for
further processing and is therefore nore appropriate for
inclusion in an end-product fornula designed to cal cul ate
m ni mum regul ated prices for mlk. This approach is in
keeping with the concept of mninmmregul ated prices, those
that reflect revenues that can be recovered by nost cheese
plants. It should be noted that such a scale still runs the
risk of over-valuing mlk to small plants that are unable to
make anything saleable with their |iquid whey byproduct. It
is inmportant, therefore, to have an upper limt or cap on
the whey contribution that will keep smaller plants from
bei ng severely inpacted when nmarket conditions drive WPC34
prices to high |levels.

Dairy Institute makes no specific proposal
regardi ng the extension of the tenporary whey scal e
contained in Article Ill, Section 300, subparagraph
(E)(1)(c)(i) of the Stabilization and Marketing Pl ans, but
requests that any extension of the tenporary whey scal e not
exceed a termof six nonths following the date that the
tenporary whey scale is currently set to expire.

O her proposal s.

Dairy Institute opposes the Western United/ M Ik
Producers Council and CDC proposal. Their proposal is

highly simlar to ones that have been proposed at the past
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several hearings and rejected by the Departnent and there is
no new conpel ling evidence to support its adoption. It
i ncreases regul ated prices on cheesenakers by too nuch, so
that they cannot operate profitably. It is not
representative of whey products made in California, is
conpletely ad hoc for this nmarket and is not supported by
evidence of it being representative or applicable to any
group of cheesemakers in the state. |Its adoption wll
reduce denmand for mlk in the state while pronoting
i ncreased supply, |eading to uneconom ¢ novenents of mlk
and disorderly marketing as was the case in 2007-2008 and
again in 2012. It should be rejected.

Any extension of the current tenporary whey scale
should be limted to six nonths. CDFA should adopt the
per mmnent whey scal e proposed by Dairy Institute as it nore
accurately reflects whey value to cheesenakers. Finally,
this is yet another of several hearings that CDFA has held
since 2011 to focus specifically on the whey factor, a part
of the fornmula about which there is relatively little
obj ective public data to support what the whey contribution
should be. At the sane tinme, the Departnent has failed to
call any hearings in recent years to address needed changes
to make al |l owances, where the Departnment's own data
i ndi cates that changes are clearly warranted. W continue

to wonder about the validity of continuing to focus on only
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one part of the formula for one class of m |k when CDFA data
clearly indicates that a nore conprehensive reviewis
necessary. Thank you for the opportunity to testify and we
respectfully request the opportunity to file a post-hearing
brief and we are willing to answer any questions the panel
may have at this tine.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: Your request to file a
post-hearing brief is granted.

Questions fromthe panel ?

MR. EASTMAN. All right, | have a few questi ons.
To start off | want to walk really quickly through your
appendi ces just to make sure that | understand themfirst.

The table at the end of Appendix Ais sort of an
estimate of plant capacity, which you have submtted
frequently, and | assunme the way you've estimated that is
t he sane as you' ve done at previous hearings?

DR SCH EK: It is, it's just an extension.

MR. EASTMAN. Okay. And then in Appendix D on
page 4 you have Figure D-1. |'massum ng that based on the
formula within the scope of your testinony you' re assum ng
dry whey has a 12 percent protein content. |Is that how you?

DR SCH EK: Figure D1 | think came from work
that CDFA staff did to support the Wiey Review Cormittee so
| am not positive whether -- |I'd have to go back and | ook

and | can put that in a -- clarify that in a post-hearing
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brief in terms of what the assunption was. | believe,
t hough, we've assunmed 12 percent. | think in Figure D2
that was the assunption.

MR. EASTMAN. Ckay, you're right. Now that | | ook
at that, that does end at 2007 but you've sort of extended
it beyond that on the next figure, okay. Perfect.

And then at the end of Appendix D, that |ooks |ike
just a copy of what the Departnent had released inits
exhibit, you didn't change that or alter that.

DR SCH EK: Correct.

MR. EASTMAN.  Ckay.

DR. SCH EK: That's directly fromthe Depart nent
exhi bit.

MR. EASTMAN. (Ckay, perfect. And | just have a
few questions. On page 1 of your testinony you tal k about
the pronotion, fostering and encouragenent of the
intelligent production and orderly marketing of mlk and I'm
sure that at the hearing there will be further references to
t he declining year-over-year mlk production that the state
has been experiencing. Do you feel that we are currently at
a spot where there is disorderly marketing of mlk or where
would -- in your mnd what would be the signals or signs
that the state woul d be experiencing disorderly marketing
condi ti ons?

DR. SCH EK: Yes, declining mlk production is
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sonething that | do believe we need to keep an eye on. W
haven't heard any reports fromour nmenbers that they haven't
been able to get mlk at this point. You know, in sone
cases there have been, | guess, reports in the nmarketpl ace
that prem unms are noving higher but we kind of feel that
that's part of the natural functioning of the marketpl ace.
That if mlk supply is declining and people do need m Kk
prem uns cone forward to bring forth the supply and get the
supplies that plants need.

So, you know, | think we are not seeing
necessarily any disorderly marketing at this tine. At |east
| have not heard any reports from nmenbers and we do have
di scussions; | have discussions individually with menbers on
this issue. But it's sonmething we're watching. You know, |
think if it gets to a point where plants can't get mlk, you
know, that could be considered a disorderly marketing
condition, particularly if Class | plants are having trouble
getting mlk. But ny viewis that the premuns will kick in
before we get to that point to nake sure that doesn't
happen; there will be conpetitive premuns in the
mar ket pl ace.

And, you know, the other aspect of that is, you
know, what's the solution to that? | think the issue here
is we are in a situation of this global supply and denand

i mbal ance that | tal ked about and that's driven prices | ower
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all over and causing stress all over and eventually that's
going to correct itself.

MR. EASTMAN. And M. Fish, if you want to expand
or junp in feel free. I'mjust going to ask questions so if
you want to --

MR FISH No, I'mfine. | can speak to any whey
guestions if they ari se.

MR. EASTMAN. So I'Il let you junmp in if you feel
you need to, okay, great.

When it cones to the construct of the table based
on the formula and the assunptions that you had given. You
had nmentioned that there is no publicly rel eased data that
shows the costs associated with produci ng WPC34. So the
factors that you've included in your formula, have those
been just based on discussions with your nmenbers or how did
you arrive at sonme of those figures for those factors, per
se?

DR, SCH EK: Ckay. The formula itself, by
converting to the dry whey equivalent we are trying to get
around the whol e idea of having to come up with a WPC34
yield and cost data that is actual plant data. There is
sonme theoretical information out there from equi pnent
manuf acturers and we've, you know, we tried putting
sonmet hing together | ast year for the hearing that kind of

dealt specifically with that data. But nost of the rea
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world data on that is proprietary so it's just not
avai lable. So the reason to put it on a dry whey equival ent
was to use sone of the dry whey data

So just to wal k you through kind of what we did

is, you' re going to have sone kind of a nake all owance to

make a dried product. Because if |I'"ma buyer -- | should
let Pat chinme in -- if you're a buyer of liquid whey,
sonebody is going to -- you're going to incur that cost,

you're incur a drying cost. And so that has to be paid and
that would go into what sonebody buying |iquid whey woul d be
able to pay for that liquid whey. But | amgoing to let you
take over that and kind of wal k through what a buyer | ooks
at .

MR. FISH  Unfortunately, whether we're speaking
about California or Wsconsin, not all the cheese is nade
under one roof. Plants that |ie outside of a commbn whey
processing facility have to get the whey -- to extract sone
val ue you have to get that whey noved to a central whey
processing plant. So it costs the -- there are costs
i nvol ved, both to transport the whey and cool the whey to
mai ntain food grade integrity. So | think the fornmula is
constructed such that these costs need to be taken into
account when deriving the total cost of drying whey.

MR. EASTMAN.  Ckay.

DR. SCH EK: So getting back. W tal ked about
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there's sort of three conponents in that sort of
manuf acturing all owance nunber. One is to try to get at a
current dry whey manufacturing cost. W haven't had a
survey for quite a nunber of years here in California and
there weren't that many plants in the survey to begin wth.
The | ast survey that was done that was used in the Federal
Order systemto update their dry whey nake all owance was,
t hi nk, based on 2005 data so it's pretty old at this point.
| think we could all agree costs have probably changed in
10, 11 years.

So the idea was to use a -- look at the
i ncrenental cost of drying whey over nonfat dry m |k by
| ooking at the two federal nake allowances, the federal nmake
al l omance for nonfat dry mlk and the federal make all owance
for dry whey. Taking that increnent and adding it to a
relatively current California nonfat dry m |k make all owance
cost and that gives you kind of an updated dry whey cost.

Then added to that woul d be the additional costs
associated with liquid whey, a liquid whey marketer, which
is the transport cost. W're |looking at about a 50 mle
transport which is, you know, probably doable in Wsconsin
but that would be unusual that it would be that small in
California, so it's a fairly conservative transportation
cost nunber based on - what did we say - $3 a | oad or

sonething like that. Looking at the $3 a load in the solids
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content of the whey.

The other thing that has to be done, and Pat can
tal k nore about this, is that there is a need to cool the
whey if you're going to nove it any distance. You m ght
want to -- did you go into that already?

MR. FISH Just the fact that, you know, the
majority of the whey is sold into the food grade nmarkets and
t he whey has to be kept under certain tenperatures to be
able to maintain food grade status.

DR SCH EK: And | think we put those costs in the
body of the discussion.

MR. EASTMAN. Ckay, perfect. And then towards the
end of the fornula it | ooks |like you' re using conversion
factors that appear in the Federal Order Class Il fornula
with regards to once you get that other solids price, to
convert it then into a skin and then sort of a solids-not-
fat.

DR. SCH EK: Right. And that last termwth
8.8/8.7 is to kind of put it back into our nethodol ogy so
that it fits in with how we cal cul ate those prices.

MR. EASTMAN. Right. GCkay, those did |ook
famliar. Okay, good.

Anot her question | had | had is associated with
the whey and that is that one of the weaknesses in your

testimony of using dry whey as the commodity series to
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establish a dry whey value is the idea that in California
there's not a lot of plants that make it. You nention that
for plants that at |east are noving the liquid whey portion
there is a relationship with the WPC34 price. And | assune,
obviously, a plant making WPC34 in its dry form there is
going to be obviously a relationship there. The question
have is, once a plant were to nove past naking WPC34 and to
maybe a WPC of a higher protein content or even an isolate,
how relatable is that sort of pricing of that product or the
manuf act uri ng experi ence froma cost standpoint of naking
one of the higher whey protein prices conpared to WC34?
Those plants that make those products of a higher protein
content, is there still a fairly relatable direct
correlation with the WPC34 nmarket or is there a deviation
there in the relationship? Sorry, that's a |ong questi on.
DR. SCH EK: I'Il give ny inpression and Pat can
correct nme or add nore detail to it. But typically if
you're buying liquid whey you' re nmaki ng sone type of
fracti onated WPC product or WPl out of it; you're going to
do additional processing in your facility of that liquid
whey. And the question is -- maybe |I'm not understandi ng
your question but in terns of how that whey that you're
buying fromthe plant, the cheese plant that doesn't have
further whey processing capabilities, it's generally priced

of f of that market, whether it's ultimately made into WPl or
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whether it's nade into WPC80 or sonething else. But do you
want to --

MR. FISH Really what happens in a practi cal
sense is that the higher you concentrate the protein there's
a higher cost, there's increasing costs to do that, whether
or not it's a straight line in a direct sense or not. So
typically you' re finding that even if the product doesn't
end up being -- the finished product isn't ending being sold
as WPC34 in a dried form snmaller plants will concentrate
the whey to the 34 percent level, transport it to a plant
that's producing higher protein products. So at |east sone
of the value in getting the product to 80 percent or 90
percent protein, sonme of that value is given back to the
smaller plant in an attenpt to at |east extract sone val ue
fromhis whey. And at the sanme tine have the fina
processi ng plant have enough roomin the cost of buying the
product and transporting and finish processing to higher
protein levels so that it's still profitable. You know,
unfortunately, there's not a |ot of published data on what
t he actual manufacturing costs are for the higher protein
products but there are certainly increased costs all the way
fromdilute to 34 to 80 to 90.

MR. EASTMAN. So woul d you think also then taking
a different sort of route for a plant that makes its own

cheese and processes its own whey streaminto WPC product of
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a higher protein content or even into a whey protein

i solate, do you think for those plants your alternative
proposal based on WPC34, do you think that is better
relatable to them conpared to a whey val ue based on dry
whey?

MR FISH | think --

MR. EASTMAN. | guess ultinmately ny question is,
right now wi th whey val ues bei ng based off the dry whey
there's lots of plants that don't nake dry whey so there's a
guestion, how relatable is that to then? 1'msort of
curious then how relatable will be your proposal to other
pl ants that wouldn't specifically be maki ng WPC34 or buying
a whey streamthat would be made i nto WPC34?

DR SCH EK: So it sounds to ne -- naybe |
m sunder st ood your question the first tine. You' re kind of
wanting to understand how t he revenue streans rel ate WPC34
to WPCB0 or WPI.

MR. EASTMAN: Ri ght.

DR. SCH EK: | don't have a |l ot of specific
information about that. | think we -- you know, we
testified sonme years ago, | think it was a 2006 hearing so
this is getting to be 10 years old, that there was -- in the

hi gher concentrati on whey products it's kind of a
schi zophrenic sort of market in that there is a nore

comodi ty-type WPCB0, for exanple, and then there's sort of
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specialty products that are tailor-made for specific
custoners and a ot of those tend to be sold on |onger term
contracts. So the novenents in sone of those products, you
don't see as nmuch up and down on a nonth to nonth basis or a
week to week basis in those prices because they're set by
contract for a specific time for the specific customners.

But what we do find, a couple of things | m ght
poi nt out. what we do tend to find is that when these new
products are introduced they kind of carry their own val ue
for awhile but eventually they take on nore of a commodity
di mension as nore people get into the business. And to sone
degree with WPC80 | think that's what we're seeing and we
expect, you know, that WPl will probably go the sane route.

But | think the second point | wanted to make on
that is that because these are all nmenbrane filtration
t echnol ogi es whereas dry whey is an evaporating, typically
an evaporating drying technol ogy, just fromthe techni cal
standpoint there is sonme ability to -- sone plants have the
ability to swwtch fromlet's say fromdoing 80 but 34 | ooks
better, kind of switch back to 34. | read reports of that
at least in Dairy Market News that that's happening. And
that relationship will tend to keep those markets in a
little better alignnment than it would be with dry whey. But
| think sonmetimes it's fair to say you m ght | ook at WPCB0

and WPC34 and for a short period of tinme they may not | ook
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particularly related, but they are nore rel atable we think
than dry whey.

MR. EASTMAN. Ckay. Then the last question |I had
was: Do you think there is any risks associated with
California changing the methodology in this way of
calculating its whey value or its whey factor when you
conpare the marketing conditions in the rest of the country
that may or may not price the mlk off the Federal Oder
Class IIl price and will still use dry whey, assum ng, into
the future, we suppose? Are there downsides? Are there
addi ti onal advant ages besi des maybe creating a formul a that
better fits the experience of California cheesenakers?

DR SCH EK: | don't see a downside. | think the
bi ggest downside is to kind of hang on to a revenue
representation that doesn't bear nuch reality to, you know,
what the plants are doing. | nean, we have end product
formul as that are supposed to cone up with a value for mlk
that is really derived on sort of technical factors that are
part of the econom c structure of how a plant would
determ ne what they can pay for cheese. O what they can
pay for mlk to use to make cheese or what they can pay for
mlk to make nonfat dry m K.

So that's the idea is we have a structure, a
technical forrmula that represents the econom cs that an

i ndi vi dual plant goes into in ternms of their ability to pay
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for mlk. And that, when you have the wong product as your
primary nover, it seens to ne that's a much bigger problem
than the fact that you m ght be on a different basis than
sonme other part of the country that has the wong basis for
their plants. M. Fish is from Wsconsin and he can tel

you that dry whey novenent creates problens for Wsconsin
cheesenakers.

MR FISH | think kind of the |ong and short of
it, there was a tine when dry whey served the need in terns
of what the -- as the value in end product pricing. But as
Bill mentioned earlier in his testinony, the industry on the
whey side is really a protein industry. And the WC34
mar ket, al beit not perfect, is nmuch better in terns of the
val ue of that whey, whether it's in 34, 80 or isolate. At
| east using the 34 market as a basis serves the industry
much better than the dry whey.

MR. EASTMAN. Thank you. Those are ny questions.

MR. MONSON: Thank you, Dr. Schiek, for your
testinmony. | had a question either for you or for M. Fish.
At the bottom of page 5 you have sone statistics regarding
declines in dry whey and increased production of the other
whey protein products. | was wondering if you could just
expand on that and indicate why these trends, why is dry
whey declining? Is it demand driven or is this an easier

process for cheesenakers to produce whey protein
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concentrate?

MR FISH | thinkit's -- like | said earlier, |
think it's just a matter of over tine what the industry has
seen in ternms -- what the true value of whey is. Al the
growh in the industry. For years it was a dry whey WPC34
market. Now with the devel opnent of higher |evel proteins,
including isolates, that's really what custoners on the whey
side are asking for so that's been the trend and clearly the
nmovenent in the industry in terns of cheese plants that are
processing whey to the end. It's really about processing
protein. | think that in and of itself explains what you've
seen in the increases in the protein pieces and the
decreases in the dry whey.

MR. MONSON: Thank you. And you foresee this
continuing in the future, these sane trends?

MR. FISH  Personally, | think so, |I think it's --
yeah, | don't think. As Bill pointed out, there has been a
| ot of investnment across the country, obviously including
California, in processing high protein products. The
investnments are costly and | think it's here to stay.

MR. MONSON: Thank you.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: Hearing no nore
guestions, thank you for your testinony.

DR. SCHI EK: Thank you.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: | woul d now |li ke to cal
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a representative testifying on behalf of the alternative
proposal submtted by the California Dairy Canpaign, MIKk
Producers Council and Western United Dairynen. You w ||
have a total of 30 minutes to submt your testinony. Again,
pl ease notice the clock.

| guess you guys can take turns stating your ful
names and spelling your |ast nanes.

MR. VANDENHEUVEL: Al right, 1'll start. The
name i s Rob Vandenheuvel, V-A-ND-E-NNHE-UV-E-L, with MIKk
Producers Counci |l .

M5. AcMOODY: Annie AcMody, spelled ACMO O D
Y, amwith the Western United Dairynen.

M5. McBRIDE: Lynne McBride, MC, capital B-RI-D
E, with California Dairy Canpaign.

Wher eupon,
ROB VANDENHEUVEL
ANNI E Ac MOODY
LYNNE McBRI DE
Were duly sworn.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: Thank you. You woul d
like to enter this testinmony as an exhibit?

M5. AcMOODY:  Yes.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER It will be Exhibit nunber
37.

(Exhibit 37 was entered into the record.)
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M5. AcMOODY: Thank you.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: You' ve al ready sai d who
you're testifying for so you may proceed.

M5. AcMOODY: Thank you. M. Hearing Oficer and
menbers of the hearing panel:

My name is Annie AcMoody. | amthe Director of
Econom ¢ Analysis for Western United Dairynen. W are an
association of dairy farmers representing the state's dairy
famlies. W are a grassroots organi zati on headquartered in
Modesto, California. An elected board of directors governs
our policy. The board of directors approved the position
will present here today during a special neeting on March
16, 2016.

Joining ne today, as we nentioned, are Rob
Vandenheuvel of M1k Producers Council and Lynne MBride of
California Dairy Canpaign. Wile they plan on presenting
additional testinony at a later tine, | wanted to point out
their presence again this year as it represents strong unity
in the producers' conmunity. The proposal we are presenting
today was submtted as a joint effort between the three
producers trade associations. In addition, it has the ful
support of the three main co-ops in the state - CDI, DFA and
LOL. The clear unity you see today is testinony to the
undeni abl e di sruption caused to California dairy famlies

and their enployees by the inequity in 4b pricing conpared
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to the price discovery nechanismin states operating under
the federal system

W would like to thank Secretary Ross for the cal
of this hearing on her own notion. W would also like to
t hank Governor Brown for his oft-expressed support and
recognition of California agriculture, and dairy in
particular, as being a driver intrinsic to California's
econony. The issue at hand for this hearing, the whey
portion of the Class 4b fornula, is not a new source of
concerns for the producer comunity. W appreciate that the
Secretary recognizes it needs to be addressed, especially in
I ight of the upcom ng expiration date for the tenporary
formula in place.

The topic of adjusting the whey portion of the
Class 4b formula is not new. In fact, it goes back to 2007
when the fixed whey factor was inplenmented on Decenber 1
Wth a fixed factor it was only a matter of tine before
prices would fall significantly out of alignment with
federal order pricing. The issue became particularly
apparent in 2011 as the value of dry whey started to rise.
The producer community, concerned with the inequity,
overwhel m ngly supported sone changes. Land O Lakes
submitted a petition, and agreeing the issue should be
revisited, the Departnment called for a hearing on June 2011

Support from dairy producer organizations and cooperatives
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was unparalleled - all sought changes that would bring the
California 4b price in closer alignment with federal order
prices. The support and conmon position anong producer
organi zati ons and co-ops was not typical at the tinme, but it
was renai ned throughout the last five years and is still
very cl ear today.

As a result of the 2011 hearing, the Departnent
deci ded to inplenent changes, elimnating the fixed whey
factor and replacing it with a sliding scale. Those results
were a slight inprovenment but fell short of getting
California prices in closer alignment with Federal O der
prices. An update to the whey scale occurred in 2012 when
the Secretary increased the upper end of the scale by 10
cents. Follow ng this decision, she created the Dairy
Future Task Force in the hopes of finding comon ground
bet ween industry participants to inprove the California
pricing system Al nost three years |later, no significant
changes occurred. Recognizing the issue of whey pricing was
still present and a critical concern to producers, the
Secretary called a hearing on her owmn notion a year ago. A
tenporary scal e was devel oped. Wen it was announced it
appeared it could yield sone additional revenues for
producers. This was wel comed news for producers who had
been advocating for a change for al nost four years.

Unfortunately, as we stated in our proposal letter, for the
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period August 2015 to February 2016, the tenporary scale
generated an average of 3.4 cents per hundredwei ght nore to
the Cass 4b formula than the previous fornmula woul d have.

Every producer group in this state has worked hard
on getting this issue resolved. Wile we very nuch
appreci ated the change in direction with the tenporary
formula, we would like to reiterate our preference for a
di fferent whey scale; one which we believe would create a
fair method to calculate whey in the Cass 4b formula in the
I ong run and one which we would like to see inplenented on a
per manent basi s.

W will delve into nore details later, but in
short, our proposal adjusts the whey scale to allow the whey
value in the Cass 4b formula to mrror the whey value in
the ass Ill fornula. WMre specifically, as outlined in
the Departnent's analysis, if the producers' proposal had
been in place for the past five years, the California C ass
4b price woul d have averaged $1.38 per hundredwei ght hi gher
with our proposal. This represents $.64 per hundredwei ght
on the overbase pri ce.

It is no secret that the |ast few years the gap
between the Cass Il and the Cass 4b price has caused mnuch
producer dissatisfaction. The part of the California Food
and Ag Code that states "the methods or fornulas shall be

reasonably calculated to result in prices that are in a
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reasonabl e and sound econom c relationship with the national
val ue of manufactured m |k products”, Section 62062, has
been nentioned by nany at each of the whey-rel ated heari ngs,
but we want to reiterate it today because it is of
particular interest to us; producers want to be on a | evel
playing field with producers in the rest of the country.

According to CDFA analysis, with the current
formula, the Class 4b price would have averaged $1.85 per
hundr edwei ght | ess than the Federal Order Class IIl price
for the period March 2011 to February 2016. This in itself
shoul d be evidence that the current Cass 4b fornula fails
to determ ne the cheese-m | k's val ue appropriately.

Clearly, the current scale violates the nandates outlined in
Section 62062 of the Code.

The devi ation between Class Il and 4b prices can
be caused by several factors. Notably, forrula differences
such as different price series, nake allowances, yield and
formul a construct contribute to the divergence. But the
whey value is what creates the nost variance between the two
class prices and it seens the Secretary recogni zed that,
calling a hearing with a scope pertaining only to the whey
value in the Cass 4b forrmula. It nust be recognized that
while the tenporary scale failed to generate additiona
needed revenues for producers, it did decrease the gap

bet ween C ass 4b whey value and the Cass Il whey val ue.

ALL AMERI CAN REPCORTI NG | NC.

(916) 362-2345




© 00 N o o b~ w N P

N NN N NN R R R R R R R R R
O N W N B O © O N o 00 M W N R O

53

Producers would very nmuch like to see the Cass 4b
equal to the Class Il price, but we realize the scope of
this hearing does not allow for such a proposal. The next
best thing is getting a conparable whey value in Cass 4b to
the one generated by the Class IlIl formula. |If a formula
t hat achi eved that had been in place for the past five
years, like the one we are proposing, the difference between
Class 4b and Cass IlIl would have been -3$.46 per
hundr edwei ght, instead of the -$1.85 with the current
formula. California cheesemakers would have still gotten to
pay a cheaper price for cheese-m |k than their Federal O der
counterparts.

Qur proposal woul d achieve a nmuch cl oser
relati onship between Cass 4b and Cass Il by renoving the
potential for unbearable discrepancies in the whey portion
of Class 4b that can occur if we do not nore closely tie our
whey value to the end product pricing formula used in
federal orders. As outlined in our proposal, we propose the
foll owi ng whey value in Cass 4b, and you have got the table
here for your conveni ence.

The next figure illustrates how that proposal
woul d have cl osed the gap between California's and FMMO s
whey values in the last five years. And again |'d like to
reiterate here following Dr. Schiek's testinony, we are not

trying to solve the gl obal supply inbal ances, we are really
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just trying to get processors to pay a fair value for mlKk.

So | eaning to that, producers are facing difficult
econom ¢ conditions.

G ven the current volatile conditions in the
i ndustry, the years ahead will|l undeni ably be nore
challenging for California dairy famlies. Econom c and
regul atory pressures are escalating in the state. Current
and proposed environnmental regulations have |led and will
continue to | ead to added costs, sonething farnmers in no
ot her states have to deal with. Aside fromthis regulatory
burden, costs of production on the dairy have stabilized in
recent years, but in doing so also seemto have reached a
new hi gher norm And the follow ng chart here of the
California State Cost of Production illustrates the trend.

A mninmal softening in feed costs had been a
not abl e nover in the reduction in cost of production
observed fromthe first quarter of 2009 to early 2010.
According to CDFA data, feed costs rose fromjust over 51
percent of the total cost of production in 2003 to 60
percent of total costs by the third quarter of 2008.
Fol l owi ng that high, there was a slow decline but it was
short lived; since fall 2010, feed prices clinbed again.
And while there was a bit of a slowdown in 2013 and
recently, feed costs remain high. Again, a new higher

"normal " seens to have been reached. And you can see that
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on the chart here.

Nationally, feed prices nay be |lower than 3 years
ago, but costs remain higher conparatively for California
operations. As an exanple, according to USDA data, in 2015
the average alfalfa hay price in California was $185 per
ton; the average US price was $163 per ton. This trend is
not only valid for 2015. Looking at the past five year
averages, a simlar difference with prices in California
averagi ng $217 per ton versus $193 in the US. Simlarly,
the 2015 corn price was $4.50 per bushel in California
versus $3.60 in the US. The past five year average is $5.55
per bushel in California versus $4.97 per bushel in the US.

CDFA data indicates that feed costs represented 57
percent of the total cost of production in the fourth
guarter of 2015. Wiile 2016 cost of production data is not
yet available, the significant declines in overbase prices
conbined with fairly steady feed prices will |ikely show
ever nore deteriorating margins for California dairy
famlies. Wth current feed prices and an overbase price
t hat averaged $13.27 per hundredwei ght for the two nonths of
2016, the current financial snapshot for producers is
sonber .

Due to all those increased costs, California
dai rynen have | ost much of their conpetitive position

relative to the rest of the nation. Failing to capture the
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val ue of whey, which has turned out to be a very marketabl e
product, is hurting their conpetitiveness further. W
reviewed the cost of production information because the
Departnment nust take it into account: "In establishing the
prices, the director shall take into consideration any

rel evant econom c factors, including but not limted to, the
foll owi ng: (a) the reasonabl eness and econonm ¢ soundness of
market mlk for all classes, given consideration to the
conbi ned i ncome fromthose class prices, in relation to the
cost of producing and marketing market mlk for al

pur poses, including manufacturing purposes. In determning
the costs, the director shall consider the cost of
managenent and a reasonable return on necessary capital
investnment." That was a quote from Section 62062 of the
Food and Ag Code.

Wil e 2014 was no doubt a record year for milk
prices in California, 2015 cane around fast and hit
producer's bottomline hard. A conparison of the net incone
received by dairies in the state to the total cost of
production illustrates the challenge clearly. The average
loss in 2015 was $3.37 per hundredwei ght, surpassing the
positive margin experienced in 2014 - that was $3.29 per
hundredwei ght. If you | ook back to 2011, there are nore
| osses than gains and this chart here illustrates that. The

dark bars are supposed to be red to enphasize all the | osses
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but obviously mlk prices are |ow and the col or copies were
expensi ve so you get the black and white version here.

(Laughter.)

M5. AcMOODY: Cost of production data is not
avai l abl e for 2016, but based on feed prices that likely did
not nmove nuch, conbined with the ow m |k prices experienced
during the first quarter of 2016, it is not hard to imagine
producers' financial situation remains dire and will likely
not inprove in the near future. The average overbase price
for the second quarter of 2016 will likely be in the upper
$12 to low $13 range. Current market conditions are not
pointing to a rapid price recovery. During the fourth
guarter of 2015, CDFA data points to a negative margin of
-$3.01 per hundredwei ght. For that period, the average
overbase price was $14.60 per hundredweight. MIk prices
settled over a dollar Iower than that for the first quarter
of 2016. Expectations for minimummlk prices are around
$1.60 Il ower for the second quarter of 2016. This wll
result in lower incone over feed, assum ng the feed is
steady, as | nentioned above. |If incone declines by even
just $1, this will bring the margin to -$4.01 per
hundr edwei ght for the first half of 2016. Such financi al
| osses per hundredwei ght are not sustainable and will force
nore farnms to exit the industry.

To find a clear sign that the financial situation
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in California has deteriorated one needs to | ook no further
than USDA's M Ik Production report. Indeed, so far in 2016,
first two nonths, mlk production in California has averaged
2.8 percent below | ast year. What's even nore concerning is
that the sanme two nonths | ast year averaged 3 percent bel ow
the previous year. Put another way, we are in a period of
year -over-year-over-year declines. It has now been 15
consecutive nonths of m |k production declines. 1In the US,
in contrast, mlk production has been up an average 0.6
percent in 2016 conpared to |last year. During the sane
period | ast year, m |k production was up an average of 2
percent. And this chart here illustrates that.

According to CDFA data, in 2015 there were 1,438
dairies left in the state, down from1, 668 five years ago.
Consolidation, with dairies getting |arger, has been bl aned
by others as a reason for the loss in nunber of farns, but
it was not the only cause of that decline. 1In fact, the
average size of a dairy farmin California dropped by 2 cows
in 2015 to 1,215 cows. Wile mlk per cow was down slightly
year-over-year, a nore concerning reality was apparent in
the statistical data: a total of 41,670 cows left the
California dairy herd in 2015.

In light of the financial harminflicted on the
average California dairy farm and the m |k production

decline already at play, we want to reassure the Secretary

ALL AMERI CAN REPCORTI NG | NC.

(916) 362-2345




© 00 N o o B~ w N P

N RN NN NN R R R R R R R R R
O N W N B O © O N o 00 M W N R O

59

that the small price increase we are here asking for today
will not generate a mlk glut. Wth m |k production |ower

t han year-ago | evels, the previous plant capacity issues

t hat have been nentioned in the past should not weigh on the
di scussion today. Keeping a lower mlk price in our state
only contributes to the financial plight of dairy producers,
not to bring supply nore in line with capacity. Producers
are the ones bearing the cost of a lack of capacity and w ||
respond to it by either building capacity or reducing
production via their plant's supply managenent prograns.

The current whey issue is one of fairness with
prices observed in the rest of the country. Looking at the
af orenenti oned cost of production data, even if we were to
add an additional $0.64 per hundredwei ght in revenues this
year, which is the average anount our proposals would have
generated these past five years, it would still yield
average negative margins for producers in the state. As
ment i oned above, we know the average overbase price for the
first quarter of 2016 will be over a dollar under the | ast
quarter of 2015; it's closer to $1.45 based on ny estimate.
Looki ng at a conservative scenario for the first quarter of
2016, where despite the above informati on we assune that
i ncome over feed costs and costs of production renmain the
sanme as in the fourth quarter of 2015, if we were to add

anot her $0. 64 per hundredwei ght, again that's being very
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optim stic considering where whey prices are at, the margin
woul d still be a negative $2.37 per hundredweight. W would
be hard pressed to find a producer willing to increase
producti on when they are | osing such a significant anount
per hundredwei ght of m |k produced. W would be even nore
hard pressed to find a | ender supportive of that concept.

California dairy farns are the backbone of the
dairy economny. According to a study conducted by UC Davi s,
the inmpact generated is quite inpressive. Indeed, according
to that study, the dairy industry generated $21 billion in
econom c activity for a total of $65 billion of dairy-
rel ated economc activity. It supported 55,000 mlk
production and processing jobs.

These past few years, the drought in California
has been naking headlines. While precipitations nmay have
i mproved this year, it still remains a topic of concern. In
a study conducted by UC Davis in 2014, it was estimted that
429,000 acres had been fallowed statewide, a $2.2 billion
loss to the state's farm ng industry. Wen there is no
surface water available, farners have no choice but to
fallow their fields or to turn to underground water. Using
groundwat er cones at a cost, since well drilling is rather
expensive. Again based on that UC Davis study, it was found
the Central Valley is hardest hit, particularly the Tul are

Basin, with projected | osses of $800 mllion in crop revenue
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and $447 million in additional well-punping costs. | know
there will be additional testinony on the drought today so |
don't want to take too nuch tinme on this but |I really wanted
to point out these costs because these added costs are
related to the farm ng side of the dairy operation. They
have been a reality for many dairies in the state and those
are not included in the cost of production data cited above.
These drought and regulation realities were net
with timely higher mlk prices in 2014. But mlk prices
have changed today and environnental constraints and
regul ations remain. W are relieved to find that the Panel
understands this reality and we want to reenphasize it as it
is just as true today as it was last year. And | have a
guote here fromthe panel report: "Al of these
envi ronmental costs and regulations have limted the ability
of producers to expand their production. Historically,
producers seeking to increase production built new dairies
and expanded the nunber of cows on existing facilities.
Conversely, environnmental costs and regul ati ons have
severely limted the building of new dairies, the
reactivation of dormant dairies, and reduced the re-
permtting of existing dairies. Because current
environnmental costs and regul ati ons are expected to renain
in place, if not intensify, they are expected to limt the

ability of production to grow in the future through the
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traditional nethod of adding dairies or adding a significant
nunber of cows to the mlking herd."

Ri sk managenent .

Since 2009 and the recent years of price ups and
downs, margins at the dairy remain fragile. Volatility has
been a buzzword in the last few years for a reason, it is
here to stay. As you know, dairymen have no way of passing
al ong added costs. To avoid a repeat of that econonic
cat ast rophe, many producers have turned to ri sk managenent
tools to protect their operations. More specifically,
hedgi ng has becone an increasing part of dairy operation
managenent .

Hedgi ng all ows parties to secure prices nonths in
advance. The effectiveness of hedging relies on many things
but especially on the relationship between futures prices
and cash prices. The futures contract nost commonly used by
dairynmen in the USis tied to Cass Ill. A hedge will never
be perfect because of basis, but over tine, with simlar
formul as, dairynmen can assess their basis risk nore
effectively. As illustrated earlier, the spread between
Class Ill and our mlk price has fluctuated significantly
over the years. Effectively, the issue of lower mlKk prices
in California is exacerbated by the fact that the different
whey factor in the California fornula makes C ass ||

futures contracts a less effective hedge than it otherw se
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woul d be. As a result, the very insurance that dairynen
attenpt to buy to insure sone operating nmargin does not
perform as they intended.

Looki ng back at historical relationships between
prices received at the dairy and Class Il is certainly not
a good predictor of basis because of the disparity. W
understand that it is possible to be creative and use
various contracts, in addition to Class Ill, to create a
nore effective hedge. But it remains that it is a nuch nore
difficult task in California to do it right. Adding
conplexity to a task that is already daunting to many has
been enough to deter many producers.

Even the safety net that came out of the |atest
FarmBill, the Dairy-MPP, is an issue for California
producers with the discrepancy that exists between
California prices and the rest of the country. The
correlation between Class IIl and the all-m Ik price -- |
t hought tal king slower mght help ny not screwi ng up words
but apparently it's not related to the speed | talk; so Il
take a sip. OCkay. The correlation between Cass Ill and
the all-mlk price, which is the price series used to
determ ne program paynents, is much stronger than C ass 4b
and the all-mlk price. The difference between the US all -
mlk price and the Class Il averaged $1.55 per

hundr edwei ght over the past five years. The difference
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between the US all-m |k price and C ass 4b averaged $3. 40
per hundredwei ght. This makes the program harder to relate
to California producers with California priced being | ower
t han national averages. The other conponent of that
program the feed costs, was already indirectly highlighted
earlier when we discussed the difference between California
corn and the hay prices with the rest of the country. Lower
mlk prices in California, conbined with higher feed costs,
makes it difficult for the programto trigger during
difficult times. The MPP margin for the first quarter of
2016 was $8 per hundredwei ght, which neans no paynment was
triggered. W have highlighted the negative nargins
California producers have been and are experiencing. This
program does not appear to be where dairies in California
will get help, at least not currently. W understand CDFA
is not responsible for this program and cannot change the
feed cost portion of the issues, but it certainly would help
if the mlk price portion of the fornmula was nore in |ine
with the rest of the country.

Whet her whey has a value or not is not the main
guestion anynore; it is widely recognized that the whey
stream has generated consi derabl e revenues for the cheese
processing industry. The Secretary's |ast decision and the
tenporary whey scale in place today is testinony to that.

Producers in federal orders have benefitted from a higher
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whey value in the current Class IIl formula - it is only
fair that producers in California also get a share of this
growi ng nmarket .

Why updating the scale.

In the 2011 Panel Report when the scale was first
i npl enent ed, CDFA stated: "such a sliding scale could be
devi sed and updated, if need be, to better correspond with
California conditions conmpared to an end-product pricing
factor." California conditions, as outlined above, warrant
an updat e.

The narrow range of the sliding scale used in the
permanent formula is at the root of the problem Wth a
ceiling capping the whey value at $.75, there is tremendous
potential for discrepancies between the Cass 4b and C ass
1. Simlarly, a floor of $.25 also creates a potenti al
for discrepancies. The scale proposed in our petition
significantly reduces the potential for these |arge
di screpanci es.

As the panel stated in 2005 before reconmendi ng
the renoval of price floors fromthe O ass 4a and 4b
formul ae: "price floors create an artificial price within a
mar ket at a |level that may be higher than the naturally
occurring market price.” The sane is true of ceilings,
creating an artificial price that may be | ower than the

naturally occurring nmarket price. 1In this case, it has
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prevent ed producers from benefitting fromthat val ue.

In the past, it has been argued that a cap is
necessary for small cheese processors who do not process
whey. \Whey has had a value for years. WMany have found ways
to make it profitable by investing in whey processing
facilities. QOhers dispose of it by selling it to dairynen
so they can mix it in their feed ration for the cows. As
producers frequently rem nd us: many dairynen sell their
hospital mlk to calf raisers because it nmakes nore sense
than throwing it away. Cheese plants have had pl enty of
time to maxim ze opportunities to recover value or make whey
products profitable, just Iike dairymen found value in
hospital m k.

Anot her key point of contention for producers:
operation sizes have never been a focus in the mlk pricing
formulas in California - all dairy famlies get the sane
vol atile price, regardl ess of the size of their operation.
Cheese processors across the country have adapted to that
reality and have adapted well. California dairy operations
of all sizes have been facing dairy price volatility for
years. Therefore, there is no place for a cap on the
sliding scale on the grounds that sone small cheese
processors cannot afford whey price volatility.

As we have advocated for many years for a cl oser

rel ati onship between Class Il and 4b, we believe the
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per mmanent whey scal e should be updated to reflect our
proposed scale. This is sonething we want to achieve in the
long run - not just on an energency or tenporary basis. The
anount of tine and resources the co-ops spent on the FVMMO
hearing process is testinmony to that desire. The three
trade associations al so supported that process, while 32
producers directly testified. A permanent change woul d

al | ow better business planning decisions for producers and
processors. The proposed changes may be under a sliding
scale format, but the many brackets allow for the whey val ue
to fluctuate with whey prices. The resulting whey conponent
value in the Cass 4b forrmula can nove quickly froma nonth
to the next, providing a true reflection of changi ng val ues
in whey markets, negating the need to nake it a tenporary
change.

O her proposals.

We oppose the alternative proposal submitted by
the Dairy Institute. While we appreciate their creative
effort to reformthe scale, it clearly falls short of
achi eving what needs to be done to restore fairness in the
Class 4b pricing fornula. CDFA s analysis reveals that over
the past five years it would have increased the Cass 4b
price by $.31 per hundredweight. This is clearly below the
$1.38 requested in our proposal. O greater concern is a

| ook at the |last year, which nay be nore reflective of
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current comodity prices: DI's proposal would have | owered
the Cass 4b price by 11 cents this past year. This is
based on CDFA's analysis, conparing DI's proposal with the
per manent scale. Conparing the DI's proposal to the
tenporary scale, the one in place today, yields even nore
shocking results. For the past year it would have decreased
the Cass 4b price by 42 cents. Going back three years the
result gets worse, -62 cents. 1In light of the negative
mar gi ns experienced by California producers, our concern

Wi th such a possibility is great. In short, we cannot
support a proposal whose intentions are not to nove the
Class 4b price closer to the Class IlIl price and have the
potential effect of decreasing mlk prices in California.

Specifically, we have objections to the use of the
DI scale, and the Hearing Panel eloquently identified
several of those last year. W wll make good use of that
Panel Report by including sone of those quotes here to
reenphasi ze their inportance and rel evance in this hearing
as wel | :

1. A whey factor based on WPC34 nay not track a
whey factor based on dry whey when conparing cheese-m |k
prices paid by California's out-of-state conpetitors with
California prices. A review of the dry whey price series
and WPC34 price series quoted from USDA's DWN shows that the

two price series tend to trend up and down together; but
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there are occurrences when the two price series will nove in
opposite directions or when one price series will be
relatively constant, while the other is noving. Mreover, a
conpari son of the per-pound protein price of WPC34 with that
of dry whey shows that their price novenents are highly
correl ated, but not perfectly correl ated.

2. The whey factor based on WPC34 appears to have
merit, but the concept needs to be vetted further in order
to verify and validate the cormmodity price and nmanufacturing
cost factors that will be associated with the proposed whey
factor.

3. The Departnent needs to exam ne the proposed
DWN WPC34 price series to determne if it will function well
as a commodity price series for California. This price
series is based on the Western and Central parts of the US.
Al t hough various w tnesses supported this concept, it is
prudent to determne if this price series is representative
of the price received by California plants. Further, it is
unclear if plants maki ng WPC of hi gher protein
concentrations receive a simlar price or a price related to
the WPC34 price series. |If the DVWN WPC34 price series is
i ndeed representative, then this concern woul d be resol ved.

I f not, other alternatives such as a California price survey
or other price discovery nethod would need to be

est abl i shed.
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4. The Department is not currently perform ng any
cost studies and is not aware of any cost studies recently
conpl eted for plants making WPC34. Before inplenenting a
whey factor based on WPC34, any explicit or inplied
manuf act uring cost allowance and yield factor incorporated
into the whey factor should be confirmed and verified as
representative of California plants. The Panel is concerned
with inplementing a new whey factor based on WPC34 that is
not accurate and consistent with actual nmanufacturing
conditions of California plants.

5. The issue with confidentiality currently
applies to the Class 4b pricing formula with cheddar cheese
and dry whey. This would also be true with WPC,

To our know edge, none of these objections have
been answered or researched. It is unclear whether answers
could provide a framework to effectively use this proposa
in the current regulatory environnment. W agree that each
of these objections laid out by the Panel is an inportant
consi der ati on.

Thi s concl udes our testinmony. The nenbers of
Western United Dairynmen thank CDFA staff for their effort in
preparing for this hearing. W would also be pleased to
answer any questions you nay have and request the option to
file a post-hearing brief, please.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: Your request to file a
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post-hearing brief is granted.

M5. AcMOODY: Thank you.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: Any questions fromthe
panel ?

MR. SHI PPELHOUTE: | have a question. You're
guoting Section 62062 where you quote that "the nethods or
formul as shall be reasonably calculated to result in prices
that are in a reasonabl e and sound econom c rel ati onship
with the national value of manufactured mlk products”. 1I'd
like to focus on the |last three words there, "manufactured
m |k products.” In reading the next paragraph it would seem
to suggest that your interpretation of "manufactured mlk
products” is the sane as the Federal Order Class Il price;
is that how you were interpreting that?

M5. AcMOODY: That's how we're | ooking at it.
W're trying to get a reasonable relationship with the
nati onal value of manufactured m |k products. Those
products are those that are used in the Cass Ill fornula.
Class Il includes manufactured m |k products.

MR. SHI PPELHOUTE: And you have quoted some quotes
of feed prices on a later section in your testinony. Just
curious where you pulled those nunbers fronf?

M5. AcMOODY: Are you referring to the ones bel ow
Figure 3?

MR, SH PPELHOUTE:  Yes.
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M5. AcMOODY: Those are USDA NASS dat a.

MR SH PPELHOUTE: That's all | have for now. |
take that back. On your risk nanagenment you nentioned that
nore producers are using hedging. | was curious if you have
any idea of what percentage of producers are using that?

M5. AcMOODY: No. |'ve been |ooking at that
nunber for years, | still haven't cone across it. |It's just
nore, you know, word of nouth

MR. MONSON: | had a question regarding the WPC34
that you nmentioned at the end of your testinony. You
hi ghl i ghted several sections from previous panel reports.
Did your board formally discuss this issue and are you guys
opposed to using WPC34 as an i nput?

M5. AcMOODY: W' ve tal ked about. That specific
proposal was different |last year so | know our board has
come across the specific commodity. | think our main
concern is that we are trying to get our price nore in line
with the Federal Order Class IIl and by using a different
coormodity it would yield a potential for discrepancies.

MR. MONSON: So even if the val ues were adjusted
in the table to where it was nore closely aligned to C ass
1l are you guys still opposed to switching fromdry whey to
WPC347?

M5. AcMOODY: Yeah. At this tine our position is

to get our price in closer alignnent and there is concern
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that this wouldn't do that, even if you change the scale.

MR, MONSON:.  Ckay.

M5. AcMOODY: And | think those quotes kind of
yield to that. That sonetinmes the prices nove | ong and
sonetimes they don't and so that still creates concern

MR. MONSON: Thank you.

MR. EASTMAN. | have a couple of questions. This
is probably for all three of you, although |I know Rob and
Lynne, you'll probably -- we'll get to see you again and
hear nore fromyou specifically. Mybe you can answer this
guestion, give us the abstract version, then you can give us
nore details as you testify if there's nore in your
testinmony. But within this testinony you tal k about margins
and you tal k about environnmental costs and then you start
talking a little bit about drought. Do you believe that
factors such as drought, |and use conpetition of other ag

commodities conpared to say crops that would be used for

feed and dairying, do you think those factors still exist
and still are an influence over dairynen today? They
appeared to be an issue last sumer; |I'mcurious if you

believe that those other factors also are in play?

M5. AcMOODY: Do you want their thoughts first or
| thought 1'd --

MR. EASTMAN:. Ei ther one.

M5. AcMOODY: Ckay. | tried to lay out that |
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think those factors are definitely still at play and that's
why we are really not thinking that even the price increase
of what we are asking would allow producers to increase
production. There's other factors others than just the
financial issues that are now creating issues for sheer

gr owt h.

MR. EASTMAN. COkay, perfect. And then Rob and
Lynne, you woul d agree or do you have sonething to add?

MR. VANDENHEUVEL: Ladies first.

M5. McBRIDE: Yeah, those issues are definitely
i ssues that our nenbership tal ks about frequently. Even
t hough we have had nore participation this year, thankfully,
there's still going to be a lot of issues relating to water
avai lability and that's going to become a new norm
unfortunately, for our state, so that raises great concerns
for our dairy operators.

There continues to be pressure from other crops
and | and bei ng bought up to plant different crops so that
pressure continues to exist and we have seen dairies, you
know, leveled in order to change over to a different crop
So those are certainly issues that we talk a | ot about with
our nmenbership. And then just the increasing costs of
production, be it environnental regulation, |abor issues and
others just only increase the costs for our nenbership and

are of great concern.
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MR. VANDENHEUVEL: You know, | can't discount the
i npact that the drought has had on the California
agriculture sector. |It's probably nore direct on other
commodities nore so than dairy, at least directly at this
point, but it's going to be a long-termissue with the
groundwater |egislation that we're currently in the very
early stages of.

But 1've got to tell you, the dairy farmers in the
state in terns of conpetition for land. There's always
going to be another crop or another product or another thing
you could do with the land that's perhaps nore profitable.
They' re dairymen because they want to be dairynen, because
they want to produce the -- You know, they've been doing it
for generations. Wat you're seeing nowis a direct result
of many years of financial stress that they just can't
recover from

Financial institutions that no | onger have faith
in the dairy industry in California because of their
inability to cover their costs on a long-term ongoing
basis. And so while there are other neasures, drought and
the rising of permanent tree crops and that increase in the
Val | ey, you cannot understate the dramatic inpact that
having a lower mlk price in California relative to our
conpetitors outside of California has had on the financi al

state of our dairies and why they are naking the decision to
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increasingly either cut dowmn the herd, or in sone cases, too
many cases, selling altogether.

MR. EASTMAN. Thank you. Another question | had
was toward the end of your testinmony you talk a little bit
about floors and caps on scales. | just want to nake sure |
understand. It appears within the text of your testinony
you argue agai nst those sonewhat but your proposal does
i nclude those. |Is that just because you set them at the
correct level or were you just comparing what you're
proposi ng to, say, the permanent scale that would kick in
once the tenporary scale goes away? | just want to nmake
sure | understand what you were getting at there.

M5. AcMOODY: Yeah. The scale with a narrow fl oor
and ceiling nakes it nore likely for |arge discrepancies.

As you can see on our scale that probably was as |arge as
you could get it to fit on a page - it goes all the way up
to $4 - so we are trying to mninmze the potential inpact
for that. W're trying to stay in that scale format because
we feel the Departnment has been confortable with that fornmat
in recent years so we are trying to stay within that and
make it nove nore in line with what we are expecting the
prices would be in the federal Class IIl. So kind of a
conprom se and staying in that format.

MR. EASTMAN. You aren't conpletely opposed to the

concept, just where they were set?
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M5. AcMOODY:  Yes.

MR. EASTMAN. CGotcha, perfect. And then the |ast
guestion | had was, obviously based on how the system works,
as you increase class prices that will increase pool prices
to all producers that participate in the pool. |'massum ng
we are going to hear testinony in a little bit about
prem uns that are paid by sonme cheese processors. And the
guestion | have is, it could be possible that a cheese pl ant
that is paying premuns to its shippers will reduce those
premuns if the Cass 4b price is increased. And although
the increase in the 4b price will be shared by all pool
producers it is possible that an individual shipper to a
cheese plant mght end up with a net lower mlk price when
you conpare, you know, a higher pool price but a decrease in
prem uns. And the question | have is, obviously that's just
a limtation somewhat in how the system works but do you
think that just is sonething that has to happen for the
better good of all producers or just sinply an outcone of
the system and there's not much you can do about it?

M5. AcMOODY: Kind of a philosophical question
there. You allowed yourself that because it's your
bi rt hday, right?

MR. EASTMAN. It is ny birthday. |1'mglad
everybody cane. It's the only way | could get everybody

here on ny birthday.
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(Appl ause.)
M5. AcMOODY: That's what | figured, okay.

MR. EASTMAN. Best birthday ever, | think.

(Laughter.)

MR EASTMAN: But we'll see, we'll see what's
com ng next.

M5. AcMOODY: So, | nean, it kind of goes to the
basis of why pooling was put in place. [|'msure sone
producers here in the state -- in the room probably that
ship to a Cass | plant feel that they would |i ke to get
t hose revenues directly as well but the systemwas put in
pl ace to share all revenues anong producers and that's what
we're trying to argue for here is that those revenues are
shared fairly.

MR EASTMAN. Gotcha. Rob?

MR. VANDENHEUVEL: Yeah. And | guess | would add
that the buyers in the state aren't paying prem uns out of
charity, they're paying premuns to attract mlk to conpete
for that mlk supply. To attract quality mlk, sustainable
mlk, on time, high volume, whatever the standards are for
attracting those premuns. What we are trying to do is
establish a plan, a pooling systemor -- we have a pooling
system W are trying to bring back sonme sort of equity
bet ween the classes. Because the code al so di scusses the

rel ati onship between classes. Wen you've got one class, in
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this case 4b, that is significantly bel ow what is perceived,
we believe, as the national value of conparable m |k around
the country and the other four classes are not, the inpact
that has on their relationships within each other is
significant.

Which is why the code specifically addresses the
rel ati onship between the classes. As producers were heavily
i nvested t hrough our cooperatives in another class, 4a, and
t he i mpact on our cooperatives and their operations of 4a
pl ants when the 4b price is significantly [ower. And
they' re actually generating significant pool wthdrawals,
wher eas our producer-owned assets and plants are maki ng pool
contributions over the years, that has an inpact.

And so while prem uns can be used at the nargins
to attract a mlk supply, they are not guaranteed. W' ve
seen that in the Mdwest, we're starting to hear about those
prem uns com ng down. And they're also -- there is no
reason to believe that if we adjust appropriately the
regul ated price of the Cass 4b price that those prem uns
won't continue, because at the end of the day they' ve still
got to attract an adequate, high quality, at tenperature, on
time mlk supply and that isn't free. Wat the co-ops and
t he producers do to produce and provide this mlk on the
processors' schedul e, whatever they need, full supply

contracts, there is a cost to that. That's what the
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prem uns are covering, the conpensation for that, not sone
maki ng up for what should be a base class price.

MR. EASTMAN. So you think that prem unms wl
probably continue in the future or we are in a situation
where you just foresee that will have to happen?

MR. VANDENHEUVEL: | think it's entirely possible

that you could hear testinony today that those premuns wll

be at risk in sone points, in some cases. | can't nake any
-- it's not ny job. | don't offer the premuns, | can't
take themaway, | can't give them

But what | would say is in a state where | think
we are going to increasingly have conpetition for mlk,
given all the challenges we have tal ked about for future
growt h, environnmental challenges, |and use chall enges, just
doi ng business in California challenges. As you conpete for
mlk, if you are the first guy on the bl ock who decides, |I'm
not going to pay premuns or |I'mgoing to pay significantly
| ess prem uns to sonmehow puni sh ny shi ppers because the
state just raised nmy price, I"'mnot sure that's a good | ong-
termstrategy for securing an adequate m |k supply.

M5. MBRIDE: | just wanted to echo sone of what
was al ready said. But, you know, | think from our producer
perspective, you know, prem uns are great, they are just not
guaranteed, and that is why we have been so strongly

supportive of effective mnimmpricing regulation,
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especially on the 4b price because of how much m | k goes
into 4b utilization. So, you know, we just see that as the
really key factor is to have one that is level with the
Federal M1k Marketing Order system

MR EASTMAN: That's all | had.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: Ms. AcMbody, Ms. McBride
and M. Vandenheuvel, thank you for your testinony.

M5. AcMOODY: Thank you.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: W will now proceed with
the public testinony section of this hearing and the first
witness will be M. Mirphy. WII you please cone forward.

M. Murphy, will you please state your full nane,
spel |l your last nane and state your affiliation for the
record, please.

MR. MJURPHY: Barry Murphy, MUR-P-HY. 1| have a
conpany cal |l ed BESTWHEY, LLC, B-E-S-T-WHE-Y, L-L-C
Wher eupon,

BARRY MJRPHY
Was duly sworn.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER:. Wuld you |ike this
statenent, your docunments, entered as an exhibit?

MR. MJRPHY: Yes. Yes, please.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER. M. Mirphy's docunent
wi Il be Exhibit nunmber 38.

(Exhibit 38 was entered into the record.)

ALL AMERI CAN REPCORTI NG | NC.

(916) 362-2345




© 00 N o o b~ w N P

N NN N NN R R R R R R R R R
O N W N B O © O N o o0 M W N L O

82

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: Your witten testinony
now is entered as an exhibit; you may proceed.

MR. MJRPHY: Good norning. M introduction is ny
name is Barry Miurphy and | have worked in the California
dairy industry for the past 26 years, first in the senior
managemnment corporate environnent and for the past 16 years
as a consultant to the small and nmedi um cheese plants with
specialty cheeses and whey handling and di sposal needs. M
background i ncludes Dairy Science and Busi ness post-graduate
degrees, technical and operations nanagenent, sales and
mar ket i ng managenent and green field project devel opnent and
financing. | live in Petaluma, California.

My position on the proposals: BESTWHEY, LLC
opposes the proposal fromthe three producer groups, Wstern
United Dairynmen, MIk Producers Council and California Dairy
Canpai gn, and strongly believes that this proposal wll
restrict and/or reverse the growh of California s cheese
i ndustry and possibly elimnate many of the smaller and
medi um si zed cheese businesses in the state. BESTWHEY, LLC
supports the Dairy Institute of California' s alternate
proposal with respect to its price cal culation based on the
val ue of whey sold by cheese plants which are not capabl e of
processi ng whey into powdered products and the Dairy
Institute captures the value of WPC34, not dry whey, which

is nore aligned with what the final use of whey is in the
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state when transported in liquid formsuch as what DFA and
Land O Lakes do today. The dairy groups proposal assunes
that cheese plants receive a dry whey finished product val ue
for their whey stream This pricing formula overval ues m |k
for nost cheesemakers in the state because they do not
recover that assunmed value fromtheir whey operations.

Dairy Institute's proposal is fair since it would work well
and fairly for plants such as Dairy Farnmers of Anerica's
WPC34 plant in Turlock, California and Land O Lakes' WPC34
plant in Oland, California.

Whey Powder and Whey Protein Concentrate.

O the 59 cheese plants in California, one plant
manuf act ures whey powder in Kraft Tulare, and the next three
maj or cheese conpani es, Leprino, Saputo and Hi |l mar, process
sonme of the whey solids into products other than sweet whey
that is the factor for the dairy groups' whey val uation and
for which the current markets are weak. Ten other cheese
conpani es process a liquid reverse osnosis whey or ultra-
filtered whey for sale as liquid to aninmal feed, to other
whey processors, and in four of those plants, as dried whey
protein. Al ten of these conpanies di spose of greater than
85 percent of whey solids as animal feed with little or no
val ue.

Fact s:

Twel ve of the 59 cheese plants in California can
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process whey to sone degree per nost recent CDFA data.

2. Using whey powder market val ue as proposed by
the dairy groups does not nmake sense and assunes that al
plants utilize 100 percent of whey solids, when in fact one
plant in the state can achieve this. A handful of
addi tional plants can capture the value fromthe bul k of the
whey solids, while the vast nmgjority have m ninmal or no
recovery of whey solids.

3. Reverse osnosis whey solids are sold in liquid
formby two plants in the state and achieve 50 to 70 percent
of the whey powder value mnus freight costs. Longer
di stances separate plants further in California than nost
ot her states and thereby nake freight costs a significant
i ssue. For exanple, Land O Lakes' WPC34 liquid plant hauls
fromOland, California to Kings County, California, so over
300 mles at a cost of $1,200 per |load or $0.12 per pound of
solids of WC34. And fromCity of Industry, California to
Tulare is 192 nmiles at a backhaul cost of $475 per |oad or
about $0. 05 per pound of RO whey solids. Distances between
plants and freight costs in California are such that there
is no interplant novenent of raw, un-concentrated whey in
the entire state when this is conmonpl ace in other states.

4. \Wey Protein Concentrate 34 liquid solids are sold
by three plants in the state to dryers at 20 to 30 cents

under, or 50 to 75 percent, of the USDA Western Average of
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the Mostly series, for WPC34 delivered.

5. The smal |l est cheese conpani es, representing at
| east 70 percent of the 50-plus cheese plants in the state,
have no ability or econom es of scale to process whey and
actually pay up to $1.00 a hundredwei ght to di spose of the
whey. | work with a small cheese conpany right now t hat
pays $250 a | oad of whey for disposal costs.

My concl usions are as foll ows:

A. Using the Dairy Institute's proposal to index
t he whey value for |iquid shipnent at WPC34 mar ket val ues
makes nore sense than usi ng whey powder narket val ue since
only one plant in the state can utilize 100 percent of whey
solids. | have tested the Dairy Institute's data supporting
its proposal and the data is accurate in ternms of WPC
yi el ds, operating costs, sales value and transport costs for
t hese plants able to recover whey val ue through
concentration and sale of liquid whey.

B. Adopting the dairy group's proposal will w pe
out the smaller cheese plants and nay result in reduced
processing levels by the | arger cheese plants since they can
nove sone of their volune to other states.

The cheese business is a tough, small margin
busi ness and for the smaller cheese conpanies w thout the
ability to create value fromwhey it is even tougher. For

the large plants, a few cents nmargin fromcheese sal es val ue
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over mlk cost conbined with very | arge scal e operati ons,
may at best result in a break even business and the whey can
add value to create a fair return on investnent. For the
smal l er plants, even with higher margins on cheese sal es
value less mlk cost, an ideal target gross margin mlk to
cheese val ue woul d be roughly $.50 per pound of cheese. But
the rel ative overhead costs are so high that the struggle
with smaller cheese plants is that they don't have the
econoni es of scale to cover the base overhead confortably.

| understand that the proposed dairy group's mlKk
price increase woul d have averaged as nuch as $1.75 a
hundr edwei ght at tinmes over the past few years. This would
be $.175 per pound of cheese value and would |ikely w pe out
hal f of the smaller cheese plants because this $.175 per
pound of cheese would elimnate any potential profitability.
California' s specialty cheese business conpetes with
products from across the US and the European Union and sone
of these cheese busi nesses outside of California nust be
buying m |k outside of the federal pool since their pricing
in some cases does not match federal order class Il
pri ci ng.

O course, we know that many of these plants
| ocated in federal order areas operate as non-pool plants
and can pay for mlk based on the market. Wen mlk is in

excess these non-pool plants are able to buy m |k bel ow
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class in order to support -- in order to help to clear the
market. Both -- that's a typo there, sorry, "Both."
California' s current system does not have any kind of
options to buy mlk bel ow regul ated class prices that exist
in the federal order states.

Under the current California regulated system
cooperatives can pay mninmumregul ated prices to farner
menbers but then can assess plant | osses back to the farner
menbers. I n other words, if the regulated prices are too
high for the plant to operate profitably, the cooperatives
can re-blend and pay their farmer owners on the basis of
what the mlk is really worth to the plant. The non-
cooperative cheese business mlk buyers do not have such an
option when the regulated price is set too high. This is
clearly inequitable and provides no nechanismto clear mlk
with respect to cheese plants, which are owned primarily by
non- cooper ati ve busi nesses.

Cooperatives versus Private Cheese Conpanies

Whey-derived product markets have col |l apsed in
recent nonths as have nonfat dry m |k powder markets. 1In
the case of nonfat dry m |k powder, there are reports that
the co-ops lost at least tens of mllions of dollars due to
selling inventories of finished products made with high mlKk
costs in early and m d-2014 when prices were higher into a

| oner-priced market late in the year, in 2015 and currently
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t he sane markets when gl obal prices had fallen
substantially. Co-ops then assessed the producers by
adjusting the effective price paid themto account for these
| osses. Again, they have the ability under the regul ated
pricing systemto adjust the effective price that the plant
pays for the mlk to match what it is worth in their plant
operations including prem uns based on fair market val ue.
The nostly private California cheese industry cannot assess
| osses to producers and therefore nmust absorb these | osses.

Dairy Farners of Anerica and Land O Lakes have one
cheese plant each in California. Both of themsell |iquid
WPC34 bel ow market to private cheese plant dryers. Wy have
Dairy Farners of Anerica and Land O Lakes not invested in
whey protein dryers, not to nention |actose or whey perneate
handl i ng dryer systens? One reason is that tens of mllions
of dollars are required for investnent in whey processing.
If the dairy group proposal is adopted, with its higher
regul ated price for cheese mlk, then both the Dairy Farners
of Anmerica and Land O Lakes cheese plants will | ose noney or
break- even at best, based on ny know edge of the operations
that they have and the normal costs associated with such
oper at i ons.

Wiy have the California dairy cooperatives sold or
cl osed down their large California cheese plants and not

devel oped their remai ni ng cheese nmaki ng operations? One has
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to conclude that it was because they could not profitably
operate | arge cheese plants. Yet now, the dairy group are
proposi ng an increase that will force cheese plants to pay
nore for mlk, despite the fact that when cooperatives were
operating these cheese plants they, in all |ikelihood, could
not operate themat a profit. The math sinply doesn't worKk.
There is only so nuch noney available with which to pay for
a cheese plant, run a cheese naking operation, pay dairy
farmers for mlk and remain conpetitive with other cheese
suppliers in the market. The dairy group proposed fornul a
woul d sinply increase the mlk price too nmuch for nmany of

t hese pl ants.

My final concl usions:

Many of California's smaller cheese plants will be
forced out of business should the dairy group mlk pricing
proposal be adopted. Several of the cheese plants that I
have consulted for over the past many years will be forced
out of business. The |arger cheese plants may reduce ml Kk
use levels as they have the ability to nove cheese
production out of state. |If a nodest percentage of cheese
manufacturing i s noved out of state or disappears due to
pl ant closure then this will provide for an oversupply of
mlk in California with no ability to sell below the m nimum
mandated pricing to clear the market.

BESTWHEY supports the Dairy Institute of
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California's alternative proposal based on the val ue of
liquid whey and opposes the dairy group proposal. Thank
you.
HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: Any questions fromthe
panel ?
MR, SHI PPELHOUTE: In your work with the various
cheese plants that you interact with, is nost of your
consul tation on the whey handling side of the business or?
MR. MJURPHY: | do both. M primary focus is whey
and whey project devel opnment and trying to extract sone
val ue fromthe whey or maybe even buyi ng whey for plants. |

buy whey from sone plants that just have liquid whey for ny

clients. Yeah. | also work with cheese econom cs and
cheese projects and | ooking at -- obviously mlk is a major
part of that. | work on general cheese technol ogy. But the

econoni cs, cheese econonmics is nore of ny focus.

MR. SHI PPELHOUTE: So you're interacting with the
mar keting side and are pretty famliar with the accounting
side of the business?

MR. MJRPHY: Yes; extrenely, yes.

MR. SHI PPELHOUTE: That's my one questi on.

MR. EASTMAN. | have two questions. The first
one: If you decided to did you want to request the
opportunity to file a post-hearing brief?

MR. MJRPHY: Yes, please, thank you.
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MR. EASTMAN. Ckay. And then on page 3 of your
testinmony you cite specific costs of nmoving liquid hauls and
things of those nature. 1Is that firsthand know edge? Do
t hese costs conme fromfirsthand know edge that you have as
you' ve worked with your clients?

MR MJURPHY: Yes, these are the transactions I'm
i nvolved with, yes.

MR. EASTMAN.  Ckay.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: Your request to file a
post-hearing brief is granted and thank you for your
testimony, M. Mirphy.

MR. MJURPHY: Thank you.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: Dr. Erba

Dr. Erba, will you please state your full nane,
spell your last nanme and state your affiliation for the
record, please.

DR. ERBA: FEric M Erba, the last nanme is spelled
E-R-B-A and | amrepresenting California Dairies, Inc.

Wher eupon,
DR. ERI C ERBA
Was duly sworn.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: Do you have any witten
statenents or other things you would like to enter into the
record at this tine?

DR. ERBA: Yes, the copy | provided for the
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panelists as well as the hearing officer.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: The written testinony
fromDr. Erba's will be now received as Exhibit 39.

(Exhibit 39 was entered into the record.)

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: And you nay proceed.

DR. ERBA: Thank you. M. Hearing Oficer and
Menbers of the Panel :

Good norning. My name is Eric Erba and | hold the
position of Senior Vice President and Chief Strategy Oficer
for California Dairies, Inc., whoml| amrepresenting here
today. California Dairies is a full-service m |k processing
cooperative owned by 385 producer-nenbers | ocated throughout
California and coll ectively producing 17.4 billion pounds of
m |k per year, or 43 percent of the mlk produced in
California. Qur producer-nenbers have invested over $500
mllion in large processing plants at six |ocations, which
wi |l produce about 365 mllion pounds of butter and 750
mllion pounds of powdered m |k products in 2016. At their
March 22nd, 2016 neeting, the Board of Directors of
California Dairies approved the concepts contained in the
testinmony that | will be presenting today.

We thank the Secretary for calling this hearing on
her own notion and keeping the hearing focused on only
alternative nethods for valuing whey in the Cass 4b m |k

pricing formula. For the last four years and up until the

ALL AMERI CAN REPCORTI NG | NC

(916) 362-2345




© 00 N o o b~ w N P

N NN N NN R R R R R R R R R
O N W N B O © O N o o0 »h W N R O

93

hearing held in June 2015 on this sanme topic, producer
representatives in general, and California Dairies
specifically, have argued that the disparity between the
whey valuation in California and in federal m |k marketing
orders has been far too great and has too far of an inpact
on producer prices to be ignored. The decision fromthe
June 2015 hearing was a refreshing change in direction in
that there was validation by the Departnent of Food and
Agriculture of our historic position on whey val uation.
Unfortunately, the decision fromthe June 2015 hearing was
only tenporary and it is set to expire in July 2016, only 12
nmont hs after inplenentation.

Today's hearing affords us the opportunity to show
our support for an inproved neans to val ue the whey portion
of the Class 4b pricing formula. California Dairies fully
supports the alternative proposal submitted by Western
United Dairynmen, MIk Producers Council and California Dairy
Canpai gn. The proposal replaces both the permnent and
tenporary tables that generate values for dry whey in the
Class 4b m Ik pricing formula. And | reference the
Stabilization and Marketing Plan for Market M1k for
Northern California and Southern California, Article II1I,
Section 300(E)(1)(c) and Article II1l, Section
300(E)(1)(c)(i). replacenent table proposed by all three --

by the three producer trade associations is an expanded
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matri x for determ ning the whey value contribution to the
Class 4b m Ik pricing formula, based on the narket price for
dry whey. The values in the table enulate those achi eved by
the Cass Ill pricing formula used in federal mlk marketing
orders. And while | recognize that this is beyond the scope
of the hearing today, | will note, just as Dairy Institute
did this nmorning, California Dairies continues to support
regul ar reviews of manufacturing cost allowances relative to
t he Departnent’'s annual manufacturing cost exhibits.

The proposal that California Dairies supports is
| ogical, corrects the well-known deficiency in the Cass 4b
mlk pricing formula and mrrors previous positions taken
with regard to whey valuation within the C ass 4b m |k
pricing formula. It is also consistent with the producer-
led effort to pursue a federal m |k marketing order in
California. The proposal is neant to address the singular
i ssue of fair conpensation to dairy producers for mlk and
its conmponents purchased by processors. The permanent neans
for valuing whey in the Cass 4b mlk pricing formula has
been in place since August 1, 2012. The tenporary whey
valuation that is to be active from August 1, 2015 to July
31, 2016 preenpts the whey scal e and provi des nore val ue
contribution to the Class 4b mlIk pricing fornula. Both
tabl es shoul d be replaced permanently with the dry whey

val uation scal e proposed by Western United, MPC and CDC
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It is clear that the permanent dry whey val uation
scale found in Section 300(E)(1)(c) fails to track within a
reasonabl e range of the benchmark for whey val uation as
established by the federal Cass IIl pricing formula. In
fact, since January 2012 the California Cass 4b pricing
formul a has averaged $1.72 per hundredwei ght | ess than the
federal Class Il price, alnost entirely because of the
i nferior mechanismused to capture the value of whey. The
proposal fromthe three producer trade associations corrects
this deficiency. And | provided a chart which I wll be
referring to -- a graphic | will be referring to in the rest
of ny testinony.

From the graphic above it is plain to see that the
dry whey scal e proposed by Western United, MPC and CDC is
superior to both the permanent and tenporary scales found in
the Stabilization and Marketing Plans. At dry whey prices
of $0.28 per pound, the Cass 4b price woul d be about the
sanme using either the tenporary dry whey table, which is
represented by the green line, or the proposed table, which
is represented by the blue line. Both tables would give a
hi gher val ue and thus a higher Class 4b price than the
per manent table, which is shown by the red line in the
chart. However, as market prices for dry whey increase, the
difference in the contribution to the C ass 4b pricing

formula grows. For exanple, at dry whey prices of $0.60 per
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pound and using the proposed table, the Cass 4b price would
be $1.72 per hundredwei ght higher than the permanent table
and $0. 46 per hundredwei ght hi gher than the tenporary table.

In a letter to the California dairy industry dated
July 17, 2015, Secretary Ross noted that the inplenentation
of the tenporary scale was done with the idea that the,
" adjustnment will provide a needed increase in revenue to
producers to ensure a stable mlk supply.” Wile the
deci sion was wel conmed by the producer representatives, it
di d not have anywhere near the positive inpact on producer
revenue that was anticipated. Secretary Ross could not have
foreseen how the dry whey market would collapse in the fal
and wi nter of 2015, with market prices alnost half of what
they were just a few nonths earlier. As such, the increase
in the Cass 4b price amounted to an average of |ess than
$0. 04 a hundredwei ght from August 2015 to March 2016; the
expectation was that the C ass 4b price would increase by
nore than ten tine that anount. 1In essence, the drop in the
dry whey prices and the tenporary nature of the C ass 4b
pricing formula adjustnment are unlikely to all ow producers
to realize any neani ngful increase in revenues as envisioned
by Secretary Ross.

An acceptable level of price difference exists for
nost classes of m |k when conparing California mlk prices

to federal order mlk prices. Until recently, the exception
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was the Class 4b and Federal M1k Marketing Order Cass I
price conparison. The tenporary adjustnent inplenented in
August 2015 shoul d have restored sone of the equity in what
California cheese manufacturers are paying for mlk relative
t o conparabl e manufacturers around the country and should
have al so generated nuch-needed additional revenue for
California dairy farmers. To be fair, the gap between the
Class 4b price and the Federal MIk Marketing Order C ass
1l price has closed since the June 2015 heari ng deci sion
was i npl enented. However, the additional revenue for
producers has not materialized.

The proposal submtted by the Dairy Institute of
California contains a significant change to the C ass 4b
mlk pricing fornmula in that the whey contribution to the
Class 4b price is determined by a | ook-up valuation table
built on whey protein concentrate. The rationale offered is
that WPC34 would help, "...to nake the Cass 4b pricing
formul a better reflect the current nmarket situation and to
bal ance the needs of producers and the diverse types of
cheese plants that operate in the state of California.”

The Departnent's background material that was
prepared for this hearing shows that the Dairy Institute
proposal woul d have inproved the Cl ass 4b price by an
average of $0.31 per hundredwei ght from March 2011 to

February 2016 conpared to the pernmanent dry whey val uation
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tabl e. However, the nobst current inpact conparison by the
Departnment, that is to say March 2015 through February 2016,
shows that the Dairy Institute proposal would have resulted
in an average decrease of $0.11 per hundredwei ght conpared
to the permanent table. The Departnent produced no
conpari son of the proposal to the tenporary dry whey scal e
val uation table, which was shown to be superior to the
permanent table in Figure 1 above. | have done nmy own
cal cul ations and for that sane tinme period, March 2015 to
February 2016, the Dairy Institute proposal would have
resulted in an average decrease of $0.42 a hundredwei ght
conpared to the tenporary table. And | amdelighted to note
that my math matches with Ms. AcMbody's math on this one,
smal | segnment of tine.

Wil e the Departnent's Panel Report fromthe June
2015 hearing suggested that a change fromdry whey to WPC34
as the mechanismto determ ne proper valuation for whey in
the Cdass 4b formula nay have sone nerits, the Panel did
rai se some concerns about the ability of cheese plants to
recover any value fromtheir whey stream and the possibility
that the Cass 4b price may start to nove out of sync with
the Federal MIk Marketing Order Class Il price.
Furthernore, the Panel Report enphasized that a change this
large in the mlk pricing fornula should be fully vetted to

verify and validate the use of WPC34 as a representative of
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t he val ue of whey for California cheese plants. The Panel
Report cautioned that before using a new nethod to val ue
whey in the Cass 4b pricing formula, there should be a
t hor ough exam nation of the issue in order to ensure the
needs of producer and processors are bal anced adequately. |
am not aware that even one industry neeting has been called
or held to consider the use of WPC34 as the representative
val ue of whey in the Cass 4b pricing formul a.
Consequently, California Dairies cannot consider supporting
a recomrendation to support (sic) WPC34 for dry whey.

California dairy producers have been faced with a
nunber of chall engi ng obstacles that have resulted in fewer
and fewer new dairies being constructed. The long |ist of
chal | enges has al so encouraged sone dairy producers to
consi der what options may be avail able to them other than
operating a dairy farm Although |ack of water is just one
factor, dairy producers' experiences with a shortage of a
scarce resource have played a role in altering their
busi ness deci sions, which has affected how their businesses
operate. | would Iike to add sone perspective on what |ack
of water has done to the California dairy industry.

It is well-known that despite nore rainfall and
snowpack this year California continues to face a terrible
drought, brought about by four consecutive dry years. Not

surprisingly, the drought has had and will continue to have
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for the near future significant inplications for dairy farns
in California, particularly those that grow sone of their
own feed.

Last year | shared sone exanples of the negative
i npacts of the drought on nmenbers of California Dairies and
their decisions for growing feed for their dairies. Today,
| am providing additional and updated material as
substantiati on of the inpact of the California drought on
dairy farmng. | have four exanples for you

Dairy 1 farns 1,500 acres. Wen obtaining water
to grow crops is not an issue the dairy grows 200 acres of
al falfa, 600 acres of corn and 700 acres of sorghum
However, the drought has altered the planting decision to
i nclude just 200 acres of corn with the renainder of the
ground left unfarmed. Alfalfa and corn take substanti al
anounts of water and cannot tolerate stress very well.

Dairy 2 farns 1,000 acres. Wen obtaining water
to grow crops is not an issue the dairy grows 200 acres of
al falfa and 800 acres of corn. This year, the dairy wll
farmzero acres of alfalfa, zero acres of corn and all 1,000
acres of sorghum And nonentarily |I will discuss the
effects of substituting sorghumas a dairy feed.

Dairy 3 farns 450 acres. Wen obtaining water to
grow crops is not an issue the dairy would farm 50 acres of

al falfa and 400 acres of corn. This year, because of the
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water allocation restrictions, the dairy will farm 350 acres
of sorghum and |l et 100 acres go fallow, unfarned.

Dairy 4 farns 600 acres. Wen obtaining water to
grow crops is not an issue the dairy farns 200 acres of
alfalfa and 400 acres of corn. This year the dairy wll
farm 600 acres of sorghum and zero acres of alfalfa or corn.

Because sorghum has becone an i ncreasingly popul ar
choice for California dairy producers who do grow sone feed,
| would Iike to offer sone explanation as to why dairy
producers are choosi ng sorghumas a substitute crop.
Sorghumis a warm season annual that may be used to produce
silage that is fed to dairy cattle. And when conpared to
corn, sorghumuses |less water and is nore heat- and drought-
tolerant, which is inportant to California dairy producers
when irrigation water is limted. |In general, sorghum has
hi gher concentrations of protein, fiber, lignin and ash but
| oner concentrations of starch conpared to corn sil age.
Wil e sorghum silage is not a replacenent for corn sil age,
it can be successfully used in rations fed to grow ng or
|actating dairy cattle if supplenmented with other higher
energy feeds such as rolled corn. However, given a choice,
wi t hout water restrictions producers would choose corn
si |l age over sorghum sil age.

Dai ry producers may al so choose to suppl enent

dairy rations by adding nore alfalfa hay, which nust be
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brought in fromout of state. The Departnent's background
mat eri al that was prepared for this hearing verifies that
while mlk cowquality alfalfa has dropped in price froma
hi gh poi nt of over $300 per ton, it remains an expensive
suppl enental feed at just over $250 per ton.

We recogni ze that attenpting to establish a mlk
price high enough to erase the historical financial |osses
sust ai ned by dairy producers as a result of years of
i nappropriate whey valuation is problematic. As stated
earlier in nmy testinony, the proposal that we support is
meant to address the singular issue of fair conpensation for
dairy producers for the mlk and its conponents provided to
processors. Said another way, producers are entitled to be
conpensated fairly for the product they produce.

There seens to be a common thene underlying past
heari ng decisions by the Departnent, and that is to say, if
there is a sufficient mlk supply to service m |k processing
plants then there is no need to increase the mlk price. A
corollary to this basic notion is that establishing a higher
mnimmprice will only lead to nore m |k production. It
does not take nuch of an analyst or a historian to concl ude
that managing the State's m |k supply by adjusting m nimm
pricing formulas only occasionally is ineffective and
inefficient. Al of the major cooperatives and sonme of the

proprietary plants arrived at that same conclusion years ago
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and adopted prograns that allocate m |k production shares to
producers based on the ability of the entity to handle its
m |k supply. These prograns are actively nmanaged and can
adjust with market conditions much faster than the
Department can call hearings and institute m |k pricing
changes.

My concl udi ng remarks:

California Dairies supports the whey val uation
proposal submtted by Western United Dairynen, MPC and CDC
and that is to say, California Dairies favors the adoption
of the expanded dry whey val uation table and nmaki ng that
tabl e permanent. The proposal is logical, corrects the
wel | - known deficiency in the Cass 4b mlk pricing formula
and mirrors previous positions taken regardi ng whey
valuation within the Cass 4b mlIk pricing fornula. W urge
the Departnent to adopt the proposal as a neans to bridge
the financial gap fromwhere California mlk prices are
today and where they need to be to prevent further attrition
on the producer side of the California dairy industry.

| would Iike to request the opportunity to file a
post-hearing brief if necessary.

Thank you for your attention. | am happy to
answer any questions you nay have.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: Your request to file a

post-hearing brief is granted.
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Any questions?

MR. SHI PPELHOUTE: I n your opening paragraph you
tal k about how many producer-nenbers you have at CDI. |Is
t hat nunber increasing or decreasing?

DR. ERBA: Decreasing.

MR, SHI PPELHOUTE: And the decrease, is that due
to producers going out of business or are they shipping to
ot her processors, other handlers?

DR. ERBA: Both. For the npbst part they are going
out of business but we do have sone that are | eaving the
cooperative to go another place to market their mlKk.

MR. SHI PPELHOUTE: O her cooperatives, do you know
or proprietary plants?

DR. ERBA: They have left to go to proprietary
pl ants or cooperatives, sonme have gone out of state.

MR. SHI PPELHOUTE: On page 3 of your testinony you
tal k about the proposed whey scal e as being superior. |
assunme your use of the term "superior” nmeans nore noney for
pr oducer s?

DR ERBA: That's correct.

MR. SHI PPELHOUTE: Okay. Just trying to clarify
t he record.

DR ERBA: Yes.

MR. MONSON: | had a followup question to

M . Shi ppel houte's question about the nunber of dairies. |If
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CDFA was to adopt the producers' proposal, what inpact would
that have on dairies exiting the industry or even on
declining m |k production?

DR ERBA: Well | think the trend is toward fewer
farms and it |looks |ike, fromour point of view, less mlKk
bei ng produced, and we have seen that over the |ast couple
of years. | think the hope is that adopting this proposal
will slow both those down and hopefully significantly. |1
really have a hard tinme understanding that adopting this
proposal woul d change things and push it the other direction
where we woul d have an increase in dairy farns and an
increase in mlk production.

| just don't think the economics are there right
now. W |ook at the conpeting interests for scarce
resources and we see that in the past dairy canme out on top
and dairy was a | ogical choice for many of those things,
| abor, land, water. That's not the case right now and our
dairynen realize that. And they have diversified over the
years and | think they' ve experienced good successes in sone
of their farm ng operations. So that pressure is going to
be there for dairy to performor sustain nore | osses on the
producer side.

MR. MONSON: Thank you.

MR. EASTMAN. | have a couple of questions. On

page 4 and 5 of your testinony you gave the exanples of the
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four dairies and their farm ng choices. Are those
hypot heti cal ?

DR ERBA: No, those are --

MR EASTMAN. Those are real dairies?

DR. ERBA: Those are actual nmenbers; what they are
actual ly doing or what they have done or will be doing this
year.

MR. EASTMAN. That's what | thought, | just wanted
to clarify that.

Wth regards to the mlk supply conpared to pl ant
capacity or the demand for m |k by processors in California.
How i s that bal ance | ooking now? W net |ast summer but |
guess we're eight or nine nonths down the road. How does
t hat bal ance | ook according to your view?

DR. ERBA: W tracked this pretty carefully. A
| ot of our, a lot of our budget planning that's done prior
to the year is based on mlk supply. And what we thought
earlier this year when we did this exercise was that we
woul d have a loss in mlk production but we'd still be about
where we thought we would be the |last, say, five or six
years on average, and we haven't had that happen. W are
now at what we call our peak. April is basically our peak.
March/ April tend to be our peak for our co-op. And we are
-- even though last year was not the high water mark we are

still down fromthat, so we have a decreasing trend. Kind
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of our magi ¢ nunber has al ways been, you know, where do we
sit with 50 mllion pounds of mlk produced on a daily
basis? W haven't hit 50 yet this year and we have exceeded
50 quite substantially in years past. Last year we were at
52.5 mllion pounds of production per day and we haven't hit
50 this year. So we are definitely nuch, nmuch | ower than we
were | ast year.

The bal anci ng part you asked about: W' ve got
contracts to supply custoners and we adhere to those
contracts, which nmeans the mlk to do that has to cone out
of our own plants and so even now our plants are running
okay in ternms of capacity. W expect that as the year goes
on and sumer cones in and m |k production drops accordingly
we will not have that m |k supply to run through our own
pl ant and we may have to do sone real hard thinking about
what to do to -- which plant should be operational and which
pl ant shoul d be greatly reduced.

MR. EASTMAN. Is it possible at sonme point in tine
you' |l reach, | guess, a spot where you are just going to
have to either stop shipping mlk to some of your clients in
order to put mlk through your plants or do you think you'l
al ways have the business plan where you' Il attenpt to supply
your clients first, your custoners?

DR. ERBA: | think what we have seen over the past

several years with mlk supply contracts is they have rea

ALL AMERI CAN REPCORTI NG | NC.

(916) 362-2345




© 00 N o o b~ w N P

N RN NN NN R R R R R R R R R
O D W N B O © O N o 00 »h W N R O

108

teeth. So if you are going to sign a contract to supply
mlk then you will be held to the terns of that contract.
And unl ess you can renegotiate the contract then you're
expected to provide by the terns of that contract. So we'll
continue to pull out mlk fromour plants to nake sure that
our customers are supplied. Now in theory, yes, there could
be a point in tine where we do not have enough mlk to do
that but hopefully that's quite a ways down the line, if
ever.

MR. EASTMAN. And then anot her question | had was
regardi ng contracts. They tend to be long-termin nature,
maybe nmeasured in years; is that correct? O are mlk
supply contracts shorter than that?

DR. ERBA: W have, we have all kinds. W have
what we call our spot contracts, which nay be basically one
day's worth, maybe a week's, nmaybe a nonth. | would say
nost of our contracts of the nature that maybe you and |
woul d t hink about are a year in length, maybe two. 1In the
past we used to try to set those up to be a little |onger,
so maybe three or nore years, but anynore because we don't
know our future nearly as well as we did in the past we are
|l ess inclined to make a long-term commtnent to supply mlK.
And we want themto be shorter so we can rethink what our
supply situation mght |ook |ike.

MR. EASTMAN. And then when you're establishing
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your contracts with your custoners are there any cl auses
that allow you to nodify premiumlevels or try to negotiate
prem um | evel s before that contract ends? Because |ots of
times we hear conversations of prem uns and how prem uns
should be a way to entice nore m |k production or get nore
m | kK when necessary but is that possible within the scope of
the way the contracts are set up or how exactly does that
wor k?

DR. ERBA: |1'd say for the nost part, no, unless
it's specified sonehow in the terns of the contract that
there woul d be a period during which during the contract
there may be sone renegotiation. But typically that's not
the way they work. The ternms of the contract, which would
include the premium|evel, are specified for the term of
that contract. Wich is, again, another reason why we have
tended towards shorter contacts than |onger ones, |ately.

MR. EASTMAN: Gotcha. | think I have one nore
guestion. | guess | don't.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: Thank you for your
testinmony, Dr. Erba

DR. ERBA: Thank you.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: M. Paris, will you
pl ease state your full nane and spell your |ast nanme and
state your affiliation for the record, please.

MR PARIS: M nanme is Joe E. Paris, the |last nane
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is P-A-R1-S, and | amtestifying on behalf of Gallo Cattle
Conmpany doi ng busi ness as Joseph Farns Cheese.
Wher eupon,
JCE E. PARIS
Was duly sworn.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: Do you have any witten
statenents or other things you would like to enter into the
record at this tinme?

MR PARIS: Yes, | have a witten statenent and
you have a copy of it.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER. M. Paris, your
statenent, witten statenent, will be Exhibit nunber 40.

(Exhibit 40 was entered into the record.)

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: You may proceed.

MR PARIS: M. Hearing Oficer and Menbers of the
Heari ng Panel :

My name is Joe E. Paris. | ama dairy consultant
representing the Gallo Cattle Conpany doi ng busi ness as
Joseph Farns Cheese. | amresponsible for the mlk and
cream com ng into and out of Joseph Farnms' cheese plant. |
provi de market and other pertinent information to senior
managenent at Gallo on a daily basis. This testinony was
approved by Mchael D. Gallo, CEO of Gallo Cattle Conpany.

Joseph Farns Cheese is |ocated at 10561 West

H ghway 140 in Atwater, California. At this location we
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have the Gallo Cottonwood Dairy and the Gall o cheese plant,
know as Joseph Farns Cheese, as well as Gallo @ obal
Nutrition, a whey processing plant. Two mles east of the
Gall o cheese plant is the Gallo Santa Rita Dairy. Between
the two dairies Gallo mlks approximtely 8,000 cows. W
farm several thousand acres to provide feed for our milKk
Cows.

In 1983 the Joseph Farms cheese plant was built
and over time the plant has been inproved and expanded
continuously. The cheese plant plans to process close to
450 mllion pounds of mlk this year into various cheese
varieties including cheddars, Mnterey Jack, nozzarella
bl ocks and pasta filata. At this tinme, 75 percent of the
m |k that Joseph Farns processes i s bought from outside
suppliers. W concentrate whey fromour own plant and are a
mar ket for concentrated whey or WPC from ot her small plants
in the area. The WPC is processed and dried into whey
protein isolate at the Gallo A obal Nutrition plant, part of
the Gall o conpl ex.

Donestically we sell packaged cheese under the
brand of Joseph Farnms Cheese. Most of this cheese is found
in grocery chains or Walmart and Costco. W al so export
cheese into Mexico, both branded and unbranded. About 40
percent of our cheese is sold as commercial blocks or food

servi ce.
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Gall o has always tried to invest in ways to not
only inprove our efficiency, but in a way to protect the
environment. The Gall o nethane di gester provides
electricity to operate the plant. Wste water fromthe
plant is used to flush the Cottonwood Dairy |anes to a
separator where solids are taken out before the liquid goes
into the digester. Solids are then conposted and used to
fertilize land. This systemcost mllions of dollars to
build and maintain. Gllo dobal Protein is another huge
i nvest ment where we process WPC or whey from our cheese
pl ant and froma few other small cheese plants. Until
recently, much of this whey was being dunped or fed to cows.

| f Joseph Farns Cheese had been required to pay
the 4b price that would result fromthe producer proposal,
none of these inprovenents could have taken place. Joseph
Farms Cheese is a small plant when conpared to many ot her
plants in California and we woul d not have been able to
generate the type of profits to invest in these long-term
sust ai nabl e projects. Wthout profits there are no
i nvest ments.

As nmentioned earlier, Joseph Farnms m | ks
approximately 8,000 cows in two facilities. W certainly
understand the plight of dairynmen in the state of
California. W know what the cost of production is on a

dairy farm and we know about the cost of production in a
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cheese pl ant because we experience it every day. Sone years
t hey both nake nobney and some years they both | ose noney.
Both as dairy producers and cheese plant operators we are at
the nercy of the marketplace. Volatility can be the eneny
and is the eneny of both producer and processors at tines.
Long-term pl anni ng and i nvestnent is needed in order to grow
bot h the producer segnment and the processor segnent of the
dairy industry. |If the proponent's proposal is adopted as
witten it is our opinion that the cheese sector wll
stagnate al nost i mediately. Mediumand small plants wll
no | onger be able to sustain their processing plants.
Producers will find thenselves with fewer markets. The
California market will find itself in pre-1985 position of
having nostly a butter-powder industry. Al of this |
testified to in the hearing held on June 3rd, 2015. Wat is
different today is that the dry whey prices have fallen 63
percent in the last two years and WPC prices have fallen 68
percent at the same tine. However, because of the State of
California' s tenporary price increase enacted in August our
whey cost in m |k have not reduced as nuch. This | eaves
very little margin to manufacture WPl .

Many here have spoken to the disparity between the
Federal Order whey factor and the California systemand we
would i ke to address it as well. For the last eight nonths

California has averaged 12 percent premumto the federal
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order and we have none of the tools to de-pool or avoid the
m ni mum price.

And you' Il see | have a chart in there that was
put together by our Ingredients Director where it shows that
under the old formula that was established in conmparison to
where we are today, the old factor that was established in
2007 under today's conditions would have been a -$0.1233 to
the processor. |In today's tenporary it's a $0.32-plus on
the average for those nonths. And conpared to the whey
factor in the Federal Order Class Ill price, was only
$0. 2864 when you're | ooking strictly at the whey factor.

In fact, the current whey fornula has averaged
$0. 44 per hundredwei ght premiumto the whey factor that was
in place during 2007. The whey factor that the State of
California Hearing Panel for the October 10-11, 2007 hearing
declared in their recommendati ons to the Secretary:

"Based on the Panel's analysis of the hearing

record, the Panel is of the opinion that the
current whey factor in the Cass 4b pricing
formul a has probably caused negative cash flows
for nost California cheese processors during
2007."

In evaluating both the state's tenporary formul a
and the producer group's proposal we need to ask, why are we

| ooking at a fornula that pays even nore than the fornul a

ALL AMERI CAN REPCORTI NG | NC.

(916) 362-2345




© 00 N o o b~ w N P

N NN N NN R R R R R R R R R
O N W N B O © 0 N o 00 »h W N R O

115

that the state admtted isn't economcally viable? The
formula that stated everything to begin with -- The formul a
that started everything to begin with 10 years ago.

How woul d we respond at Joseph Farnms Cheese? One
scenario would be to elimnate much of our outside suppliers
of milk and reduce our cheese sales to fewer custoners
willing to pay higher prices. At the very |least we would
have to elimnate any prem uns or handling charges we
currently pay our suppliers. W would also | ook at
pur chasi ng potential unregulated out-of-state mlk at prices
| ower than California's when it is avail able.

Producers have a tendency to | ook at the M dwest
or the East Coast and feel that they are being deprived of a
fair price. These producers serve an entirely different
mar ket than what we have in California. Because of their
| ocations these areas serve the vast population that runs
fromthe Mdwest to the East Coast and from Maine to
Florida. They can demand hi gher prices for their products
because they are the source area for the East and the Sout h.
Much of California' s production services not only the Wst
Coast popul ation but also Mexico and the export market.
These export markets, including Mexico, cannot pay the
prices that would be needed to offset the increased cost of
the whey factor. Mexico is currently inporting cheese from

Europe and Cceania at prices bel ow California-produced
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cheese. The European price was $1.3150 and the Cceania
price was $1.1566 | ast week. The GDT price on April 5th was
$1. 26 per pound of cheese. |ndependent fam |y operated

pl ants such as Joseph Farns cannot receive export subsidies
i ke cooperative cheese plants from Cooperatives WrKking
Together. Al of this is putting pressure on Joseph Farns'
cheese export sales including sales into Mexico, one of our
maj or sal es areas.

Even in the energing markets, incomes will not
al l ow any chance for profits or gromh. W know that any
time the market price of cheese is greater than $1.90 per
pound, cheese sales to Mexico cone alnost to a standstill.
Over $2.00 cheese greatly reduces the market in Mexico and
sl ows sal es of our cheese here in the West.

In addition to that we are seeing our costs of
doi ng busi ness forever increase in the state of California
with a $15 mi ni rum wage being the newest exanple. In this
envi ronment any additional cost added onto our nmargins wl|
make us re-think our business nodel. Specifically, we are
being offered mlk fromout of state at a discount and as
costs rise in California this my becone one of our new
nor mal procurenents.

In the Federal M|k Marketing Orders, plants are
all owed to de-pool and there are no mininmumpricing | aws

that require a m ni num paynent for de-pooled mlIk. Due to
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| arge increases in mlk production in other parts of the
country it has been reported that m |k has been purchased by
M dwest cheese plants for as nuch as $7.00 per hundredwei ght
bel ow minimumregul ated prices. In California it is
unlawful to pay less than the regulated price unless the

m | k does not neet the G ade A standards of quality and mlKk
i s degraded.

Let ne pause fromny witten statenents and say
this: At Gallo we purchase nothing but Gade Amlk. On the
Joseph Farns |abel it says 'Made from G ade A mlk only' so
we do not have the ability to purchase a G ade B or degraded
mlk in our plant.

Many of the plants in the Upper M dwest have mnuch
| oner overhead costs due to regulations that have absol utely
nothing to do with mlk. Many of the plants are nediumto
smal | and process specialty cheeses. Sone are able to buy
manufacturing grade mlk at a reduced cost on a regul ar
basis. In the |ast several years we have seen | arge
cooperative cheese plants closed in California due to the
| osses under the current pricing system Industry runors
say that another cooperative cheese plant in California my
cl ose soon.

Joseph Farns Cheese is opposed to the producers
proposal as it is witten. The sliding scale for whey would

elimnate any profits for investnent into new technol ogi es
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that would add value to the 4b mlk. For sonme plants it
woul d nean cl osure. For others, it mght nean a conpl ete
change in the way they do business, including the anount of
m |k that they could purchase. | know of cheese plants that
have planned to add additional cheese-nmaki ng equi pment or
whey processing equi pnment that would not be able to neet
that plan due to dramatically increased mlk costs. The
cost of rawmlk in a cheese plant can be as nuch as 85
percent or nore of its total cost. Adding the average of
the last five years of $1.38 per hundredweight to the
current 4b price will make California processors greatly
di sadvant aged to cheese processors in surroundi ng states
such as Washi ngton, Oregon, U ah and |Idaho. Idaho and U ah
are not price regul ated under any state or federal order.
Joseph Farns Cheese supports the principles of the
Dairy Institute proposal and particularly the concept of
nmovi ng the whey pricing fromthe dry whey to the whey
protein concentrate, WPC, a much nore nmarket-oriented price
today. It recognizes a value for the whey that is always
positive and has a reasonable cap. It also generates a
revenue streamthat is sustainable and in line with the
State of California's own paynent ability analysis: a
$0. 3099 whey neke all owance and a yield factor of |ess than
5.8. It is inportant that the factor step up at the |evel

| ess than 5.8 because based on the Departnent's panel report
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fromthe Cctober '07 hearing it said:

"At the tinme the Departnent incorporated the
current whey factor into the formula, the
Department | acked data or analysis to determne a
dry whey yield appropriate to California. Now,
the statements fromw tnesses and the Panel's
revi ew of Departnental data strongly suggest that
the 5.8 yield is overstated.”

The Dairy Institute proposal is also based on whey
products that are produced in California. It is our
understanding that there are no nore than two plants in
California that is currently drying whey. Mst whey product
pricing is related to the WPC price rather than the dry whey
market. It is the opinion of Gallo that the scale used in
the Dairy Institute's proposal is still too high for snal
to medi um cheese plants, although it may be all right for
very large, newer, efficient plants. @llo is concerned
that the inplenmentation of the producers' proposal wll
force the closure of several small to nedium size cheese
plants, including Gallo's. This will result in |ess
processing capacity in the state and nore producer mlKk
seeking a market. Over the years we have had many
"tenporary" adjustments that make it difficult to make | ong-
termplans in processing. W support the Dairy Institute

proposal as a permanent whey factor.

ALL AMERI CAN REPCORTI NG | NC.

(916) 362-2345




© 00 N o o B~ w N P

N NN N NN R PR R R R R R R R
O N W N B O © 0 N o 00 M W N R O

120

State or federally regulated m Ik prices should be
m ni mum prices based on the best nmarket-oriented criteria
and shoul d not be changed every few years. Producers have
the right to negotiate higher prices than the state m ni nuns
based on the individual plant's ability to pay above the
regul ated price. Joseph Farns Cheese pays its suppliers
based on a service charge, cheese yields, quality and ot her
incentives to provide Gallo with high quality mlk. W
would i ke to be able to continue such prograns that
increase the returns to the m |k producer.

We believe that this hearing has been called at
this time not only to continue or nake permanent the
tenporary whey factor but because of |ow producer prices due
totally to global marketing forces. Tenporary price relieve
shoul d be borne by all classes of m |k, not just the cheese
and whey plants. This extension of the tenporary whey
factor is patently unfair to the cheese processors and
capricious on its head.

W want to thank the Secretary, Hearing Oficers
and Panel for this opportunity to testify in this inportant
hearing and we woul d like to request a post-hearing brief.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: Your request to have a
post-hearing brief is granted.

Questions?

MR, MONSON: | had a question, M. Paris. On page
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one of your testinmony you tal k about sourcing liquid whey
fromsmall cheese pl ants.

MR PARI'S: Yes.

MR. MONSON: | was wondering if you could comrent
on how you guys agree on a price for that product. Is it
based on WPC34 and specifically what's published in the
Dai ry Market News?

MR. PARI'S: Yes. Today nost of what we purchase
is based on what the Central West WPC34 price is fromDairy
Mar ket News. Years ago we did use a whey factor but we've
gotten away fromthat because the WPC price is nuch nore
mar ket oriented for the products that we make and for the
products they sell.

MR, MONSON: And | think you referenced -- is
there like a certain percentage off of that price that you
guys use as a rule of thunb?

MR. PARIS: There is a fornula that we have put
t oget her that we use when we negotiate with these plants.

MR. MONSON: Ckay, thank you.

MR PARIS: |I'mnot going to get into it.

MR. MONSON: No problem Thank you.

MR. SHI PPELHOUTE: You nentioned that you woul d
| ook at purchasi ng potential unregul ated out-of-state mlKk.

MR PARI'S: NMm hnmm

MR. SHI PPELHOUTE: And you al so nmenti oned
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sonewhere |ater that that has been offered.

MR PARIS: Yes. W had soneone in our office
here within the last nmonth, nonth and a half, that has
of fered sone out-of-state mlk when it becones avail abl e.

MR SHI PPELHOUTE: And how often is that
avai | abl e?

MR PARIS: At this point I don't know. W have
not purchased any at this point but believe at sone point in
time there may be that offer. There was opportunity a
coupl e of nonths ago when a large plant up in U ah had shut
down because of a coll apsed roof. That has been taken care
of and that m |k is not avail abl e today.

MR, SHI PPELHOUTE: So |I'm just thinking around the
area surrounding or the states surrounding California and
what plants and what |'ve heard of narketing conditions and
mlk supply. Aside fromthat exanple you nentioned where
there was a plant breakdown where woul d the cl osest supply
of out-of-state mlk come fromthat would be a consistent
supply for Gll o?

MR PARIS: | don't know that there right nowis a
consi stent supply out there.

MR SHI PPELHOUTE: That's all | have.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: Thank you for your
testimony, M. Paris.

M . Eddi nger. Eddi nger.
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M. Eddinger, will you please state your ful
name, spell your last name and state your affiliation for
the record, please.

MR. EDDINGER Sure. M nane is Edward M
Eddi nger, the last nanme is EED-DI-NGE-R, and | am
affiliated with the Al ouette Cheese Conpany.

Wher eupon,
EDWARD EDDI NGER
Was duly sworn.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: Do you have any witten
statenents or other things you would like to enter into the
record at this tinme?

MR EDDINCER Yes, | would like to enter into the
record the witten statement which | gave to you a few
nonents ago.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: Ckay. The witten
testimony will now be received as Exhibit nunber 41 and you
may proceed.

(Exhibit 41 was entered into the record.)

MR. EDDI NGER: Thank you. Thank you to the
menbers and thank you for taking the opportunity to hear ny
testi nony today.

As stated, ny nane is Edward Eddinger. | amthe
Dai ry Procurenent Manager for Al ouette Cheese USA. M

responsi bilities include buying dairy raw nmaterials, such as
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mlk, for three Alouette cheese plants which are located in
New Hol | and, Pennsylvania, Lena, Illinois and City of

| ndustry, California. W enploy about 350 people at al

t hese | ocations and we produce gournmet cheese spreads, soft-
ri pened cheeses, goat cheese and cream cheese. The plant in
City of Industry, California - which we also call the Fleur
De Lait West facility - produces cream cheese for retail,
industrial and food service custonmers in the Western hal f of
the US. In addition, it supports a grow ng cream cheese
export business fromthis particular |ocation.

In terns of the proposals offered for changing the
4b m Ik price fornmula, our preference is to continue the
exi sting whey pricing scale for another 12 nonths. Al ouette
opposes the proposal from California Dairy Canpaign, MIKk
Producers Council and Western United Dairynen to
dramatically increase the 4b m Ik price for reasons that |
will explain in ny testinony.

Unfortunately, the liquid whey fromour cream
cheese production is acid whey and not only has no value to
us; but we incur a cost of between $250, 000 or nore per year
to di spose of the byproduct as aninmal feed. Unlike other
cheese plants, we do not have the ability to dry the whey to
make a marketabl e product. For our plant, whey has a
negati ve value. Therefore, any val ue above zero that is

pl aced on whey in the 4b formula is value that we cannot
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extract fromthe whey stream This is simlar to other
smal | cheese plants around the state that produce sweet
whey. The net result to our business is higher raw materi al
costs and lower margins, as it would be difficult to pass
any of these price increases proposed by the producer
groups. In addition, we cannot determ ne exactly what this
i mpact would be given the volatile nature of whey prices
over time. But what we do know is this proposal would have
a harnful inpact to our business.

The plant in Gty of Industry needs to maintain a
cost structure that is conpetitive with other conpani es but
al so is conpetitive with our other Alouette plant in
Pennsylvania. |If the mlk cost in California increases
relative to other parts of the country, it has a direct and
negati ve inpact on our conpetitiveness versus ot her
suppliers of cream cheese, particularly ones in nearby
states, which we conpete against. This could lead to
reduced margins to maintain conpetitiveness or |osing sales
due to higher prices than our conpetitors. Neither of these
out cones, of course, help grow our business and use nore
California mlk. In addition, if the plant volunmes are not
growi ng, future investnments will not be forthcom ng as we
deploy limted capital resources to other plants.

In summary, we support maintaining the current 4b

mlk price fornula. W already |ose over $250, 000, which
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have stated, in disposing of our whey. | would just pause
for a nonent to say that we are | ooking at other options and
we are always open to suggestions on how to di spose of whey
at reduced cost but we have not found any at this tinme. An
increase in our raw material mlk costs wthout a
corresponding gain in revenue will negatively inpact our
margi ns and profitability. Therefore, we strongly oppose
the proposal fromCalifornia Dairy Canpaign, MIk Producers
Council and Western United Dairynmen. Wile not our
preference, we can support the Dairy Institute proposal when
vi ewed as a conprom se despite the negative financial inpact
we woul d experi ence.

| thank you again for the opportunity to testify
here today and would like to file a post-hearing brief if
necessary. And | wel cone any questions you may have. Thank
you.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: Your request to file a
post-hearing brief is granted.

Any questions fromthe panel ?

MR. MONSON: Thank you for your testinony,
M. Eddinger. | had a question just to clarify for the
record. Wen you say you want to continue the existing whey
pricing scale are you referring to the tenporary one that is
currently in place or the permanent one that was in place

prior to that?
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MR. EDDI NGER: The one that is currently in place
that was enacted June of |ast year.

MR. MONSON: Ckay. And you are supporting
continuing that on a tenporary basis for another 12 nonths?

MR. EDDI NCER Yes, that is correct.

MR. MONSON: Ckay, thank you for that
clarification.

MR. EDDI NGER:  Thank you.

MR. EASTMAN. | have one question. You nention
that there is a net cost to disposing of your whey so |
assunme that is just because whatever processing or
transportation costs associ ated are hi gher than whatever
revenue you get fromselling it. Do you receive any revenue
at all?

MR. EDDI NGER: W do not receive any revenue at
all. Qur current situation, we have an agreenent for
sonebody to cone in; we pay themto take it out and really
di spose of it or use it, sell it off as their own. W are
not getting any funds at all for it right now.

MR. EASTMAN. Thank you.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: Thank you for your
t esti nony.

MR. EDDI NGER:  Thank you.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER:  Speci al provi sions have

been nade to all ow wi tnesses presenting three mnute
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testinmony or less. There is a sign-up sheet in the back of
the room After lunch, after the first couple of presenters
we wll take those three mnute testinonies.

Ri ght now we are going to go to lunch and we w ||
reconvene at one o' cl ock.

M. Dryer, you will be up first.

(OFf the record at 12:06 p.m)

(On the record at 1:04 p.m)
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AFTERNOON SESSI ON

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: (Ckay, let's go on the
record. It is now 1:04.

| would i ke to take this opportunity to announce
that the opportunity to submt a post-hearing brief
anplifying, explaining or withdrawi ng your testinony is
granted for all witnesses who request a post-hearing brief
period. In order for the brief to be considered the
Department nust receive the brief by Monday, April 18th, by
4:00 p.m The brief nmay be e-namiled to dairy@dfa.ca.gov or
submtted to the Departnent's branch office | ocated at 2800
Gateway Oaks Drive, Sacranento, California, 95833. The

brief may al so be faxed to area code 916-900-5341.

So we will now proceed with the public testinony
section and our first witness will be M. Dryer.
And al so, after the next two witnesses we will do

the three mnute testinony so please sign up if you are
interested in that.

M. Dryer, will you please state your full nane,
spel |l your last nanme and state your affiliation for the
record.

MR. DRYER. Full name is Geg Dryer, DR Y-E-R
and | amw th Saputo Cheese USA Inc.

Wher eupon,

GREG DRYER
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Was duly sworn.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: Do you have any witten
statenents or other things you would like to enter into the
record?

MR DRYER | do, which | have distributed and
woul d |ike that to be introduced.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: The witten testinony of
M. Dryer will be entered and will be Exhibit nunber 42.

(Exhibit 42 was entered into the record.)

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: You may proceed.

MR. DRYER. Thank you.

My name is Greg dryer. | am Senior Vice President
of Industry and Governnment Rel ations for Saputo Cheese USA
Inc. Qur company, Saputo Inc., operates seven facilities in
the state of California. W enploy nore than 1,500 people
here and purchase a substantial portion of the state's mlKk
production both directly fromfarmers and from farmer
cooperatives. W are very famliar with conditions in other
regi ons fromour experience operating 21 facilities in 10
ot her states.

| am here to testify in support of the Dairy
Institute of California s proposal to replace the permanent
whey scale with one based on the value of liquid WC34. W
oppose an extension of the tenporary whey scale, but if an

extension is granted we ask that it be limted to a period
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not to exceed six nonths. Six nore nonths is approximately
ni ne and one half nonths from now and nmakes the entire
duration 18 nonths. Anything further could not reasonably
be deenmed "Tenporary."

Wrld Dairy Situation

The dairy recession is not a California problem
Dairy farners all over the world are facing the chall enge of
| ow prices. Those |low prices have been driven primarily by
over - producti on.

|*ve included a chart here that shows the seven
maj or dairy exporting countries and their production
relative to prior year for recent nonths.

How i s the problem being dealt with around the
worl d? In Europe, the limted assistance the governnent is
providing is funded from general tax revenues while the
mar ket continues to function uninpeded. |In New Zeal and, the
government has elected not to intervene and the farnmers are
feeling the full brunt of the najor decline in market
prices. Again the market is allowed to function. The
market is allowed to function despite the fact the mlKk
price crisis facing those two major dairy regions is far
worse than the one that exists here in the United Sates.
Those governnents recogni ze that the market does and w ||
prevail .

We have a strong donestic nmarket that insulates us
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to sonme degree against conditions inpacting the rest of the
wor | d.

And here |'ve included a chart showi ng US cheese
commer ci al di sappearance growth in recent nonths versus the
long-termtrend. As you can see it's been quite strong.

And t hen underneath that a chart show ng Farngate
m |k prices around the world, China, Netherlands, New
Zeal and and the US and it shows the US AlIl MIk Price is
wel | above our conpetitors from Europe and New Zeal and.

But here in California, when producer margins cone
under pressure, the solution sought tine and tine and tine
again is to petition the governnment to require cheesenakers
to pay a higher price than the market will bear. In effect,
this suggested sol ution would subtract fromone group's
probl em and sinply add it on another's.

If the current trend of declining mlk production

in California continues, the price of mlk will inevitably
rise. It won't, however, rise to the |level of the Federal
Order price. It will only rise to the point that

cheesemakers can continue to justify maintaining their

i nvestment here, given those economcs that are specific to
operating in California. |If the governnment mandates a price
above that benchmark, demand for mlk will inevitably
decline as cheese plant reduce or cease their production

here. Wth cheese representing 46 percent of California's
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mlk market, it is possible that the farners woul d be unabl e
to sell all their mlk and could well be worse off than they
were before. The market is oblivious to m |k production
costs or cheese plant profitability. It is relentless in
its pursuit of equilibrium like flow ng water seeking a
place to settle. Efforts to circunvent it only delay the

i nevi table.

California' s 4b \Wey Factor.

This hearing is comng at a tine when nost if not
all cheesenakers are not covering the costs on their whey
byproducts. The chart bel ow shows the novenent of whey
product market prices since 2014.

And for those of you that don't see it | have
2014, '15 and ' 16 represented for WPC80, 34, Dry Wey and
Lactose. And basically all those prices over that period of
time are down in excess of 60 percent.

Despite negative returns on whey, cheese
processors continue to pay producers a mlk price that
i ncorporates a positive whey contribution. That distorts
the reality.

The current Tenporary California Cass 4b Wey
Factor effective August 1st, 2015 through July 31st, 2016
has exceeded the federal whey factor for four of the seven
nmonths since it was inplenented. |In fact, on average, it

has exceeded the federal factor for the entire period.
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Not wi t hst andi ng those facts, we are here once again to
consi der extending or even increasing the California Wey
Fact or.

And there again the chart shows -- the blue bars
are the tenporary California price and the reddi sh or
orangi sh bars are the federal price - so you can see which
are higher and lower - and then the dotted |ines show the
average over the whol e period.

Transporting of Wey.

Under end- product pricing, whey make al |l owances
remai n rel evant to any di scussion revol ving around the
appropriate value to assign whey in the pricing of mlKkK.
Cali fornia abandoned that type of whey pricing in Decenber
2007 when the high dry whey price created a crisis for the
state's cheesenakers. But all the adjustnments and debates
that have since followed have centered on a conpari son of
the California whey factor to that of USDA. The whey nake
al | omance remains a key variable in the federal whey factor
so it nmust be deened pertinent to this debate.

Whey make al | owances assune that 100 percent of
whey solids are recovered and processed on site in the form
of dry whey. There is no provision for whey hauling. That
logic is flawed. Wiether hauling is paid for by the
shi pping plant or the receiving plant is irrelevant. It is

pat of the cost of whey processing. Snmall to medium sized
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plants are unable to justify the investnment in whey
processing. They are forced to transport the whey to those
processors who will accept it or dispose of it at a cost.
Transporting whey erodes much of its value given the high
wat er content. This transportation cost issue is not just
limted to small operators. Saputo in California, for
exanpl e, has centralized whey processing in one major
facility. Over half of the whey processed there is shipped
at a substantial cost fromfour other Saputo facilities.
Movi ng whey 100 miles or nore virtually elimnates the
potential to generate a profit fromit. The federal nake
al | omance does not provide for the cost of transporting
whey.

|'ve included a little table there that shows the
cost per pound of whey solids for shipping whey at various
di stances. So you can see -- and it's based on a rul e of
t hunmb of cost per loaded mle of $3 for hauling liquid
refrigerated product and an assunption of 50,000 pounds per
load. And it uses a 6.5 percent factor for whey solids,
which is conservative, because that's a fairly high solids
nunber. But you can see for 100 mles the cost is $0.092
per pound of solids.

So today the whey market is bel ow $0.25, $0. 245,
whatever. The |ast California whey nmake all owance in 2007

was approxi mately $0.27. Mnufacturing studies since then
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have indi cated those costs have gone up substantially. But
a $0. 245 val ue of whey, $0.27 make al |l owance, you are
al ready | osing $0.02, $0.025 a pound. And when you add the
cost of transporting whey, for instance, if you haul it 100
mles. Say half of your whey is hauled 100 mles so that's
$0. 092, half of that is $0.045. Now you're |osing $0.06.

And then to add insult to injury, in California
we' re payi ng $0. 385 per hundredwei ght of mlk for the val ue
of whey that we're already |osing noney on. So $0.385 of
mlk is about $0.065 per pound of whey. So now we're up to
$0. 13 basically | oss on whey, which equates to about $0.80 a
hundr edwei ght of mlk. Just to give you a little
perspective on what the whey situation is today.

In 2012, a consortium of Wsconsin industry
| eaders, known as the Wsconsin Whey Qpportunities Wrking
Group, collaborated to survey the vol une and processing of
cheese whey in Wsconsin. The working group included: The
US Departnent of Agriculture National Agricultural
Statistics Service, University of Wsconsin - Mdison
Col |l ege of Agricultural and Life Sciences, Wsconsin Center
for Dairy Research, Wsconsin Cheese Makers Associ ati on,
W sconsin Departnment of Agriculture, Trade and Consuner
Protection, Wsconsin Econom c Devel opment Cor poration and
the Wsconsin M|k Marketing Board.

O the 125 plants they surveyed, half did not
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process their whey at all and 72 percent shipped their whey
inliquid formto other plants for further processing.

The Wsconsin study is relevant to California
because W sconsin has many nore whey processing options for
cheese conpani es than does California. It gives an
i ndi cation of the extent to which whey nust be transported
before it is ultimately dried in some form It clearly
denonstrates sonme of the nmajor shortconmngs in the federa
whey factor. Many plants concentrate the whey prior to
shi ppi ng, not because there is a significant econom c
benefit, but because it is logistically inpossible for
shi pping and receiving facilities to handl e the nunber of
trucks required to carry that volune of dilute Iiquid.
Transportation savings fromthe reduced nunber of
concentrated | oads are alnost entirely offset by the cost of
installing and operating concentration systens. Those
operating costs include energy, nenbrane repl acenent,
cl eaning chem cals, waste treatnment and | abor, anong ot hers.
A whey processor's cost savings fromreceiving a
concentrated product at the whey processing plant are
negli gi bl e at best.

Not all whey is processed.

The federal whey nake all owance assunes that 100
percent of the cheese whey solids are recovered and

processed on site in the formof dry whey. The Anerican
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Dairy Products Institute publishes an annual report call ed,
"Dairy Products Utilization and Production Trends." It
contains a schedule which attenpts to account for all whey
solids produced called "Estimated U. S. Fluid Wey & Wey
Solids Production (by Type) and Resulting Quantity of Wey
Solids Further Processed."” That schedule which follows this
par agr aph accounts for just 53 percent of whey solids in
2014, the nost recent year reported. Wiile the accuracy of
that estimate may be debatable, it clearly denonstrates the
fallacy of the assunption that all whey solids are captured
and sold. Also, of the whey solids that are processed and
sold, many are not sold profitably.

And you can, you know, look at the table. It's
basically cal cul ati ng an esti mated anount of whey being
generated across the United States and then how nmuch is
bei ng processed into the various categories such as dry whey
for human and ani mal use, WPC, other concentrated whey
solids; and it conmes down to a nunber for 2014 of 53 percent
of all whey solids.

Dry whey is not a good baroneter of the val ue of
whey to cheesenakers.

The USDA Class |1l dry whey factor has been held
up as sone kind of gold standard for cal cul ati ng whey's
contribution to the value of mlk. The fact is that the dry

whey price is an inherently bad predictor of the val ue of
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whey to nost cheesenakers. Very few have the desire or the
requi site economc justification to produce dry whey.
Nat i onal dry whey production has been declining for years at
the sane tinme cheese producti on has been increasing.
California has just one plant that consistently dries whey.

The USDA theory has been that dry whey is well
suited to serve as the | owest conmon denom nator in a
formul a designed to establish the m nimumvalue for mlKk.
Wiile that may be true at tines, it is far fromtrue nmuch of
the tine. Mst cheesemakers who are able to process their
whey have chosen to make sonme form of concentrated whey
pr ot ei n.

And here |'ve included a chart showi ng the trend
for whey protein concentrates in all forms, production
versus dry whey. Dry whey is declining at a conpound annual
growh rate of -3.3 percent, whereas WPC i s increasing at
6.1 percent.

It is not practical for those processors to build
in an "either/or" capability. That is, to be able to switch
bet ween dry whey and WPC dependi ng on whi ch happens to be
nost profitable at the monent. |In the production of whey
protein concentrate, between 70 and 90 percent of the whey
solids are separated fromthe true protein, depending on the
protein concentration of the WPC produced.

And just to expand on that, if you nake WPC34,
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roughly 30 percent of the solids are recovered in a higher
val ue protein product, 70 percent go to the | ower val ue

| actose alternative product, which nust be dealt with, you
know, sonetinmes at a profit, sonetinmes at a substantia

| oss. As you increase the protein concentration those
nunbers change. For WPCB0 it's probably 12 percent is
recovered in the high value product and 88 percent in the

| act ose perneate kind of product. So there's quite a range
t here depending on the concentration of protein in the

fini shed product.

So back to -- between 70 and 90 percent of the
whey solids are separated fromthe true protein, depending
on the protein concentration of the WPC produced. Those
solids are referred to as "l actose perneate.” The
production of dry whey captures 100 percent of the solids.
there is no | actose perneate byproduct. Wen the price for
dry whey is high, 100 percent of the solids, including those
| act ose perneate solids, return that sanme high value. Wen
maki ng WPC, the | actose perneate byproduct nust be dealt
with. It can either be further processed into |actose,
dried as de-proteinized whey, sold as liquid feed or
di sposed of .

Producing lactose is no walk in the park. it
t akes between 1.6 and 1.9 pounds of perneate solids to

produce 1.0 pound of sal eable |actose. The byproduct of
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| act ose production, known as "nother liquor", captures 40 to
50 percent of the perneate solids and is a very high
strength waste product and an environnmental nightmare.
De-proteinized whey is difficult and costly to dry given its
| ow solids content - it's lower in solids than whol e whey -
and high concentration of lactose. Wile costing nore to
produce, it typically returns a |lower value than dry whey
because of this drastically lower protein content. Selling
| actose perneate as liquid feed requires concentrating the
solids and nost often returns |ess than the cost of
concentrating. Disposal of perneate is a very costly
undertaking if at all possible given environnental
constraints.

Consi der a manufacturer of WPC34. At that
concentration, roughly 30 percent of the whey solids are
converted to a saleable protein product. To equate then
with dry whey, the price of WPC34 nust be 3.33 tines, or 1
di vided by 30 percent, that of dry whey if you assune the
ability to break even in disposing of the | actose perneate.
Following is a chart conparing the National Dairy Product
Sal es Report dry whey price with the WPC4 mar ket di vi ded by
3.33. | the past five-plus years the dry whey price is
al ways hi gher.

So you can see the blue line is the dry whey

mar ket and the red line is the WPC di vided by 3.33; and
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there's a gap, a substantial gap at tinmes between those.

That means you nust be able to generate a profit
on | actose perneate sufficient to overcone the price
differential to afford what the federal order whey fornul a
adds to your cost of mlk. Even for the nost efficient
| arge scal e processors that is not feasible much of the
tinme.

Dry whey does not correlate well with other whey
alternatives. It tends to followtrends in the feed
i ndustry rather than those affecting the food industry.
Those two can easily fall out of sync. Following are charts
that plot dry whey and WPC34 prices agai nst that of nonfat
dry mlk since 2001. The correlation of dry whey with
nonfat dry milk is very poor, with an R’ factor of .6347
while the RR for WPC34 is nuch better at .8054. Uilizing
WPC34 value in the Cass 4b whey factor could prevent crises
i ke that of 2007 when the West dry whey market exceeded
$0.80 per pound. It is nore representative of the val ue
obt ai nabl e by those fortunate enough to find an outlet for
their |iquid whey.

You can see the scatter charts and the trend |ines
and the dispersion of dots on the two charts and how much
closer alignnent there is with WPC34 and nonfat. And it
stands to reason, WPC34 is mmcking the protein content of

mlk soit's nore closely associated with m |k and has nore
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alternative uses as an alternative to m|Kk.

Make Al | owances.

The current Federal M1k Marketing O der whey nmake
allowance in the Cass IIl formula is $0.1991. It hasn't
changed since it was inplenmented in Cctober 2008, over seven
years ago. The data used in the allowance cane froma 2007
heari ng, which had relied on even older 2005 data. In
Novenber 2007, the last California C ass 4b whey nake
al |l owance was $0.2670 per pound, $0.0679 per pound hi gher
than the Federal M|k Marketing Order. That was based on a
manuf act uri ng cost study result of $0.2673 in 2004. For
2005 the study yielded $0.2851 and 2006 produced $0.3099.

To argue now for the adoption of a federal whey factor or
its equivalent is sinply a transparent attenpt at a maj or
price increase wthout any substantiation. California costs
are substantially higher.

California is unique.

The fundamental issue in this and all these
hearings is that the situation in California is unique to
California. Costs are higher here. Farns and plants are
bi gger here. Regulation is nore intensive here. The
di stance to nmarkets is greater here. California, given its
importance to dairy, warrants its own mlk pricing system
If California instead insists on joining the federal system

it my well end up serving as the point of reference for the
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rest of the country rather than the opposite. Dr. Mark
St ephenson testified the following at the recent federal
order hearing:
"The concern with a California Federal Mk
Mar keting Order is that our current product price
formulas may not set the Class IIl mninumprice
| ow enough to allow the western markets to cl ear
on a regular basis. Higher transportation costs
and additional surplus m |k supplies suggest that
the conpetitive price difference between the ngjor
cheese producing regions of the country has grown.
Two sol utions present thensel ves to assure orderly
mar kets. "
HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER:  Excuse ne, M. Dryer.
Can you kind of wap it up?
MR DRYER Ch, I'msorry. | didn't realize | was
going on that |ong, sorry.
Basically, Stephenson is recomrendi ng that we have
a western regional price rather than a |ower national price
servi ce.
To summarize: Low prices is the result of a gl oba
m | k i nmbal ance not unique to California.
The US has been inpacted because of reduced
exports.

Whey prices down significantly, 60 percent down,
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so the whey profits that were once there to bolster mlk
prices are no longer. California producers have been
receiving nore than the federal order whey factor since the
tenporary whey scale went into effect. Realistically, the
mlk price in California will remain | ower than the federa
price unless the state's operating cost structure change,

t he export market beconmes nore lucrative than the donestic
one, or the industry downsizes to nmatch the demand from j ust
the Western region.

California lost 32 farns in 2015, 2.18 percent of
the total. In '"14 it was 26 farns, 1.74 percent.
Nationally, 2.7 percent of farns were lost in '15 and 3.5 in
"14. California has been well bel ow the national average.
It ranked 34th and 30th in farm| osses anong the 50 states
according to USDA statistics. So if the situation for dairy
producers in California is untenable, then what nust it be
for the majority of other states |losing nore farns
per cent age-w se?

We manufacture cheese in California because we
want to. Qur custonmers buy their products because they want
to. Cooperatives and farmers sell their mlk to us because
they want to. That is how the free market functions. But
this debate is about seeking a price that cheesenmakers nust
pay because they have to. That is not how a free market

operates and the market will always prevail in the end.
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We support the proposal fromthe Dairy Institute
and we think the cooperative proposal should be rejected.
It was rejected in the past and -- I"'mtrying to wap up.

That's all | had. Thank you for the opportunity
to testify and | request the permission to file a post-
hearing brief if warranted.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: Your request to file a
post-hearing brief is granted.

Questions fromthe panel ?

MR. EASTMAN. Actually, | had nore of a request
than a first question, which actually to put it in a post-
hearing brief would probably work out better. 1In a |ot of
t he graphs, especially at the beginning of your testinony,
there's not really a source of where the data cane from

MR. DRYER  Ckay.

MR. EASTMAN. Is it possible for you to go ahead
and let us know the --

MR. DRYER: Certainly.

MR EASTMAN. -- source of the data for all of
the, sort of the figures. You may be able -- when it cane
to the freight costs | realized what you were doing there,
you ki nd of expl ained that so that worked.

MR. EASTMAN. Maybe through shake of head. You
were referencing in the mddle a study done in Wsconsin and

it appears that Dr. Schiek in his testinony submtted as one
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of the appendices the study itself; is that correct?

MR DRYER | believe so.

MR. EASTMAN. Ckay. Maybe we're all shaki ng our
heads "yes" so that's good. So that makes sense.

And then towards the end of the testinony you have
a plot point and a sinple regression where you're conparing
dry whey to nonfat dry mlk and WPC34 to nonfat dry m K.

s it possible for you to report either a standard error, a
t-statistic to show the statistical significant of the
coefficients that are estinmated in both of those

regr essi ons?

MR. DRYER: Certainly.

MR. EASTMAN. Ckay. | think that's really what |
had.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: Thank you for your
testimony, M. Dryer.

MR. DRYER. Thank you.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: M. Hol | on.

M. Hollon, will you please state your full nane,
spel |l your last nanme and state your affiliation for the
record, please.

MR. HOLLON: |I'mElvin Hollon, E-L-V-I-N, HOL-L-
ON and | amVice President of Fluid Marketing and Econom c
Anal ysis for Dairy Farners of Anerica, Inc. | think those

were the two questions.
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HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER That's it, yes.

Wher eupon,
ELVI N HOLLON
Was duly sworn.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: M. Hol lon, do you have
any witten statenments or other things that you would |ike
to enter into the record at this tinme?

MR HOLLON: | have a witten statenent and three
attachnments to go with it, which | have circulated to the
heari ng panel .

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: The witten testinony of
M. Hollon is now going to be Exhibit nunber 43 and you may
proceed.

(Exhibit 43 was entered into the record.)

MR HOLLON: | amElvin Hollon, Vice President of
Fluid Marketing and Econom c Analysis for Dairy Farners of
Anerica, Inc., DFA. On March 22, 2016, the DFA Western Area
Council, whom | am representing, unani nously approved the
position that | will be presenting today. Qur nenbers
support the regulated pricing system They clearly believe
the regul ated system provi des the best framework to support
their farm operations, the custoners to whomthey narket
mlk and the plants that they have invested in and operate.

Dairy Farners of Anerica is a Capper Volstead mlk

mar ket i ng cooperative owned by approxi mately 270 farns that
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market mlk in California. W narket approximtely 20
percent of the state's mlk supply. W nmarket mlk to nore
than 35 buyers in the state and operate two whol | y- owned
plants. Qur facility at Hughson, California is primarily a
Class 4a facility and our plant in Turlock, California is
primarily a Class 4b facility. DFA operates plants and
mar ket whey both in California and also in the Federal O der
systemand is well qualified to submt testinony and
evidence to the Secretary on the matter of the appropriate
contribution of whey value to the Cass 4b price.

DFA along with California Dairies, Inc. and Land
O Lakes, Inc., continue to work towards a California Federal
Order. However, we and the other participants in this
hearing al so recognize the need to fully engage in nmatters
related to the California state mlk pricing system

Dairy Farners of Anerica supports the alternative
proposal submtted by California Dairy Canpaign, MIKk
Producers Council and the Western United Dairynen, which if
adopted woul d nodi fy the permanent dry whey scale in the
Class 4b formula. Qur support of this proposal aligns with
our intentions in the California Federal O der proposal.

|"mgoing to skip the next two paragraphs because
| think they've been said by other speakers and start with
t he paragraph:

DFA fully supports the position and testinony of
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Anni e AcMbody representing The Producers. Specifically, we
support the proposed changes to the whey conponent of the 4b
formula in response to the Secretary's direction in the
Hearing Notice. W note that the Secretary has specifically
directed that:

"Proponents of any alternative proposal shal

address, at a mninum the econom c conditions

t hat woul d support extending the effective date of
the tenporary dry whey scale or adjustments to
either the tenporary or permanent dry whey scal es
contai ned therein."

We agree with the contention that the nethod for
calculating the contribution of whey to the C ass 4b price
understates its market value and the resulting | ower than
justifiable Cass 4b price danmages the viability of al
California dairy farm busi nesses. W also agree that a
reasonabl e econom ¢ indicator of the value of whey in the
Class 4b fornula is enbedded in the Federal Order Cass I
price and that The Producers proposal best aligns the C ass
4b price with that val ue.

| am al so going to skip the next paragraph and go
on to Table 3. I1'msorry, page 3, DFA Table 1. A 1-5. And
that is the set of spreadsheet tables that is titled
"Conparison of Mailbox MIk Prices Standardi zed for

Butterfat, Protein and O her Solids Tests, California and
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Conpar abl e Markets, August 2012 - 2015" denonstrates the
al i gnnment of producer mailbox mlk prices we see with the
two regions of the United States that have simlar mlk
utilizations to California. One of our goals at this
hearing is to achieve nore parity between the m |k prices
received by DFA's California nenbers and those of other
simlarly situated markets in the United States by making
adj ustment in the whey conponent of the 4b price. W see a
significant price msalignnment at the producer |evel when we
make those conparisons. W attribute a portion of this
difference to the fact that mlk produced in Californiais
val ued outside of the national price grid. Wile this
hearing is not designed to place California's m |k marketing
systementirely into the national price grid, it can better
align California producer mlk prices with those of the rest
of the country by adopting the proposal we are supporting.
Many factors in the operation of a dairy farmare
| ocal i zed but several key input factors are increasingly
becom ng regional, national and even international. As a
part of DFA's overall cooperative business plan we have
busi ness units that provide risk nanagenent servi ces,
financi ng, purchase of inputs and supplies, business
consulting and several types of insurance. The scope of our
cooperative allows us to be a know edgeabl e mar ket er of

these services in terns of availability and price. W can
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of fer these services at conpetitive prices but we cannot
offset the wwde differences in mlk prices our nenbers face
when conpared to the rest of the country. Qur nenbers in
California find it increasingly difficult to purchase

busi ness resources when faced with lower returns than their
counterparts around the country and the world and as a
result many have left the industry altogether.

A reliable and reasonabl e neasure we can use to
denonstrate the price disparity for simlarly situated
producers is the Mailbox MIk Price published by USDA s
Agricul tural Marketing Service. This price series has been
avai |l abl e since at |least 1998 and is calculated on a
consi stent basis. As stated in the USDA/ AMS publi cati ons,
the price series is an at-test, all revenues included and
net of marketing expenses.

There are Milbox M1k Prices published for 20
di fferent market regions. For conparison purposes we
isolated the three states that conprise the ngjority of the
Upper M dwest - Federal Order 30 nmarketing area that has a
| ar ge production of cheese, butter and nonfat dry m |k and
lower Class | utilization. The states are Wsconsin,

M nnesota and Illinois. Federal Order 30 had an average
annual average of 11.5 percent Class | use, 5.8 percent
Class Il use, 79.2 percent Cass Ill use and 3.5 percent

Class IV use in 2015. For cal endar year 2015 neasured on a
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total solids basis CDFA reports in the state order Cass 1
conpared to FO Class | use at 13.06, Class 2 and 3 at 8.84
percent conpared to FO Cass Il, Class 4b at 46.3 percent
conpared to FO Class Il and Cl ass 4a at 32 percent conpared
to FO Cass |IV.

W al so sel ected the Northwest States series
conposed of data from Oregon and Washi ngton for conparison
These states conprise a significant portion of FO 124, the
Paci fic Northwest. Like Federal Oder 30 and the California
mar ket, the Northwest States have significant manufactured
dairy product output. The region shows a high use in both
Class Ill and dass IV products. Federal Oder 124 had an
annual average of 30.7 percent Class | use, 8.4 percent
Class Il, 18.0 percent Cass Ill and 42.8 percent Cass |V
use in 2015. Additionally, the Northwest States are
simlarly situated geographically as western states and face
simlar conpetitive situations in the nmarketing of
manuf actured dairy products to both eastern domestic narkets
and westward export markets.

Wil e the Upper M dwest and Pacific Northwest
regi ons have many characteristics simlar with the
California dairy marketplace, a simlar Miilbox MIk Price
is not one of them W neasured the period August 2012 to
the nost recent data avail abl e, Decenber 2015. This period

i ncludes both the recent permanent adjustnent in the whey
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factor and the current tenporary adjustnent made by the
Secretary for the purpose of better alignnment of the C ass
4b price and market pl ace returns.

Since the Mailbox MIk Price is an at-test price,
we adjusted the price for conponents in each region to the
federal order standard for butterfat of 3.5 percent for
protein of 2.9915 percent and for other solids of 5.6935 in
order to arrive at a standard, and nore inportantly,
conparabl e price for evaluation. W used the nonthly
federal order price per pound of each conmponent in the
calculation to conpute a cents-per-hundredwei ght value. W
used the Federal Order 30 average producer m |k conmponent
test for the Mdwest Order states as Federal Order 30 does
not publish state | evel conmponent tests to calculate the
conponent val ue adjustnent. California does not publish a
protein or other solids conponent val ues, so we used all DFA
producer conponent tests for the California averages under
t he assunption that since our producer volunes account for
approximately 20 percent of the state's m Ik supplies it
woul d be generally representative of the state's conponent
test averages. For the Northwest states, we used the
Federal Order 124 market tests. |In each case the nonthly
announced test was conpared to the adjusted standardized
test and the difference over or under the standard test was

subtracted or added to the nmil box price.
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For the period August 2012 through Decenber 2015
there are 41 nonthly observations fromthe states |isted.
DFA Table 1. A 1-5, "Conparison of Mailbox MIk Prices
Standardi zed for Butterfat, Protein and O her Solids Tests,
California and Sel ected Markets, August 2012 - Decenber
2015". For the 41 nonths and the four Milbox MIk Price
regions for conparison, 164 observations, California had a
hi gher Mailbox M1k Price only one time, August of 2015,
conpared agai nst the Northwest States region. The average
di fference over all observations was $1.82 per
hundr edwei ght. The single largest difference was -$4.35 in
W sconsin, Decenber 2012 conparison, and the cl osest was
+$0. 05, the Northwest States, Septenber -- July (sic) 2015.
The California region averaged $2.12 per hundredwei ght
bel ow, | ower than the Wsconsin region for the 41 nonths;
$2. 05 per hundredwei ght | ower than the M nnesota region;
$2. 25 per hundredwei ght |ower than the Illinois region; and
$1.01 I ower than the Northwest region. DFA Table 1.A 5
details a sanple calculation to denonstrate the mnethodol ogy
of using actual data for California and Wsconsin for the
nont h of COctober 2015.

The regi ons we surveyed all have Federal Order
prices as their base price. It is also DFA s experience
that despite the elimnation of the Federal M Ik Marketing
O der within the Idaho market in 2004, the |Idaho cheese
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manuf act urers have now based their m |k purchases on a FMMO
Class Il basis or have devel oped proprietary fornul as that
are designed to closely align with the Federal Order C ass
1l price. W suggest this practice was determ ned to be
necessary in order to maintain a viable m |k production base
to feed the states m |k processing plants with adequate m |k
suppl i es.

Using the Mailbox MIk Price as a proxy for
producer prices clearly reveals there are wide differences
for farms in simlarly situated regions of the country. CQur
proposal will reduce this msalignment of producer prices by
establishing a value for whey included in the Cass 4b
formula that is inline with plants in the rest of the
United States.

Previ ous hearing comments referred to conparing
the New Mexico region with California for the purpose of
Mai |l box M1k Price alignnent. There are several key
differences in the two m | ksheds that would greatly inpact a
conparison. The first is that the New Mexico m | kshed
transports an average of 60 |oads of mlk per day into
Central Texas markets for Class | sales. These |oads travel
an average of 550 mles one way to these markets. There is
no conparabl e market servicing cost in the California
m | kshed. O greater inportance, the New Mexi co nmarket does

not have adequate nmanufacturing capacity. And in spite of
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expanded manufacturing capacity, mlk nust be transported
out of the mlkshed to other markets for processing. Again
this happens in the California market but not routinely.

Pl ant | nvest nent.

Secretary Ross's California Dairy Future Task
Force discussed intently the issue of attracting new capital
investnment in dairy processing facilities in California and
we feel it continues to be an inportant al beit underlying
factor in this hearing. Aside fromthe new Hilmar drying
facility and the potential new plant announced in Turl ock by
Valley MIlk LLC, we feel it is a valid conclusion that the
capital investnent in dairy manufacturing facilities has not
been as prevalent in California as in the rest of the United
St at es.

Qur own manufacturing profile has grown since the
hearing last June. W are building a m |k powder plant in
West ern Kansas, expanding an existing plant in New York with
cooperative partner Arla Foods to nake cheddar cheese and
are finalizing plans to expand our existing manufacturing
plant in Cass Cty, M chigan.

Addi tionally, DFA nonitors new i nvestnent by ot her
firms in dairy processing, as best we can, as they represent
potential opportunities to market nenbers' mlk as well as
potential partners for val ue-added processing opportunities.

In our testinmony |ast June we nentioned 15 primarily cheese
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plants in the Central, M deast, Southwest and Upper M dwest
Orders with just-conpl eted, ongoing or planned expansi ons;
the majority of which have either been conpleted or are
still in progress. W noted new capacity or expansions in
the Northeast Order in addition to our own investnents there
and those too are either conpleted or still in progress.

Al the plants referenced to above operate in
areas where Federal Order pricing is the basis for the
m nimum price and nost if not all have sonme prem um over the
m ni mum price. Perhaps the Hearing Panel should consider if
a factor or perhaps the primary factor in the consideration
of dairy plant investnent is the desire for a steady and
expanding m |k supply prior to commtting capital for
constructi on and expansi on.

Cost of Operating Dairy Manufacturing in
Cal i forni a.

It is often noted that California is a very
expensive place to operate a business at the state |evel
when conpared to other states and the statistics prove that
to be true. But when the data is exam ned nore closely at
the region and netropolitan | evel where nost of the actual
manuf act uring takes place, cost of doing business conditions
are very favorable.

Attachnent A - "The Conparative Cost of Doing
Business in California, Novenber 2015, Central Valley
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Communities are Conpetitive with the Rest of the Nation"
depicts a study done for California Dairies, Inc., Dairy
Farmers of Anmerica and Land O Lakes, Inc. to provide clarity
on the cost of cheese manufacturing in California conpared
to other primary cheese manufacturing | ocations in the
United States. The study was conpleted in the fall of 2015
by Lon Hatam ya of the Hatam ya G oup.

M. Hatam ya's professional background and
qualifications to performthis study are outlined on page 1
and include a period of public service as the Secretary of
t he Technol ogy, Trade and Commrerce Agency of California from
1999- 2003 as well as the Administrator of the Agriculture
Mar keti ng Service of USDA from 1997 to 1999. Both positions
dealt heavily with dairy manufacturing and dairy econom cs.

The study utilized data fromthe "North Anerican
Busi ness Cost Review' published by Mody's Analytics in My
2014 and updated in October 2014. Mody's Analytics is a
subsidiary of Mody's Corporation established in 2007 to
focus on non-rating activities, separate from Mody's
| nvestors Service. The following Iink shows a link to the
database - and | will not read the Internet account but for
the court reporter, you can pick it up off the transcript -

[ https://wwv. econony. com st ore/ shop. aspx?pubi d=11&si t e=0&sea

rchTernenorth anerican business cost review] and how to

access it. | will say that that link tells you how you can
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purchase it. It doesn't say that you can get it. And if
you were to link Mody's Analytics you would find dozens of
sites about its validity by publications, studies,
government studi es, magazi nes, business nagazines. | wll
attach the full study as a part of ny testinony and nake
several references to it.

Study findings include:

As a state California generally ranks anong the
states with the highest cost of doing business. At the
state level California would have one of the highest cost
i ndexes, 110 where 100 equal s the average cost index,
ranki ng 7th highest out of 50 states.

However, when focusing on the San Joaquin Valley
Regi on where the | argest concentration of cheese plants are
in the state, an entirely different picture energes. This
region includes the counties of San Joaquin, Stanislaus,
Merced, Madera, Fresno, Kings, Tulare and Kern.

Wthin the region the data can be further focused
by individual netropolitan area and data for Bakersfield,
Fresno, Hanford, Merced, Mddesto, Stockton and Visalia is
avai | abl e.

Moody' s Anal ytics provides neasures for the Unit
Labor Cost, Energy Cost, State and Local Taxes and O fice
Rent as their nmetrics for conparing 384 netropolitan

| ocati ons for business purposes.
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California' s major cheese production |ocations
conpare very favorably with |locations around the US in dense
cheese production regions. Conparable conpeting |ocations
i nclude northern, southern, eastern and western W sconsin,
sout heast and south central M nnesota, western Texas,
northern Col orado and south central Washington, all areas of
dense producti on.

Al'l the indexed conparisons of netropolitan
| ocations in the San Joaquin Valley fared very well with the
i ndexed conparisons of the non-California | ocations.

In terms of |abor rates, four of the California
| ocations were in the ten | owest identified cheese
manuf acturing | ocations, representing 24.7 percent of the
23.55 cents published make cost for cheese manufacture.

In terms of state and | ocal taxes, six of the
California |locations were in the ten | owest identified
cheese manufacturing | ocations.

In terms of office rent, three of the California
| ocations were in the ten | owest identified cheese
manuf act uring | ocati ons.

The | east conpetitive area was energy costs, which
i s neasured by Moody's anal ysis as the average conmerci al
and industrial electricity costs. According to the CDFA
2014 costs studies, this represents only 2.5 percent of the

23.55 cents published make cost for cheese manufacture.
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|"mgoing to skip the next paragraph and go down
to Qbjections to the Institute proposal.

Ms. AcMoody voiced several objections to the
Institute's proposal. To those I'd like to add the
foll owi ng conments. The published statistics of whey
protein concentrate production offered by the Departnent
notes that production data covered much nore than just WPC
with the 34 percent standardized protein level. The
production data al so indicated the inclusion of other high
protein conposition products up to 100 percent protein. The
data on WPC prices are designated as only WPC34. Certainly
sonme, maybe nuch, of the |iquid whey purchased by third
parties is further manufactured into whey protein
concentrates with a protein concentration greater than 34
percent. Thus the production and price data series do not
mat ch and concl usi ons drawn fromthem may be inconplete. It
will be difficult to get a standard price definition in
order to operate this fornula wi thout additional detail of
how much product is further manufactured into higher
concentrat ed products.

We were unable to see the specifics of the
Institute's proposal until today. And | would say | have
been able to hear them but not see them However, DFA Chart
1 - Conparison of Dairy Institute Proposal 2015 & 2016 Usi ng

t he Proposed Brackets - in those two studies - and the
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Actual WPC prices 2010-2015 indicates it is virtually
identical in construction. G ven our assunption that the
construction is simlar and perhaps identical mnus the
alteration of the floor and the ceiling referred to in
Dr. Schiek's testinony at the June 3, 2015 hearing we offer
the following cooments. And | would say after hearing
Dr. Schiek that there are sone differences, but when | | ook
at the chart and | see the novenments and the ups and the
downs and the patterns, it |ooks pretty simlar.

And | would say that his statenent referred to the
i nclusion of a 15 cents discount for the purchase of liquid
whey protein concentrate; a stated 35 cents nake all owance
and a factor representing the cost to transport |iquid whey
froma seller's plant to a buyer's plant. None of these
factors are based on any type of CDFA review or verification
and there is no substantiation of how t hey were constructed
or how they m ght be constructed. |In sone cases the
transport cost allowance may be a windfall to a plant that
punps liquid whey fromone side of the sanme plant for
further processing - the likely result for nuch of the whey
processed in the state.

We support The Producers proposal to replace the
"permanent” scale in the Stabilization plans. This change
woul d support |ong-term business planning for all parties

involved in the industry.
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W note The Producers bracket "floats" with the
whey markets and thus has a self-adjusting effect and woul d
nmove quickly with changes in the market reflecting truer
mar ket val ues for whey conponent to both buyers and sellers.

| will |leave the Sunmary alone but | would like to
respond to several questions that you asked earlier in the
norning. |s that allowable?

MR EASTMAN.  You have a few seconds.

MR HOLLON: You did ask for sonme observations
about what things the Departnment m ght consider. The first
| would say is that | don't knowif it's a | egal requirenent
by the Code that there has to be sone sign before the
Departnment can act; | suspect it isn't. | would give as an
exanple, in the federal orders producer-handl er provisions
were inplemented in the southeast based on -- the southeast
federal orders based on a three mllion pound handler. |If
you added all the producer-handlers in the market they
woul dn't add up to three mllion pounds but it was a forward
t hi nki ng observati on.

| would say that sone of the things you m ght | ook
at is mlk volunmes declining. Farmlosses. | would say
from DFA' s standpoint we have had no new farmstarts in a
nunber of years. W have had nenbers who have popul at ed
sonme existing dairies but not very many. W have had no one

fromout of state conme to us and say, we'd like to talk to
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you about establishing a dairy in California. W have had
Cal i forni a- based nenbers build dairies in other states. W
have had Californi a- based nmenbers who have said that, we
want to |locate a dairy in Colorado and in Nevada.

We are concerned about the current mlk supply. |
woul d say that this spring has been one of the lightest in
terms of trying to balance the m |k supply.

You do have -- | think one of the things that you
woul d pay a lot of attention to is your own cost of
production studies. That those are pretty detailed right
down to the farmlevel. |In fact, they' re sonme of the best
in the country as far as the data and the detail.

Gowh in other areas, businesses willing to
invest in other areas.

| think all of those ought to be, you know, signs
of concern.

There's been quite a few comments and you asked
sonme questions about the inpact on varieties of plants but |
think you do have an obligation to neasure that inpact on
t he vol une produced. And while it is true -- I"'mgoing to
do the nunmber fromnmenory so I'Il mss it -- but there' s 57
cheese plants in California; 70 percent of the whey is
processed in half a dozen of them So |I think you have sone
obligation to consider those types of relationships when

you're trying to decide what the policy ought to be,

ALL AMERI CAN REPCORTI NG | NC.

(916) 362-2345




© 00 N o o B~ w N P

N NN N NN R R R R R R R R R
O N W N B O © 0 N o 00 M W N R O

166

especially in line of transporting whey. No doubt the
majority of that processing is done in plants where the
transport cost is fromone side of the plant to another.

And the last question is -- there was a question
M . Shi ppel hout e asked about out of state mlk. And to ny
knowl edge, and |I'm pretty know edgeabl e about m |k marketing
all over the country, there is sinply not much opportunity
for out of state mlk to be noved in. | don't think nuch
mlk is going to conme fromArizona, the nost likely
possibility. There was one specific instance nentioned
where a plant in Uah had a -- their roof fell in. 1 think
the marketing agent for the m |k supply that was | ooking for
the hone in California is also the marketing agent for Gllo
Cheese. They're one and the sane person so | think maybe
t here was sone additional know edge. But | just don't know
of much mlk that's going to nove into California on a
regul ar basis. There may be sone solids but -- and even
then it wouldn't be on a regular basis.

The end. 1'Il be happy to answer any questions
you may want to originate.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: | do see in your witten
testimony you request the opportunity to submt a post-
hearing brief; is that correct?

MR HOLLON: It is.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: Ckay. A post-hearing
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brief will be granted.

MR. MONSON: Do you want to go first since it's
your birthday?

(Laughter.)

MR. EASTMAN.  Well your mcrophone is already on,
go ahead.

MR. MONSON: All right. Thank you, M. Hollon,

for your testinony.

A quick question. In the first part of your
testimony you say the DFA Western Area Council. Can you
explain to me what that is? | apologize for being kind of

new to this.

MR. HOLLON: Certainly. Dairy Farmers of America
is a cooperative with national reach, if you will. W have
menbers in something |like 46 out of 47 states' nmarket. And
all of them for governance purposes and for day-to-day
busi ness purposes, it's organi zed into seven geographic
areas. So the western area woul d represent producers who
live in California, who live in Nevada. There are six
others in addition to that, the Southwest, Central,

Sout heast, M deast, Mountain, Northeast. And so the DFA
Western area woul d be involved very heavily with California
mar ket i ng.

MR. MONSON: Ckay. So nost people on that board

are from Californi a?
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MR. HOLLON: Al are fromeither California or
Nevada.

MR. MONSON: Ckay. And then on page 6 you talked
briefly about plant investnment and the | ack thereof in
California and nmentioned several exanples of new plants
outside of the state. Can you maybe just expand nore on
that as to why that is?

MR. HOLLON: The chief reason, | would say, is it
costs a lot to build a plant. And the nunber one criteria
we have when peopl e approach us and the existing
manuf acturing custonmers that we supply is, is there going to
be an adequate, stable, growi ng supply of mlk to neet ny
busi ness? And so we are involved in expanding a plant in
New Mexico. We are involved in plant expansions by others
in Colorado. W are involved in, you know, expanding an
existing plant in Mchigan, in western New York. CQur
custoners in Mnnesota and Wsconsin and the upper M dwest
have come and asked us. One of their nunber one criteria
is, before | spend $450 million to build a cheese plant |
want to nmake sure that the mlk supply is going to be there
and it's going to grow. And we don't have those inquiries
here.

MR. MONSON:. Ckay. So if the producers' proposal
was to be adopted as it's witten what inpact woul d that

have on further plant investnent?
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MR. HOLLON: It would be our opinion that there
woul d be a desire, an expressed desire by producers again to
want to grow, to expand facilities, to have a nore
optim stic outl ook and then we woul d begin to see that.

As was nmentioned earlier in the norning, at the
present state California s capacity is generally adequate
for the mlk production in the state. In the last 12 nonths
only a very limted anount of tine have we been involved in
nmovi ng solids out of state, maybe even a week or two. But
there's also not been a lot of growh, you know, in that.

This has been the lightest flush that we've
experienced in a |large nunber of years. Every week |'m
i nvolved in tal king about that topic with DFA | ocati ons,

t hose other seven areas around the country. And in other
parts of the country this year's flush is one of the nost
difficult but it's not the case here.

At the California Federal Order hearing there were
30 producers who testified in addition to those who were
represented by others. There were none who tal ked
optimstically. There were at least 3 that | can renenber,
entities whose business was representing producers. For
exanpl e, one was a nutrition consultant, one was soneone who
| ocated farns and sold cows. None of themsaid that they
wer e gai ning new custoners and all of them said they had

| ost pieces of their business to farns that had either gone
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out of business or also had noved out of state. And so it's
just hard to find optimsmto want to expand.

MR. MONSON: Thank you.

No further questions from ne.

MR SHI PPELHOUTE: You nentioned in Idaho with the
elimnation of the federal order there that plants have
created their own fornulas to mmc, basically, the Federa
Order Cass Il prices.

MR, HOLLON: Correct.

MR. SHI PPELHOUTE: Has there been any -- do any of
your customers do that here in California?

MR. HOLLON: At tines there has been sonme prem um
of fered, they have been w thdrawn, but there were sone
prem uns that had sone of that as a function of the
cal cul ati on.

| think there was a question earlier this nmorning
about how m ght this proposal and prem uns match up. And
what | would tell you is that generally there is an equation
eventual |y negotiated out by both parties. And to the
extent if both parties can agree on a value and the
regul ated price is here there may be some negoti ati on over
t he bal ance and so fromtine to tine that has happened. But
not to the extent that we would see it by the Idaho
procurers. There are two mmjor private procurers in the

state and to our know edge both of them have procurenent
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offerings that mmc the Cass III.

MR. SHI PPELHOUTE: Thank you.

MR. EASTMAN. | just want to wal k through really
qui ckly your appendices just to nake sure that --

MR HOLLON:  Sure.

MR. EASTMAN. -- we've got it since --

MR. HOLLON: | didn't offer you any statistical
anal yses but | could do a T-test if |I had to.

MR. EASTMAN. | want you to do that off the top of
your head right now then. No, |'mjust joking.

MR. HOLLON: The fornula that | offered you the
last time worked out, it did have a valid T-test.

(Laughter.)

MR. EASTMAN. That's true. Al right, |
appreciate that. So for the tables, it |ooks like the |ast
page there you give an exanpl e of how the nethodol ogy is
st andar di zi ng.

MR HOLLON: | did. | learned fromM. De Jong
that that was a good thing to do.

MR. EASTMAN. | appreciate that, okay. So the
first four pages then are just sinply, they're pretty nuch
the sane, it's just going over tine.

MR. HOLLON: Correct. They're the sunmary of the
results --

MR. EASTMAN. You start off with the mail box price
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as announced by USDA, you standardize it for conponents
usi ng the nmethodol ogy in the | ast page and then you're just
sinply subtracting California fromthe other areas.

MR, HOLLON: Correct.

MR. EASTMAN. Ckay. That's what | thought.

MR HOLLON: And each individual calculation was
pl used or mnused by -- the protein add val ue or subtract
value -- or and other solids and butterfat to get to a
st andar di zed pri ce.

MR. EASTMAN. Ckay, perfect, that's what |
understood. Attachnment A was just sinply the study by
M. Hatam ya.

MR HOLLON: It was.

MR. EASTMAN. Geat. And then | was just -- Not
that there wasn't a lot of this at the California Federa
Order hearing but I think on page 5 of your testinony in
t hat second paragraph you were tal king about, you know, the
differences in the mail box prices and there's sone averages
and then there's a nonth where it's the highest and a nonth
where it's the | owest.

MR. HOLLON: Sone say the wi dest, mght be --

MR. EASTMAN. The cl osest. Yes, the |argest
di fference and the cl osest difference, | guess.

MR, HOLLON: Correct.

MR. EASTMAN:  And so for the northwest states |
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think you had struggled. | think you nmeant to say August
2015. You kind of said July but |I'm guessing you neant
August now that you have a second to think about it, right?

MR, HOLLON: Correct. Yes.

MR. EASTMAN. Ckay. | don't nean to --

MR. HOLLON: It's hard to read and have an eye on
that red |ight over there.

MR EASTMAN. | have to do that all the sane. It
can get enbarrassi ng when you have to decide which nonth is
the one and you start counting. You mght not want to do
that publicly but, all right, good, that's all | had.

MR. HOLLON: Thank you for your tinme.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: Thank you for your
t esti nony.

Ckay, we are now going to deviate fromthe script
for a mnute and go to the three m nute w tnesses.

Ms. De Raadt.

M5. De RAADT: Sorry, ny nane is a little bit
conpl i cat ed.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: So coul d you pl ease state
your full name and spell your |ast nane and what affiliation
you're wth.

M5. De RAADT: My nane is Eileen De Raadt and | am
a-- it's DE and then space, capital RA-A-DT, and I ama

California m |k producer.
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Wher eupon,
El LEEN De RAADT
Was duly sworn.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: Do you have any witten
statenents or anything you would like entered into the
record?

M5. De RAADT: No, thank you.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: You may proceed.

M5. De RAADT: Hello, everybody, Panel Menbers.

My nanme is Eileen De Raadt. | am 21 years old and
| amcurrently a junior at Fresno Pacific University.

| have grown up on a dairy ny entire life and I
woul dn't have it any other way. Being raised on a dairy |
have been taught a hard work ethic, perseverance and
responsibility. As | have grown up | have tried to do ny
best to be as involved as possible with the industry.

| showed in 4H for eight years, showi ng cows. My
famly and | go down to San Diego County Fair every year to
show cows but also to use it as a formof outreach to the
general public. | was also the District 7 Dairy Princess ny
seni or year of high school. 1 |ove being an advocate for
the industry that | have such a passion for. Today, nothing
has changed. | participate on the Dairy Princess Cormittee
and | amthe coordinator for the MIk Maid program

| work at the Kings County Farm Bureau office as a
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teacher for a very special programcalled Farm Acadeny Life.
This program gives the opportunity for any classroomin the
world to learn either about cotton or mlk through a virtual
field trip, so through on-line. | love ny job because it
gives nme the opportunity to share ny passion every cl ass.

As busy as | amthough, | always find chances to
conme back to the dairy and help ny dad and herein lies why |
am here today. As nmuch as | | ove working on the dairy with
my dad it makes ne quite upset when he brings up selling the
dairy. By the way, my dairy is currently on the market.

My dad is frustrated and he's tired. He |oves
this industry but there is so nuch that goes along with it,
so many conplications that we are trying to face. Wen he
tal ks about these things it's heartbreaking. It kills ne
because everything that | built nmy past around and
everything | hope to build ny future around may not even be
in existence by this tinme next year.

| f you take a drive through the Central Valley
you're going to see a lot of enpty dairies. Seeing friends
of mne and others in the industry being forced to sell out
or just take a safer avenue like growing trees, it hurts,
it's mnd boggling, it's confusing, it's frustrating. And
if ny dairy sells out it will show nme that unfair mlk
prices along with other factors have inpacted us and this

i ssue has cone full circle.

ALL AMERI CAN REPCORTI NG | NC.

(916) 362-2345




© 00 N o o b~ w N P

N NN N NN R R R R R R R R R
O N W N B O © O N o 00 »h W N R O

176

| am not com ng before you today as the techni cal
one with all the answers. | amyoung and that's why |I'm
here, to be educated by this process. Rather I amconing to
you as a representative for the younger generation who wants
to see this industry thrive, who hopes to carry on mlk
production in the future.

| amlooking for a conpetitive, fair and permanent
solution to lowmlk prices, the current low mlk prices,
specifically with the whey factor in mnd. 1'm]looking for
fair conpensation for our whey.

| want to be given the opportunity, the chance to
help this industry, to participate in this industry, to help
it grow. | want to nmaintain ny passion and al so regain the
passi on of many dairy farnmers who have | ost theirs through
all these trials they' re going through

So, in summary, | amin favor of the proposal
gi ven by these three trade groups that are working on behalf
of the dairy producers such as nyself. Thank you.

MR. MONSON: Thank you for your testinony,
Ms. De Raadt. Can you tell us a little bit nore about your
dairy, the size of herd?

MS. De RAADT: Yeah. W are a 1,000 cow, around a
1,000 cow dairy and we are located in Lenoore, California.
We currently -- we live about five mles fromthe Leprino

factory so that's where we send our mlk. M dad runs the
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dairy along with ny brother who hel ps out and | kind of have
started making ny way in as well with doing nore of the
soci al media and hopefully nore of the paper stuff that ny
dad isn't as famliar wth.

MR. MONSON: Thank you.

M5. De RAADT: Al right, thank you.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: Thank you for your
t esti nony.

M. Deni z.

M. Deniz, could you please state your full nane,
spell your last nane and state your affiliation for the
record, please.

MR DENI Z: Lucas Deniz, D-E-N-1-Z, with Deniz
Dairy in Petaluna. W're a small famly dairy there. So
"' m here today --

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: Just one nore second,
sorry.

Wher eupon,
LUCAS DEN Z
Was duly sworn.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: Do you have any witten
statenents or any other things that you would |ike entered
into the record?

MR DENIZ: | do not.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: You may proceed.
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MR DENIZ: So | amhere today to testify in
support of the proposal set forth by the three dairy
producer organi zations.

| want to start off by saying that | have a | ot of
respect for the cheese producers. | amcertainly happy for
their success. W need themto be successful. But they
al so need us as well and they need the dairy producers to be
successful. And for far too | ong they have taken advant age
of a formula that does not accurately account for the true
mar ket val ue of whey.

We've heard a | ot today about the horror stories
of what coul d happen to the cheese processors if the dairy
producers' proposal were to be put into place. And | have
sonme doubts as to whether those would actually conme to
fruition, but nonetheless it's specul ation.

What we don't have to speculate on is what has
happened to the producer industry in the |ast eight years.
From 2008 t hrough 2015 we have | ost 414 dairies in this
state. That's a CDFA nunber. Those are ny friends, those
are ny nei ghbors.

Now if a different whey forrmula had been in place
since 2008 would it have saved all of those producers and
hel ped the ones that are currently left? 1t wouldn't have
saved all of them no, absolutely not. Wuld it have saved

a significant nunber and hel ped out the ones that are still

ALL AMERI CAN REPCORTI NG | NC.

(916) 362-2345




© 00 N o o b~ w N P

N NN N NN R R R R R R R R R
O N W N B O © 0 N o 00 M W N L O

179

in the state? You bet, absolutely it would have. Excuse
me. I'msorry.

|"ve al so heard today about having a whey formul a
that is nore accurate for the products that are truly nade
fromthe whey streamin the state. But | think we as
producers woul d probably be willing to enter into that
di scussion as long as we al so discussed the types of cheeses
and the yields that are actually produced in this state.
Because as you know, the cheese the 4b fornmula is based on
is a cheddar cheese yield, which is 10.2 pounds. The vast
majority of the state is not produci ng cheddar cheese, it's
produci ng nmuch hi gher yielding cheeses.

Now i f you're buying a cormodity, let's say oil,
and you pay the market price for oil, you don't get a barre
of oil plus 10 percent; you get the nmarket price. Well in
essence that's what the cheese producers are getting here
today -- are getting. They're getting free product. And |
know that we are not here today to discuss that part of the
equation but at the same tine it is relevant because it
gives you a nore accurate picture of the economc reality,

t he advantage that the cheese producers currently have.
|'ve al so heard, and this was addressed a little

bit earlier, that sonehow the value fromthe whey should be

part of those producers' bonus program To ne this goes

back to Pooling 101 where you share in the total revenue of
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the products that are generated fromthe pool. By that
|l ogic, ne as an al nost 100 percent C ass | shipper, would be
sharing ny -- | would generally be sharing about a $2 to $3
bonus with the people who ship to a cheese processor. But
that's the way the pool works.

The pool is also designed to not have unfair
mar ket advant ages based on the product being produced and we
are starting to see that now | firmly believe that a
per manent change to the whey scale in support of the
producers' proposal would go a | ong way towards
reestabl i shing one of the basic principles pooling has,
which is that all producers and processors share equally and
accurately account for all m |k products.

Once again, that's why | am here today in support
of the producers' proposal.

MR. EASTMAN. Actually | do have one question

MR DEN Z: Sure.

MR EASTMAN: | know that over the |ast nunber of
years through the Dairy Task Force and other sort of
i ndustry-wi de sort of neetings and get-togethers, sort of
speak, | know that you have served on --

MR DENI Z: Yes.

MR. EASTMAN. -- you've actually been invol ved
with a lot of those. Mybe nore than you'd |like to have

been i nvol ved with.
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(Laughter.)

MR. EASTMAN. But you kind of nmentioned in your
testinmony that besides just the whey val ues there's other
parts of the systemand other parts of the pricing fornmnulas
t hat probably need to be | ooked at and to be reviewed as
well. Do you think that although, granted the scope of this
hearing is limted to one portion of one fornmula, do you
believe in your involvenent in the task force and the other
i ndustry neetings that there's other portions of the system
ot her portions of the fornula that al so probably need sone
sort of revanp or some sort of discussion and sone sort of
nodi fication as well?

MR. DENI Z: Ww, tough question. | think, all in
all I think we have a very good system | think, no
different than any other systemit needs to be | ooked at and
t weaked and changed over tinme. | know that sonme people
think that our systemis broken, we need to throw out the
whole thing. | amnot necessarily of that mnd. 1| think
that we -- it was established for very specific purposes, it
served very specific purposes and it continues to do those
today; to namke sure that, you know, marketing practices are
fair. But right now we have a situation where we have
products that are not being adequately val ued through the
system t hrough what their market is and so | think, you

know, that's where we just need to focus right now.
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HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: Thank you for your
t esti nony.

MR DEN Z: Sure.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: M. Deni er.

M. Denier, could you please state your full nane,
spel |l your last nane and state your affiliation for the
record, please.

MR. DENIER  Yes. Get ny reading glasses on here.
| don't have to | ook up ny nane but 1've got --

(Laughter.)

MR DENIER MW nane is Richard Denier and ny
brother and I, my brother Fred and | have a dairy in Galt,
California;, we mlk about 950 cows.

Wher eupon,
Rl CHARD DENI ER
Was duly sworn.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: Do you have any witten
statenents or any other things you would |like entered into
the record at this tinme?

MR DENTER | do. | didn't when | got here this
nmorning but | put it in my iPad here and 1'd like to e-mai
it to the appropriate e-mail address when |I finish, if
t hat' s okay.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: That sounds very good,

t hank you.
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MR DENTER Al right. For nme the question is,
is our mlk pricing systemequitable? O course, this
i ncludes the 4b pricing fornmula which is being discussed
t oday.

You listen to the processors, you listen to the
producer organi zations, so many nunbers and so nuch
conplexity. Well if I"myou up there, who do you believe?
Well, | think it's pretty tough.

Al | knowis that our dairy is losing a | ot of
nmoney just |like nost dairies in California.

But what about the processors, nost of whom are
represented by the Dairy Institute? O course, the Dairy
Institute will always tell you any increase to us wll
decrease their profits and threaten their existence, just
i ke the processors have told us that.

But | ask you, how much profit do the processors
need? Three of the |argest processors in California are
Leprino, Saputo and Hilmar. | don't address Hi |l mar Cheese,
nost of us in California are famliar with them

Lepri no Foods.

Now you're going to hear sone testinony probably
that you have never heard before at a hearing. And this is
the first hearing |I've ever been to and | cane here because
Pet er Warnerdam call ed up ny brother and asked if he could

go. He was too busy but I told him well, | can nake it |
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think. And | decided -- when | cane in that door and they

said, 'You want to testify? | said, '"No.' But then as
heard everything these folks had to say | said, 'Yes, | want
to testify." So I went back and told that gentleman back
there, 'Yeah, | do want to testify.' | started |ooking up
stuff -- and | had of all this information before | got
here; | picked it up about a year ago.

kay. How much profits do the processors need?
Al right, we know about Hilnmar Cheese a little bit, you
know, from what we see goes on down in Hilnar.

Leprino Foods. Three of their nine plants are in
California. M guess is nost of their cheese, maybe not
nost but a ot of their cheese nationally gets nade here in
California. Well do you guys know, does the Departnent know
that James Leprino is the fourth-richest person in Col orado
at $3.1 billion. Now | don't have a problemw th people
maki ng noney.

In regards to anot her |arge producer, Saputo.
listened to the testinmony of M. Dryer. He presented a |ot
of nunbers and how tough this would be on Saputo. And you
know, he mi ght have to take a pay cut. But if I was himl'd
go and 1'd ask for a pay raise. Now why would | ask for a
pay raise? Well, in 2014 the list of Canadians by net worth
lists Saputo and famly as the sixth richest famly in

Canada at $6.24 billion. You probably didn't even know
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t hat .

Wl |, the source -- because | love -- | don't know
your name over here but boy, | tell you, | loved it when you
asked for sone coefficients of determ nation for P-val ues,
for RF factors and all that type of stuff. M source is the
Canadi an Busi ness nmgazi ne, January 15, 2015.

Yeah, they're worth $6.24 billion. In 2009 Saputo
and famly's net worth, you want to take a guess at how nuch
it was? $2.76 billion. |In five years you've got $3.5
billion. So I don't know how nmuch profit they need.
course, 2009 was our industry's worst year. Saputo's
bi ggest cheese plant is in Tulare so you can surm se that
much of their profit probably comes fromthat plant.

So to reiterate, in 2009 Saputo and fam |y had a
net worth of $2.76 billion. Five years later they have a
net worth of $6.24 billion. | think many of us here know
where nmuch of that increased net worth canme from

So | ask you and | let you decide, is California's
mlk pricing systemequitable to the producer and to the
processor? That's what |'ve got.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: Any questions fromthe
panel ?

MR. EASTMAN.  Just quickly, can you just let us
know where your dairy is at?

MR. DENIER  Yes. | gave her the address, 10715
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Arno Road, Galt, about 30 mi nutes south from here.

2

EASTMAN:. Oh, so you're not too far away.
DENI ER:  Yeah, not too far.

EASTMAN.  About how many cows do you --
DENIER W m | k 950.

EASTMAN. Do you grow any crops at all?

2 333

DENI ER:  Yeah, we grow, we grow about 350
acr es.

MR. EASTMAN. Has the drought affected you
substantially with regards to your farm ng operations?

MR DENIER It hasn't affected us substantially.
W're in northern California, we've got wells, we've got
pretty good water.

MR. EASTMAN. That's what | thought. Ckay.

MR. DENI ER  Thank you.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: Thank you for your
testi nony.

M. Barcellos.

MR BARCELLOS: Good afternoon

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: CGood aft ernoon.
M. Barcellos, could you please state your full nanme, spel
your |last name and state your affiliation for the record,
pl ease.

MR. BARCELLOS: M nane is TomBarcellos, B as in
B, ARCE-L-L-OS and | amhere representing T-Bar Dairy
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and White Gold Dairy.
Wher eupon,

TOM BARCELLGOS
Was duly sworn.

MR. BARCELLCS: Well good afternoon, M. Hearing
O ficer and Panel. Thank you for this opportunity to
testify.

|"d like to start out by meking a statenent that |
know that all of us in this roomare acquai ntances or
friends and that we will abide by whatever the results of
this hearing are. That's just the way we have to do things.

| am here in support of the petition put forth by
Western United, M Ik Producers, CDC and al so supported by
t he co- ops.

Alittle bit about nyself. 1've had a farm ng
operation for 40 years. | reentered the dairy business as
anot her busi ness 29 years ago when | returned to the famly
facility where | was born and raised and | have been
operating that dairy and then started another dairy five
years ago with ny daughter and son-in-law. Both of them are
800 cow facilities.

We are considering, we're in the process of trying
to upgrade the facilities. But in that process, because
we're trying to make something better, the Air Board thinks

that we need to invest in air credits, even though we're
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going to inprove it just by doing upgrades. And | don't get
a premiumfor that so, you know, | have sonme concerns there.

We have | abor issues now since the m ni nrum wage
has gone up even though we've always paid substantially
over. There are Spanish radio stations that are coaching
| abor that now with the higher m ninumwage that they can
work | ess hours and qualify for many different types of
benefits and not have to work nights and weekends on a
dairy, they can do stuff during the week. So by no fault of
ours we are being challenged on the | abor side as well.

When it comes to premuns for producing mlk, I'd
like to have it in nmy check twice a nonth, not where it
comes when there's a threat of a hearing and di sappears
after things are settl ed.

| woul d have brought ny wife with me because she
keeps bending ny ears that it wasn't that |ong ago that our
m | k check was 40 percent higher than it is now. And the
fact that it's that nmuch Iower and the retail prices in the
store are only down by pennies, she has sone concerns on who
i s keeping that noney. Because she knows the difference
bet ween 40 percent reduction in our m |k check versus what
she has to still spend at the grocery store.

You' ve al ready heard about dairy sales. Just a
coupl e of nonths ago ny neighbor a mle down the road who

has been dairying there for 57 years sold out. And they had
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a new nodern facility that they had upgraded ten years ago.
A very nice facility. But rather than stay in the industry
they sold the cows, closed the facility down, planted half
of it totrees and they're row cropping the rest for a short
period of time depending on the water situation.

Next week my cousins sell out after 71 years in
business. And that's because they just didn't see any |ight
at the end of the tunnel. And with seven famly nenbers it
was a little bit of a challenge. | won't say it was poor
estate planning but, you know, when you get that nmany not
everybody sees eye to eye. So it's probably best for them
but it's not best for the industry.

When you want to tal k about water, | sit on an
irrigation district board. W get our water on the east
side in the Friant system And if you hear that we got a 40
percent allocation, that sounds all fine and wonderf ul
except 40 percent allocation is only 40 percent of what we
have a contract with the Bureau of Reclamation. So that 40
percent is actually only going to be 15 percent of ny water

needs. So even if we got 100 percent allocation of our

Class | and our Cass Il, which is additional water, if |
got 100 percent of everything that's still only 80 percent
of the surface water that we apply; and so we still rely on

gr oundwat er .

There are flood rel eases that can conme into play,
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but as we irrigate we al so recharge the underground so it

pl ays two-fold. As we manage our farmand irrigate and do
the proper things we also help the surroundi ng communities.
Now if dairy feed goes away and everything becones drip and
mcro there is no groundwater recharge. That's done and the
comunities are going to continue to have issues.

We do have a Sustainabl e G oundwat er Managenent
Act that we have to deal with, so going forward we have sone
real challenges that we're faced with. And then of course
you hear about the west side getting only a 5 percent
allocation. That's a state project. And, you know, we're
just not in love with the Governor over that either. So
| ooking forward gets to be a little difficult.

And al so the fact that all of our fall feed, our
silages and stuff that went in, it's all been deval ued
because as crop prices fall so does the value there. So
we' ve actually | ost sonme noney on inventory.

And Joe Paris made a comment about w thout profit.
And | have to -- | have to kind of piggyback on that because
he's right. Wthout profit there is no future mlk. So in
all the tinmes that |'ve seen dairies go out of business I
have not seen a cheese plant go out of business. And |I'm
not picking on the cheese plant, | believe I"mjust stating
a fact as well.

So thank you for that and |1'd be happy to answer
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any questions.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: Thank you, M. Barcell os.

Ms. Rooney.

Ms. Rooney, will you please state your full nane,
spel |l your last nanme and state your affiliation for the
record.

M5. ROONEY: Emily Rooney, RROONE-Y,

Agricul tural Council of California.
Wher eupon,

EM LY ROONEY
Was duly sworn.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: Do you have any witten
statenents or other things you would like entered into the
record?

M5. ROONEY: Yes, just what |'ve given you guys.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: Your witten testinony
wi || be Exhibit nunmber 44.

(Exhibit 44 was entered into the record.)

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: You may proceed.

M5. ROONEY: All right, thank you. | amjust
going to wal k through sonme of the highlights of the witten
testinmony |'ve provided this afternoon.

So thank you, M. Hearing Oficer and nenbers of
the Panel. | appreciate the opportunity to testify today.

My nanme is Emly Rooney and | am President of Agricultural
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Council of California. Ag Council represents approximately
15,000 farmers throughout California ranging fromsnall,
farmer - owned busi nesses to sone of the world' s best-known
br ands.

Qur dairy nenbership includes the three California
cooperatives - California Dairies, Inc., Dairy Farnmers of
America and Land O Lakes. W collectively represent over 75
percent of the fluid mlk in California. Ag Counci
supports the proposal subnmitted by California Dairy
Canpai gn, M1k Producers Council and Western United
Dai r ynen.

Ag Council al so appreciates the Secretary for
calling this hearing on her owmn notion. Additionally, we
thank the Secretary for her conmtnment toward finding | ong-
termsolutions to issues inpacting the dairy industry.

The drought continues to linger in California.
woul d i ke to take this opportunity to provide an update on
the drought and its inpacts to the dairy industry.
According to the US Drought Mnitor, the geographic area of
t he nost severe drought distinctions has had some shrinking
due to the recent rainfalls. As an exanple, the Sacranento
Val | ey has had sone relief, but its drought intensity has
only downgraded fromthe nost extrene designation, known as

"exceptional drought,” to the previous designation known as

"extreme drought."”
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According to its April 5th, 2016 weekly report,
the US Drought Mnitor states, and | quote: "large swaths of
extrene to exceptional drought remain in ... [the] Southern
half of California.” This area includes the vast majority
of the San Joaquin Valley. A copy of the map highlighting
this region is attached to the back of ny testinony.

The US Drought Mnitor has kept its nost critical

desi gnati on, "exceptional drought,” for all of the San
Joaquin Valley Counties including but not limted to, San
Joaquin County on the north to Kern County to the south.
Most of the surrounding counties, including those in the
Sacranento Valley are still designated as "extrenme drought."”

I n August, UC Davis rel eased an Econonic Anal ysis
of the 2015 Drought for California Agriculture -- increasing
the statew de | osses due to drought from$2.2 billion in
| osses in 2014 to $2.74 billion in |losses in 2015. Total
job | osses are estimated in the range of 21,000 jobs in
2015.

The report states that dairies will add $250
mllion in | ost revenues for 2015 due to the drought.
Additionally, farmers will fallow approxi mately 542, 000
acres, nost of it comng fromthe San Joaquin Vall ey.
Groundwat er punpi ng costs increased to $587 nillion

Furthernore, the report concludes that the | osses

are uneven. Specifically, greater |osses will be
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experienced in areas of San Joaquin Valley w th poor
groundwat er supplies, such as Tul are, Kinds and Kern
Counties. The report also predicts greater deterioration of
t hese nunbers into 2016 and 2017 if the drought conti nues.

According to California s Enploynent Devel opnent
Departnment, in February 2016 the prelimnary unenpl oynent
rates in these counties are as follows: Tulare County at
12.2 percent, Kings County at 11.3 percent and Kern County
at 10.9 percent; while the statew de unenpl oynent rate was
5.7 percent.

There is also an increased reliance on groundwat er
due to shortages of surface water supplies. Even with
i ncreased use of groundwater, overall water use is down
approximately 1.6 mllion acre/feet as groundwater use is
only replaci ng about 75 percent of the water needs for
California agriculture.

This historic drought nerely adds to the burden
bei ng shoul dered by California dairynen and dai r ywonen.
Depressed dairy prices in 2015 only exacerbated the probl ens
faced throughout the San Joaquin Vall ey.

These events trickle down to the farmlevel and
contribute to the overall declining health of the dairy
farms in the state. Wiile dairy is the |eading sector in
California agriculture, the nunber of dairy farns is

decreasing. Additionally, the state's m |k production

ALL AMERI CAN REPCORTI NG | NC.

(916) 362-2345




© 00 N o o b~ w N P

N RN NN NN R R R R R R R R R
O N W N kB O © 0 N o 00 »h W N R O

195

decreased in the first quarter of 2016. The recent declines
have been attributed to the drought, decreasing dairy prices
and increasing regulatory and feed costs.

And | just wanted to comment on sone of the
comments brought up today that the drought is not totally
inmpacting dairy. | would actually say it's nore of a
geographic issue so the northern part of the state isn't
seeing what |'mhearing fromny dairynmen in the southern
part of the state where their wells are going dry, they are
not getting their surface water allocations, |ike Tom
Barcellos just testified to. So it really is nore a bigger
problemin the south San Joaquin Valley, which is in
accordance with the map that you' ve seen

The solution being offered by Western United
Dai rymen, M1k Producers Council and California Dairy
Canmpaign will assist California's dairy famlies. It is
al so consistent with the cooperatives' effort to bring
California's Class 4b fornmula in alignnent with the Federa
Order Cass Il price. The cooperatives remain focused on
this effort and have invested significant resources on that
front. The trade associations' proposal fills a short-term
gap that would provide relief until a determ nation is made
on the Federal Order.

In closing, we thank the Secretary for calling

this hearing and urge the Departnent to adopt the proposal
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by the producer groups. Thank you for your time and
consi derati on.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: Any questions fromthe
panel ?

MR. EASTMAN. Actually it's nore of a question/
favor request. | was wondering if you would be willing to
request a post-hearing brief so that in the post-hearing
brief you could just include the Iinks in your footnotes.
It's just easier to access. It really doesn't have to say
much except, these are the links in ny testinony.

M5. ROONEY: Ckay.

MR. EASTMAN. |s that okay?

M5. ROONEY: | would like to request a post-
hearing brief to fulfill Hyrums birthday request.

(Laughter.)

MR. EASTMAN. And | only want that because it's ny
bi rt hday, not because it will contribute to the hearing
record. Just so you know.

(Laughter.)

M5. ROONEY: Right. Consider it done.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: All right. So your
request for a post-hearing brief is granted and thank you
for your testinony.

M . Verburg.

M. Verburg, will you please state your full nane,
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spel |l your last nanme and state your affiliation for the

record.
MR. VERBURG M nanme is Jacob Pete Verburg, V-E-
R-B-U R G
HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: And your affiliation?
MR. VERBURG | ama dairy producer in Mdesto,
Cal i fornia.
HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER:  Thank you.
Wher eupon,

JACOB PETER VERBURG
Was duly sworn.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: Do you have any witten
statenents or other things you would like entered into the
record?

MR. VERBURG Yes, the statenent | gave you and
also | request a brief afterwards.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: (Okay. Your request for a
brief is granted and your statenent will be -- the exhibit
wi Il be nunber 45.

(Exhibit 45 was entered into the record.)

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: You may proceed.

MR. VERBURG  Thank you

My name is Peter Verburg; | ama dairy producer
from Modesto, California. | amhere to testify in support

of the proposal put forward by the California Dairy
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Canpai gn, M|k Producers Council and Western United Dairynen
to bring the whey value in the 4b m Ik pricing fornula
closer inline with the whey value paid to dairy producers
in the federal m 1k nmarketing order system

| was not planning to testify today because this
is an extrenely busy tinme for nme on ny dairy, but | wanted
to take the time to travel up here to Sacranento because |
amreally al arned about the nunber of dairies that are
closing across this state. Just in ny area al one, seven
dairi es have gone up for sale and have been sold and no nore
cows on the places. | don't think these recent closures
woul d be reflected in the | atest data put out by CDFA so |
wanted to be here to give a firsthand account of how
radically the dairy industry is changing in ny area and
across the state.

California mlk production has been down for the
| ast 15 nonths. The drop in mlk production is dramatically
changing the dairy | andscape all around my operation.

One dairy that just went up for sale is the
Cenasci Brothers Dairy. They will be sold on the 14th of
this nmonth. That dairy has been in operation for 100 years.
The Gen-Ace Cattle, this is their marker for their cattle,
they are recogni zed all over the world for the quality of
cattle that those people have. But, they're going out.

The other one that's right down the road from ne
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is the Furtado Farns. They were already in business when |
nmoved up here from Torrance, California. W had a cash and
carry operation in Torrance, California originally. Wen
noved up here Furtado Farns was already there. Their cattle
were sold a nonth and a half ago. The dairy is now enpty,
it"'s going to trees.

Anot her one, the other side of nme, Jelle VanDer
Hoek. Jelle had two dairies. Jelle VanDer Hoek sold his
cows three weeks ago. Overland Livestock sold the cows at
auction. Both dairies are now gone. VanDer Hoek originally
did buy a ranch in Nevada where he had a younger brother
that was raising all the hay and still he couldn't -- he
wasn't going to nmake it, so he got out.

Anot her one is Amaral & Amaral Dairy which cl osed
due to a change in ownership of the rented facility.

One dairy near nme that sold a while back was a
state-of-the-art dairy built five years ago; sold to be torn
down to plant alnonds. Wthin six mles of nmy dairy. This
is a newdairy. It was bought and bull dozed to pl ant
anot her crop.

This story is all too common in ny area and across
the state. These are seven dairies that have sold in recent
weeks and there are many nore dairies that are closing or
likely they will close. W haven't seen the end of this

trend.

ALL AMERI CAN REPCORTI NG | NC.

(916) 362-2345




© 00 N o o b~ w N P

N RN NN NN R R R R R R R R R
O N W N B O © 0 N o o0 »h W N R O

200

Many of these dairy producers | knew personally
and were dedicated to the dairy industry and worked hard to
sustain their dairy operations, but the fact that dairies in
our state have been underpaid conpared to dairy farns in
ot her states has jeopardized the future of these and al
other dairies in our state. The seven dairies that have
just gone out near nme range in size from900 to 1,500 cows.
The owners and operators of these dairies decided to | eave
t he busi ness because they could no longer justify the |ong
hours, hard work and financial risk given the [ack of any
sort of profitability.

Part of the issue this year is the tightening
credit situation given lownmlk prices that is causing the
banks to stop extending credit. 1In '09, if you people
remenber, the banks kept | oaning dairynen noney. They'd
| oan them sonme nore noney. They were short, |oan them sone
nore noney. The banks are not going to nake that sane
stupid m stake again. They did it once, they're not going
to do it twice. Today banks realize it is cheaper to |et
the dairy go out of business, which is putting pressure on
t hose operations and | eading to nore closures. For the
first tinme in nore than 15 years that | can renenber, the
state's largest dairy cooperative is actually |ooking for
new dairy producers to join their co-op due to the nany

dairy closures up and down our state.
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| know that some will argue that m |k production
is down in sonme other states |ike New Mexico and Texas, but
that drop in production is due to an act of God when a storm
hit last Christmas. These states are no conparison to
California because the drop in m |k production here is due
to an act or a failure of our CDFA Secretary to act to bring
dairy producer prices in our state in line with the rest of
the country.

| have owned and operated a dairy farmin Mdesto
for nore than 50 years. Qur state has sone of the highest
costs of production in the country due to the high cost of
| and, dairy inputs, costs associated with environnental,
| abor and all the nmany other regulations that dairy
producers nmust follow in order to operate a dairy in
California. The historic and ongoing drought in California
and the uncertainty about water availability nakes it even
nore challenging for dairies |ike ne to remain in operation.

For far too many years, dairy producers in
California have been paid substantially |ess than dairy
producers in the federal order system Adoption of the
proposal put forward by CDC, MPC and WUD and supported by
the CDI, DFA and LCL will bring our 4b price closer in line
with the federal order Class IIl prices paid in the federa
order system Gven that the magjority of the m |k produced

in our state is used for 4b production, it is critical that
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the whey value in the 4b tracks the whey value paid in the
federal order system

Time and again | and other dairy producers have
called on California Departnent of Food and Agriculture to
fix our state pricing systemso that | and other dairy
producers in our state are paid prices for our mlk that are
inline with the rest of the country. The failure of CDFA
to fix our state systemhas |led ne and other dairy producers
across our state to support joining the federal mlk
mar keti ng order system And | would like to add, | ama
very high quota holder and yet | amstill going to go with
the federal order system even if it may jeopardi ze what |
have in quota.

| and other dairy producers sinply cannot afford
to be so significantly underpaid conpared to dairy producers
in the rest of the country. |If our prices were in line with
dairy producer prices in the federal order systemwe woul d
not have seen nore than 300 dairies exit in the last five
years and many nore dairy producers questioning whether to
conti nue.

Not only are we paid significantly | ess than the
farmers in other states but we also are at a great
di sadvant age under the new Dairy Margin Protection Program
Because our prices in this state are so nuch |ower, the

Dairy Margin Protection Program DMPP, is much |ess
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effective in California. Guven the fact that the all-mlk
price is used in the DWP is approaching $2 hi gher than the
price | and other dairy producers in our state receive, this
program provides no real "safety net" when prices drop out
here.

In conclusion, |I support the proposal put forward
by CDC, MPC and WUD because it will better align our 4b
pricing with the federal order system | would like to
request an opportunity to file a post-hearing brief and
thank you for allowing ne to speak here today.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: Your request to file a
post-hearing brief is granted.

Questions fromthe panel ?

MR. EASTMAN. | don't actually have a question but
| appreciate you conmng up to spend a little time with us,
even though we realize this is a busy time for you on your
dairy and you obviously had to make sacrifices to be here,
whereas others are paid to be here, so we appreciate you
testifying on your own accord.

MR VERBURG \Well | love -- the reason |I'm here,
| love this industry.

MR EASTMAN. It shows. |t shows.

MR. VERBURG And we can't let this industry go.
California needs dairies. | have 12 enpl oyees on ny dairy.

Those are all steady jobs. Those people will lose all their
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jobs. Those are not part-time. | provide housing, |

provi de nedical, | provide everything for ny enpl oyees. And
| guarantee you, they ain't going to be happy if Verburg
says, 'I'mselling the cows.'

MR. EASTMAN.  Thank you.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: Thank you for your
t esti nony.

MR. VERBURG  Thank you

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: M. Vandenburg.

M . Vandenburg, would you please state your ful
name, spell your last name and state your affiliation for
the record, please.

MR. VANDENBURG. My nane is Leonard Vandenburg, V-
A-N-D-E-N-B-U- R- G
Wher eupon,

LEONARD VANDENBURG
Was duly sworn.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: Do you have any witten
statenents or other things you would like entered into the
record at this tinme?

MR. VANDENBURG. | do, it's the testinony | handed
to you.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: The witten testinony of
M. Vandenburg will now be received as Exhibit nunber 46 and

you nmay proceed.
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(Exhibit 46 was entered into the record.)

MR. VANDENBURG. |'mgoing to ad lib sonme of this
testinmony as | made sonme notes prior to this.

It makes it a little bit difficult when you know a
| ot of the people, when you' ve got a passion, certainly for
producers that | knowreally well, that | represent. M
dear friend Richard Denier that was up here. And Richard,
"1l address sone of the things that you tal ked about. So
it makes it difficult but --

| want to thank Secretary Ross and the hearing
panel for the opportunity to express our views today.

| am Leonard Vandenburg representing Pacific CGold
M| k Products, also known as Pacific Gold Creanery, which
its owners consist of dairy producers and several private
investors, including nyself. | amcurrently President and
CEO and representing Pacific Gold M1k Products, a specialty
cheese pl ant.

Pacific Gold Creanery would not currently support
any proposal that allows an increase in class prices and/or
whey price increases. The current conmodity price weakness

and increased inventories gives little support for such a

change.

And behind this testinony there will be 15
attachnments that you can see that will support a bunch of
t he docunents. | didn't l|abel all of them but you can
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certainly | ook at them whenever you w sh.

One of the things | wanted to nmention, in our
cheese plant - and it may address Richard's situation a
l[ittle bit when you tal k about |arge conpani es that have
beconme very weal thy over the nmany, many years in processing
dairy products and investnents - is that our cheese plant is
owned basically by dairy producers. W' ve nade a speci al
and asserted effort for themto have that same opportunity.

And nobody else in this state is doing that. And
at the end of the day | believe major cooperatives have
failed their nenbers. Because when a nenber |eaves a
cooperative he takes nothing with him He has no assets in
t hat conpany, he has no investnents that's going to cone
back other than the retains. None.

Pacific Gold MIk Products is a private conpany
held by dairy farmers and that's why we do that.

| will keep my testinony very brief and to the
point and that's a promse. Pacific Gold Creanmery is a
specialty cheese plant that started in Decenber of 2012. W
currently enploy 35 people and make over 10 types of
cheeses. Qur current volunmes are approximately 25 mllion
pounds of mlk annually.

Pacific Gold Creanmery has |imted options for whey
use.

1. W can sell it directly to cattle feeders,
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whi ch the whey price there is based on 70 percent of the

val ue of nunber 2 yellow corn, which is $160 a ton today.
And 70 percent of that is $112 or a little over $0.055 cents
a pound. For about 3,000 pounds of solids in a |oad of
whey, this equates to $168 per load. And the delivery cost
for this whey is $250 or a |oss of $82 per load, a little
over $0.04 per pound.

2. \Wen sone of the whey is converted to Ricotta,
which is the only thing we can do in the plant at tines,
only half of those solids are captured, resulting in a snal
potential rmargin.

3. The third option would be to RO the whey and

sell it to sonmeone willing to dry it. However, this would
require a $2.5 mllion investnent or nmore for an RO
additional silo space, chilling and installation costs.

Wth the current whey prices at only $0.245 plus operating
cost, there mght be a return in 20 years fromnow. | don't
believe that the Departnent woul d expect us to do that.

And nunber 4. The last option would be to dry our
own whey on property that we don't own and the current
required investnment to dry our own whey woul d be
approximately $15 mllion. And | have spent tine even
| ooking into that. W have had proposals, quotes. If you
wi sh to have that | can get that to you in a post-hearing

brief. But for our size operation it would be a $15 mllion
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investnment. And this is no option that we would even

consi der and neither should the Departnent expect such a

ri sky proposition. Especially the fact that 2012 (sic) dry
whey prices are 37.5 percent of the 2014 yearly averages.
Furthernore, dry whey prices are the | owest since 2007.

The WPC34 price for 2015 average just under $0. 80,
which is the | owest since 2009. The current WPC34 at
approxi mately $0.57, which the previous 9 year average is
$1.135. That makes our current WPC34 al nost half of the 9
year average. These historic | ow WPC34 prices and dry whey
prices are creating financial challenges for our cheese
operation. The future for dry whey prices are alnpost at a
current level for the next year when you | ook at futures.

Wth the total cheese inventory reported nearly at
a billion pounds, dry whey at over 75 million pounds, which
is 50 percent nore than the previous year average, WPC over
65 mllion pounds in inventory. Wth very strong US m |k
production there are reports that there is mlk being sold
for $8 under the class price, which | tal ked about.

There was al so a bunch of talk earlier in this
hearing, and I think there was sone interest about, is there
potentially outside mlk comng into California? And | can
tell you there is. Wuld it be year-round? 1 don't know.
But | personally have di scussed with outside processors and

m |k handlers that they are swnmng in a glut of mlKk.
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That they are | ooking at noving west. And | think that's
the first time |'ve ever experienced that in all the years
|*ve handl ed m | k.

The producers are challenged with [ ower mlk
prices, and | get that. And again, however, feed costs has
dropped dramatically and continue to drop. Silages, grains,
hay and al nond hulls are being offered at prices not seen
since 2010. This is another reason why whey val ues are even
worth | ess because their energy val ue as conpared to what
nunber 2 yellow corn is. And that's how we determ ne the
val ue of that whey soneti nes.

This has created a market climate that wll
encourage nore production, nore product, with already weaker
export markets and greater inventory, intensified
conpetition for dairy product sales, resulting in | owered
mar gi ns and/or likely | osses.

Pacific Gold Creanery wi shes to currently support
the Dairy Institute position, however - and this was brought
up earlier and | didn't know if sonebody was going to bring
it up and it was a topic - but we strongly -- Pacific Gold
Creanery strongly believes that a renewed attenpt to bring
representatives of producers, cooperatives and processors
together in a serious effort to draft a sinplified mlk
pricing structure for the mutual benefit of producers and

buyers. And | represent producers as well as our cheese
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plant so | understand both sides of it and there has been an
everlasting battle it seens like lately of, you know, who
shoul d get what.

The reason for this proposal is because we are
here today in the hopes of maintaining our state order
t hrough nore pricing adjustnments when in fact there are so
many fundanmental differences between the California state
order and the Federal M Ik Marketing Orders. W have been
pat chi ng our systemfor 40 years. Let's be honest, our
California mlk pooling systemis broken.

| would ask for a post-hearing brief if it's
required and I thank you for consideration of this
t esti nony.

| would want to nmake one comment. | believe there
was a statenent earlier that our 4b pricing is the | owest
value of all the classes. | think | heard that earlier in a
testinmony and | just want to nmake that correction. You
know, it's at |east 80 cents higher as of March and | think
prior nonths the sane.

One other statenent. People are wondering whet her
prem uns are going up. Through the confidentiality between
contracts and buyers and sellers | can't divul ge what the
nunber is but | can assure you that premiuns are definitely
hi gher .

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: So your request for a
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post-hearing brief is granted.

MR. VANDENBURG. Thank you

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: Now questions fromthe
panel .

MR. SHI PPELHOUTE: | just want to clarify. 1In
your witten testinmony you speak specifically to Pacific
Gold MIk Products, not the cooperati ve.

MR. VANDENBURG  Correct.

MR. SHI PPELHOUTE: But then in your verbal
statenents you suggested that you -- you nentioned that you
al so represent the co-op. Wre you representing the co-op
with this as well or --

MR. VANDENBURG  No.

MR. SHI PPELHOUTE: -- at other tines you represent
t he co-op?

MR. VANDENBURG. At other times we represent the
co- op.

MR. SHI PPELHOUTE: kay, thank you.

MR. VANDENBURG. This testinmony here is strictly
for the cheese plant.

MR, SHI PPELHOUTE:  Ckay.

MR. VANDENBURG. You know, if | may add. 1In the
past | have testified on behalf of dairy farmers and, you
know, you think that cheese plants are making a ton of

noney. As the President and CEO of a cheese plant, and
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wite all -- | sign all the checks. Learn one thing, you
don't make a |l ot of noney in a cheese plant until you're
maybe in it 10, 15, 20 years with a |lot of investnent,
positioning markets, getting entrenched. But it's a huge
i nvestnment and sacrifice, if you will, before you ever get
there. That | can assure you nyself.

MR. SHI PPELHOUTE: No ot her questi ons.

MR. MONSON: | had a quick question,

M. Vandenburg. 1In your testinony you nmentioned several
options that your conmpany could consider with what to do
with its whey stream and none of them sounded very positive.
What do you guys currently do?

MR. VANDENBURG. W try to sell as nuch ricotta as
we can.

MR, MONSON:.  Ckay.

MR. VANDENBURG. Wenever you have -- you know,
whenever you have lower mlk prices it beconmes nore
difficult. Quite frankly, | think every processor out there
wi shes we had $18 mlk, it would be nuch better. Because
when you have $18 m |k you al so have higher prem uns in the
market, there's nore demand for it and it's easier to sell.
When you have $13 mlk it's rmuch nore difficult. So we try
to make ricotta out of it whenever we can. But what product
that we can't put inricotta we are forced to send it to a

dairy and we | ose noney on every single load. If sonebody
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wants to see an invoice for the hauling please |let nme know
and I'Il send it to you. | send the checks for it.

MR. MONSON: Thank you.

MR. VANDENBURG You're wel cone.

MR. EASTMAN. | think just for the record, that
woul d be good if you could submt that in the formof a
post-hearing brief. | think you had nmentioned in your
testinmony as well that you had sonme quotes for investnent in
whey processing equipnment; is that what you had nenti oned?

MR. VANDENBURG. Yes. Drying equi pnent and RO, RO
equi pnent .

MR. EASTMAN. |If you wanted to submit both of
those in a post-hearing brief that would be great.

MR. VANDENBURG. | can do that.

MR EASTMAN. Put that on the record.

MR. VANDENBURG. Thank you.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: Thank you for your
testi mony, M. Vandenburg.

MR. VANDENBURG. You're very wel conme, thanks.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: M. De Jong.

M. De Jong, will you please state your full nane,
spel |l your last nanme and state your affiliation for the
record, please.

MR De JONG Sure. M nane is Janmes De Jong, |I'm

with Hil mar Cheese Conpany. The last nane is spelled D E,
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space, capital J-ONG
Wher eupon,

JAMVES De JONG
Was duly sworn.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: And do you have any
witten statenents or other things you would |Iike entered
into the record?

MR De JONG Yes. | provided you with copies and
there is an attachnment of our Federal M Ik Marketing O der
brief. And | would ask you to pay special attention to
pages 32 to 37, are nost applicable to this hearing.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: The witten testinony of
M. De Jong will be marked as Exhi bit nunber 47 and you may
proceed.

(Exhibit 47 was entered into the record.)

MR De JONG M name is Janmes De Jong. | amthe
Dairy Policy and Econom ¢ Anal yst for Hi |l mar Cheese Conpany,
HCC.

HCC is a cheese and whey products manufacturer
with locations in California and Texas. |In California, HCC
purchases mlk fromover 200 dairies processing about 12
percent of the mlk produced in California each day. W
enpl oy over 1,000 people at our facilities in California and
sell finished products to over 50 countries around the

gl obe.
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HCC was forned in 1984 by a group of innovative,
mar ket - ori ented dai rynmen who sought to capture the ful
val ue of their high quality mlk. They founded the conpany
on the ideal that producers should receive a conpetitive
mar ket -driven price for their mlKk.

Posi tion

| am here today to represent HCC and our dairy
producer owners. HCC supports the Dairy Institute of
California, DIC, alternative proposal to value whey and does
not support the increases in the Class 4b m ninmum prices as
proposed by the trade associations, WJD, CDC, MPC, and
supported by the three cooperatives, CDI, DFA and Land
O Lakes. HCC believes their proposal significantly
overval ues the whey streamand will |ead to or nagnify
negative returns for California cheese makers. M ni mum
prices need to be set at levels that allows for a return on
investnment and facilitates m |k clearing the market.

Backgr ound

Today, the dairy industry is challenging for both
producers and processors. For producers, ongoing |low mlk
prices have added to the stress of a prol onged water
shortage, intense conpetition for |and and hi gher regul ative
and | abor costs. Wiile feed prices have al so conme down, it
has not been enough for many producers and sonme have |eft

the industry. Still, the rate of producer consolidation in
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California has remai ned bel ow the national average from 2010
to 2015. For manufacturers, comobdity markets for mlk
powders, cheese, |actose and whey proteins continue to be
depressed, resulting in tight or negative margins. This
| eaves bot h producers and processors at this hearing
fighting over a share of the shrinking revenue pie. As
such, HCC believes the California systemis in desperate
need of reform Increases in mnimmprices will do nothing
to address our nost basic problens. Instead, they will only
further danmage our industry by continuing to deter
i nvestment and del ay necessary |long-termreform

Econom ¢ standards for m |k product price
regul ati on

For 50 years, CDFA has used conponent pricing to
regul ate the price that nust be paid to dairy farners for
Grade A m |k used for manufacturing purposes. For over 25
years, two manufactured product prices have been enpl oyed,
the Cass 4b and the Class 4a m | k. Under conponent
pricing, CDFA has consistently applied econonm c fornul as
which start with nonthly California market prices for cheese
powder and butter. Fromthese prices, California-specific
product manufacturing costs, including a reasonable return
on investnment, are subtracted. The difference is fixed as
the m ninmumregul ated price that manufacturers nmust pay to

dairy farmers.
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CDFA's 4a and 4b price formul a deci sions have
consistently recognized that it is a good economc policy to
provi de a manufacturing margi n between product prices
received and mlk prices that nust be paid - that provides a
reasonabl e return on investnent.

The process enployed by CDFA is essentially a
mrror image of famliar utility and transportation rate
regul ation, in which costs plus a reasonable return on
i nvestnment are calculated to produce a regul ated price that
utility and transportation providers may charge. A
reasonabl e return on investnent over time has | ong been
deened a constitutional inperative in utility rate
regul ati on and other forms of price control. Although CDFA
has not expressly articul ated these | egal standards as
governing the agency's long-termpractice of using a return
on investnment as a factor in mlk pricing fornmulas, CDFA s
deci si on-maki ng history has generally conformed to this
ideal. The result has achi eved a bal ance between the
interests of reasonably efficient manufacturers in a return
on investnment and interests of dairy farners in mlk revenue
reflecting product values in a conpetitive marketpl ace.

For exanpl e, when unrealized inputed revenue from
whey byproducts in the regulated 4b price formula resulted
in a failure of the manufacturing all owance to cover costs

in 2006 to 2007, requiring nmany cheese manufacturers to
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operate at a loss and reject mlk offered for manufacturing
pur poses, CDFA responded with a correction in the fornula,
reestablishing a fair return for cheese manufacturers of
reasonabl e effi ci ency.

However, we are here as a result of continued
pressure to increase the Cass 4b prices w thout apparent
regard to product revenue and return on investnent actually
experienced by California cheese makers under CDFA' s Cl ass
4b price formula. The proposal advanced by the trade
associ ations and the cooperatives would cross the |ine of
rati onal econom cs by providing |ong-termnegative returns
on investnment to California cheese manufacturers.

Trade associ ati on proposal does not allow for
return on investnent for manufacturers

Part 1. Dry whey nmake al |l owance

The Trade associ ati on proposal closely mrrors the
whey factor in the USDA Class IIl fornula, which inplies a
make al | owance of $0.1991 per pound of dry whey. However,
given this Federal M|k Marketing O der nake all owance was
based on 10 year old survey data and used several plants
outside of California in its survey, it is likely not
applicable to California and understates the cost. CDFA' s
second-to-l ast audited dry whey manufacturing survey for
2005, arguably the last survey the Departnment had confidence

in, showed a cost of about $0.285 per pound -- $0.2851 per
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pound. From 2005 to 2014, CDFA data shows NFDM
manuf acturing costs increased 24.2 percent, which like dry
whey al so has a manufacturing process that requires
substanti al water renoval

| f the 2005 $0.2851 per pound dry whey
manuf acturing cost al so rose by 24.2 percent, |ike NFDV
this woul d equate to a 2014 dry whey manufacturing cost of
$0. 3541 per pound. This is not an unreasonabl e assunption
gi ven HCC S own WPC80 manufacturing costs increased 40
percent from 2006 to 2014. Expanding this thought further,
the difference between the inplied $0.3541 per pound
manuf acturing cost and what is assunmed in the trade
associ ation proposal, which is $0.1991 per pound, inplies a
negative return of $0.155 per pound of dry whey produced.
When using a whey yield of 5.9 pounds per hundredwei ght, as
assuned in the USDA Cass IIl formula, the $0.155 per pound
di screpancy equates to a | oss of $0.91 per hundredwei ght.
For a plant running 13 mllion pounds of mlk per day, the
trade associ ation proposal would cost $118, 000 per day or
$43.2 mllion per year over the inplied $0.3541 nake
al l omance for dry whey with standard test ml K.

Part 2. Converting the Cass 4b whey factor into a
SNF price causes distortions in high conmponent m Kk

Furthernore, since the whey factor in the Cass 4b

formula is blended into the SNF price, an increase in SNF
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m |k content above 8.8 percent will increase the given whey
factor proportionately. For exanple, the trade association
proposal calls for a whey factor of $2.04 per hundredwei ght
when the dry whey price is $0.53 per pound, which is the
previous five year average dry whey price. But at 9.1 SNF
9.2 percent SNF, a reasonable test for mlk going into a
cheese plant, this increases to $2.11 per hundredwei ght.

By contrast, the USDA whey factor is determ ned by
the 'other solids' test of the mlk, which tends to be
constant or even slightly declining with higher SNF
percentages. The current USDA Class IIl whey factor would
val ue $0.53 per pound dry whey at $1.95 per hundredwei ght at
a real world '"other solids' test of 5.72 percent. This
inplies the trade association proposal is asking for a whey
factor $0.16 per hundredwei ght hi gher than the unacceptable
USDA Cass Il whey factor for real world test m |k assum ng
a $0.53 per pound dry whey price. This is illustrated in
Figure 4. For a plant running 13 mllion pounds per day,
this would cost an extra $21, 000 per day, or $7.7 million
per year, over the current USDA Class Il whey factor.

Looki ng at the trade associations' whey factor
proposal , the conbi ned i npact of an outdated make al | owance
for dry whey manufacturing and the overval uati on of the whey
factor at real world test m |k would overval ue the whey

stream approxi mately $1.07 per hundredweight, relative a
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USDA C ass Il whey factor with updated nake al |l owance.
This result is graphed in Figure 5.

Part 3. The trade associ ation proposal and
tenporary whey factor does not allow for an adequate return
on investnment relative |iquid WPC

Conparing the trade associ ati on proposal and
tenporary whey factor against the DI C proposal also shows a
| arge contrast. For a cheese nmaker only able to capture the
liquid WPC value fromtheir whey stream the trade
associ ation proposal woul d have overval ued whey by an
average of $0.54 per hundredwei ght fromthe year 2000
t hrough 2015 using historical dry whey and WPC34 prices and
9.1 percent SNF m k. For some years the difference exceeds
$1. 00 per hundredwei ght. Looking at the tenporary proposal,
it would have overval ued the whey stream by an average of
$0. 33 per hundredwei ght relative the DIC Iiquid WPC val ue
from 2000 t hrough 2015. These results are unacceptable
because many cheese nakers would not be able to earn a
return on investnent nost of the tine.

4. Qutdated manufacturing nake al |l owances cannot
be ignored

The C ass 4b cheese nmake al |l owance is using CDFA
manuf acturing cost data from 2006. From 2006 to 2014, CDFA
audi ted manufacturing cost data for cheddar cheese increased

from $0. 1988 per pound to $0.2355 per pound, a $0. 0367 per
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pound i ncrease. Assuming a 10.2 pound per hundredwei ght
cheese yield, this shortfall equates to a $0.37 per
hundr edwei ght m |k | oss, or $48, 700 per day, $17.7 mllion
per year for a 13 mllion mlk pound per day plant. The
Cl ass 4b whey factor cannot be | ooked at in isolation when
considering the | atest cheese manufacturing costs inply a
negative return on investnent. HCC s own cheddar
manuf acturing costs are not covered under the 2006 nake
al l omance currently enployed. 1In conjunction with C ass 4b
make al | owances, the 4a nmake al | owances have al so becone
outdated and inply a negative return on investnent. Both
nmust be addressed.
In 2011, Dr. Eric Erba, representing CDI, filed a
post-hearing brief to CDFA that read:
"At the forefront of the information
avai l abl e is the manufacturing cost studies
conducted by the Departnent, which have been the
cornerstone of California's mlk pricing
foundati on. The cost studi es have provided
unparal leled credibility to the mlk pricing
systemin California, and their inportance to the
m |k pricing process is unquestioned."
Again, in 2014, Dr. Eric Erba, representing CDI,
filed a petition for a 4a hearing to update the nmake

al l omance. He stated in this petition that:

ALL AMERI CAN REPCORTI NG | NC

(916) 362-2345




© 00 N o o b~ w N P

N NN N NN R R R R R R R R R
O N W N B O © O N o 00 »h W N R O

223

"As the largest butter and m |k powder
manuf acturer in the state, we cannot sinply ignore
the fact that our processing costs are higher than
t he manufacturing cost allowances in the C ass 4a
formul a m ght suggest. W cannot overl ook the
inplications that the static manufacturing cost
al | ownances have on all California Cass 4a and 4b
operations."
Part 5. Summary of dry whey and cheese returns
HCC bel i eves the inportance of accurate, up-to-
date nake al |l owances for whey processi ng and cheese cannot
be overstated. Reasonably efficient plants nust be all owed
to receive a return on investnment today and going into the
future until the next tinme manufacturing price fornulas are
addressed. The trade association proposal clearly falls
short of this mark. The Departnment should not be
consi dering massive whey val ue adjustnents w thout
considering the full Cdass 4b formul a val ue.
Dry whey is not a good neasure to val ue whey
protein and | act ose
The product revenue we generate from our cheese
plant in Hlmar is not well correlated to dry whey and can
at tinmes greatly overvalue the whey streamrel ati ve cheese
mlk prices. Figure 8 shows, on a protein adjusted basis,

that dry whey is a poor indicator of WPC values. |If
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anyt hing, nonfat dry m |k now tracks closer to WPC34, but
again this is not a strong correlation. The price spread
bet ween protein adjusted dry whey and WPC34 has reached as
hi gh as $0.50 per pound in recent years, naking WPC
production risky with dry whey based on C ass 4b whey
factors. Also, conparing dry whey to | actose shows a
vol atil e di sconnect. For over a year, |actose prices have
been bel ow costs of production whereas the trade association
proposal and tenporary whey factor have still been applying
positive value to the Cass 4b formul a nost nonths.

HCC s conpetitors are not subject to m nimum
pricing regulations or can opt out of the regul ated system

The cheese manufacturers in Cceania and Europe are
not subject to mnimummlk pricing regulations and instead
purchase m |k from dairymen based on actual comodity
conditions for the products they sell and in relation to
demand for mlk in the area. They do not have to worry
about mandatory mnimum m |k prices being driven by products
they are not even producing. Further, when HCC s nandatory
m ni mum prices are bound to our donestic market for cheddar
cheese and dry whey, it makes it extrenely difficult to
conpete in international markets and retain custoners. For
exanpl e, when international prices are |ower than donestic,
hi gh regul ated m ni mum prices push us out of those narkets

and in turn nmake it hard to get the business back when
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international markets are in our favor.

Donestically, all of our major conpetitors are in
unregul ated areas, such as Idaho, or in Federal Oders that
allowthe mlk to opt out of price regulation. These
conpetitors can all choose not to pool, de-pool or otherw se
pay bel ow USDA Class IIl pricing. According to Wstern
United Dairynmen's CDFA testinony |ast year, danbia in Idaho
pays on a formula that has averaged $0.50 bel ow USDA O ass
1. This is despite d anbia having | ower transportation
costs to eastern markets and likely | ower manufacturing
costs conpared to California. Furthernore, the whey portion
of Aanbia' s pay price fornmula is based on | actose and WPC34
prices to better correlate with the actual products they
sell, in effect giving them an advant age.

HCC s Dal hart plant in Texas in the Sout hwest
Federal Order is a non-pool plant that regularly pays bel ow
USDA Cass Il and can adjust m |k prices based on actual
mar ket conditions. In our California Federal Order
testinmony, we testified that the Dal hart plant bought
billions of pounds of m |k under class to clear the market
in the past year. |In addition to the ability to pay under
cl ass, Dal hart enjoys |ower transportation costs to eastern
mar ket s, whi ch i ncreases our net cheese price and al so has
| oner manufacturing costs. Recent Dairy Market News reports

continue to nention mlk selling under class in Federal
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Order regions.

Anot her issue brought up in past hearings is the
ability of cheese nmakers to switch to Gade B mlk as an
effective opt out of the regulated pricing system This is
not a realistic option for several reasons. First, it is
t he producer's choice, not the cheese plant's, whether their
mlk is swtched to G ade B. Further, the producer has an
incentive not to switch if they hold any quota or have
concerns about having to get permtted again if they want to
switch back to Gade A. Second, having a large Gade B m |k
supply will have a negative inpact on our product val ues and
l[imt our ability to sell mlk and cream for bal anci ng
purposes. In unregul ated areas of the US and Federal
Orders, mlk can be bought and sold outside the regul ated
pricing systemwhile retaining G ade A status. It would be
evi dence of disorderly marketing conditions if nobst cheese
plants in California were put into a position where they
could only remain viable by buying Gade B m |k

Uncertainty surrounding Cass 4b m nimum prices
stifles investnent

The existing mninmum prices and threat of higher
m ni mum prices continue to drive investnment outside of
California. as a result of the continuing uncertainty
surrounding the Class 4b price, HCC has directed investnent

inits cheese and whey busi ness out of state. Investors
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cannot make i nformed busi ness deci sions when the pricing
structure is unstable and subject to frequent hearings and
political pressure.

Proprietary cheese plants cannot pass on
manuf acturing | osses to producers |ike a cooperative

Al nost all of the cheese manufacturing in
California is under proprietary ownership, nmeaning that
busi ness | osses cannot be bl ended into | ower than m ni mum
mlk prices. Instead, all |osses nmust be concentrated onto
the owners. Cooperatives can continue operating in an
envi ronment where minimumm |l k costs outstrip their
manufacturing returns by sinply re-blending their |osses
across all of the producers. This exact scenario unfol ded
in 2014 when a | arge cooperative in California had to pass
on substantial |osses to their nenbers.

California's mlk pricing system needs reform

The long termsolution for the California dairy
industry is to reformthe pricing systemto force all mlk
buyers to focus on growing the value of m |k, not just
| everagi ng the systemto their advantage. When
manuf acturers can invest, create value for mlk and conpete
for mlk the producers will ultinmately win. This is needed
for the industry to survive and thrive in the future.
| nstead, the current regul ated system has trained the

st akehol ders to fight over m Ik pricing fornmulas and has
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gi ven the Departnent power to choose wi nners and | osers.
Concl usi on
The trade associ ati on proposal does not allow for
a fair return on investnent for reasonably efficient plants.
Adoption of the trade association proposal, or another
solution that does not allow for a return on investnent,
woul d run contrary to previous CDFA precedent and
constitutional standards for rate regulation. For this
reason, we urge the Department to adopt the DI C proposal for
liquid WPC, which does allow for a return on investnent.
There is a lowrisk to the industry in setting
m ni mum prices bel ow the market clearing | evel s because
premuns wll tend to fill the gap. On the other hand,
setting mninmumprices too high risks severely damagi ng the
processi ng sector for the short-term benefit of producers
but the long-termdetrinment of the California dairy
i ndustry. Furthernore, with the three main cooperatives in
California controlling roughly 75 percent of the mlk
supply, they have significant bargai ning power and the
ability to increase mlk prices if they choose. Nothing
prevents them from doing this and anecdotal evidence
suggests this is already happening as m |k supplies have
ti ght ened.
The integrity of COFA's mlk price control system

coul d be severely damaged if the agency succunbs to pressure
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to abandon its policy of reasonable returns on investnent in
fixing margins that may be retained by dairy product
manuf acturers.

Thank you for your tinme and consideration and | am
requesting the opportunity to file a post-hearing brief, if
necessary. | would be happy to answer any questions you nmay
have.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: Your request to file a
post-hearing brief is granted.

Questions fromthe panel ?

MR. SHI PPELHOUTE: So you testify that our process
essentially mrrors the Public Uilities Conm ssion rate-
setting process; is that correct?

MR De JONG In sonme ways it's alnost a reverse
In utility rate -- in utility regulation it's the price of
the input that's regulated and in a dairy it's al nost
flipped where the price of the mlk coming in is regulated.
So in that way it is simlar to a mrror inage.

MR SH PPELHOUTE: Simlar. But what we are
trying to establish is not the rate that nmay be charged or
will be charged to the consuner, correct?

MR. De JONG Correct, it has nothing to do with

the selling price. 1Is that what you're getting at? 1|'m
sorry. |Is it the prices that a dairy manufacturer sells his
product s?
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MR. SHI PPELHOUTE: Wsat |I'mgetting at is a -- as
| understand the Public Utilities Conmission's role, their
role is to authorize a rate that a utility conpany w ||
charge for the energy that they are selling to their various
custoners. As opposed to our role here which is to try and
establish a mnimum price that processors will|l pay producers
for market mlKk.

MR De JONG Yes, that is a difference. But I
think the main point we are trying to make is if the
regulated mnimumprice for mlk is set too high, a
reasonabl e return on investnment cannot be obtai ned.

MR, SHI PPELHOUTE: |I'mtrying to think of anywhere
in the Food and Ag Code that requires us to guarantee either
a processor or a producer a profit. Are you aware of any?

MR De JONG To nmy know edge there isn't in the
California Ag Code but if you would like | could refer you
to two California Suprenme Court cases where pricing
regul ati on was di scussed and specifically regarding the need
for a reasonable rate of return. | have those two exanpl es
witten down.

MR. SHI PPELHOUTE: Were those relative to our
systemor Public Utilities Conm ssion?

MR De JONG One was related to insurance rates
and another one, |I'mnot sure what the other one is. | know

one was insurance rates. Wuld you |like to?
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MR. SHI PPELHOUTE: |If you could just provide the
citation to those that's hel pful.

MR De JONG Sure. The first is CalFarm
| nsurance v. -- and | can't pronounce the second nanme. It's
spelled DDE-U-K-ME-J-1-A-N. And that is a case in 1989.

MR SHI PPELHOUTE: That woul d have been
Deuknej i an.

MR De JONG Yes.

MR SHI PPELHOUTE: Who woul d have been our
Governor at the tine.

MR De JONG And then the second is Galland v.
City of Covis, the California Supreme Court 2001.

THE REPORTER: Coul d you spell the first nane?

MR De JONG Galland, GA-L-L-A-ND

THE REPORTER: Thank you.

MR. SHI PPELHOUTE: Anot her question just to nake
sure | understand your testinony regardi ng your operations
in Dalhart. You nentioned that Dal hart is closer to eastern
mar kets and therefore you receive a higher price for your
cheese out of that plant?

MR. De JONG Absolutely.

MR. SHI PPELHOUTE: Absol utely higher price. And
you receive the mlk at a | ower price because it's
unr egul at ed?

MR De JONG Lower than Cass I11.
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MR SHI PPELHOUTE: Lower than Class Ill. I'm
going to cone back to that, | just want to reread this. |If
you have a question, go ahead.

MR. EASTMAN. | have a coupl e.

MR, SHI PPELHOUTE: Ckay.

MR. EASTMAN. The first question | have is,
currently is Hilmar primarily procuring its mlk fromits
menber - shi ppers or are they buying mlk on the spot market
or buying any mlk fromco-ops at this point?

MR De JONG No, pretty nmuch all of our mlk is
internal fromour own shi ppers.

MR. EASTMAN. And so | assune that that mlk, you
pay your producers based on your market basket fornmul a.

MR De JONG Yes, it's the difference between the
m ni mum regul ated 4b price and our market basket, which
inplies then the prem um

MR. EASTMAN. The second question | had was a
gquestion | think I'd asked earlier. Wth regards to the
mar keti ng of dried whey products, the alternative proposal
submtted by the Dairy Institute is based off of WPC34. In
your experience or your know edge as a WPC product of a
hi gher protein concentration is produced, or even as you
produce isolates, do you think the marketing of those
products are simlar to WPC34 based on sone sort of factor

or do they tend to be less related, |ess correl ated?
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MR De JONG | would say speaking to WPCB0, which
is our |argest protein product, it is -- WPC34 is a better
indicator. W'I|l often use it as a benchmark to conpare

agai nst our WPC80 prices; so in that sense it's a |ot
better. But there are supply-demand conditions sonetines
that can nove those a little bit out of alignment and |
think sonetinmes | think as Dr. Schiek nentioned that 80
prices can be set on longer termcontracts like multiple
nmonths. So they can disconnect a little bit but | believe
it's still much superior than dry whey.

MR. EASTMAN.  \What about for isolates?

MR. De JONG Isolates is -- | haven't
specifically | ooked at that but the isolate market is still
nore specialized, it hasn't beconme conpletely commoditized
so | couldn't specifically say that, but nmy guess woul d be
it's probably not very related to either dry whey or WPC34.

MR. EASTMAN. And then the manufacturing
conditions of, say, WPCB0 conpared to the 34, are they
fairly simlar except for increased, you know, cost to
concentrate to a higher |evel?

MR. De JONG Yeah, there's -- Yeah, there's
substantially nore cost to concentrating.

MR. EASTMAN. Are they related in sone sort of
factor? Are they sonmewhat different in that aspect?

MR De JONG You nean like related |Iike sone kind
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of mat hemati cal conversion?

MR. EASTMAN. Right. As a rule of thunb do you
normally see the cost related in a certain manner, sort of
in a certain range, or can that totally vary?

MR De JONG Yeah, we do, we do have mat hemati cal
factors that look at that relationship but I amnot willing
to give you that exact fornula.

MR. EASTMAN. Ri ght.

MR De JONG To how we exactly conpare it because
it would kind of get into sonme proprietary areas.

MR. EASTMAN. Sure. And then on the figures that
you have at the end of your testinony. | was wondering if
you could just wal k me through really quickly, just so |
under stand, what Figures 8 and 9 show, sort of how you got
at what they show.

MR De JONG Ckay, "Figure 8: Dry whey val ues are
both volatile relative whey protein, and have increased in
price relative when proteins. CDFA dry whey price adjusted
to 34% protein equivalent.” So | essentially take -- took
the dry whey price, divided it by 12. And | choose 12
because it's assunmed dry whey is 12 percent protein.

MR. EASTMAN. Hold on a second. So when you say
"the dry whey price" are you nmeaning the nonthly commodity
average, which --

MR De JONG Yes, the --
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MR. EASTMAN. -- is the Dairy Market News Mstly
Price Series Western Area?

MR De JONG Yes.

MR. EASTMAN.  Ckay.

MR. De JONG The CDFA published dry whey price
di vided by 12 and then nultiplied by 34 to get a 34 percent
protei n equival ent.

MR. EASTMAN. Ckay, gotcha.

MR. De JONG And yeah, the graph is essentially
showi ng that the rel ati onship has becone nore volatile and
that dry whey on a protein basis has been increasing in
value relative to 34. And | think that just kind of speaks
to the long-termtrend of the industry. | think decisions
to make hi gher value proteins, you know, were made, five,
ten, nore years ago. And as nore people have entered that
mar ket | think the prem uns have kind of eroded and you've
seen dry whey kind of increase in value relative the whey
pr ot ei ns.

MR. EASTMAN. And then for Figure 9, although
think it's simlar, why don't you go ahead and --

MR De JONG Yes.

MR. EASTMAN. -- just for clarity sake.

MR. De JONG Yes. These nunbers are conpletely
unadjusted. It's just show ng the absolute difference

bet ween the CDFA dry whey and the Dairy Market News Mostly
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Lactose. And it's just showing that there's periods of
di sconnect where manufacturers can either make a profit or
t hey can go backwards substantially.

MR. EASTMAN. Ckay, thank you.

MR. SHI PPELHOUTE: Basically, if |I sunmarize it in
one paragraph here, you're testifying that in Dal hart you
are able to buy mlk at below the Federal Order Cass |11,
you're able to process it -- your processing cost is less in
Texas and you receive a higher price. So basically, Dal hart
conpared to Hilmar, you' re nuch better off in all three,
hi gher price for the cheese going out, |lower price to
process and |lower price to buy the mlk in the first place.

MR De JONG We do have a manufacturing cost
advantage and we are getting a higher Class Il price. |
think the major point is that a Class IIl price or one that
is close to it doesn't work in California like it does in
Dal hart. Just saying that Dal hart, despite having those
advantages, Class IIl is still a high benchmark over there.

MR. SHI PPELHOUTE: Okay. And you testified the
foundi ng of the conpany was by producers, the ideal that
producers shoul d receive a conpetitive market-driven price
for their mlk. And what |'m hearing the producers testify
here today is that's exactly what their asking for on the
use of the tables that they have presented. Could you

comment on that?
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MR De JONG Yeah. | think the idea is that
mlk, the Hlmar way is that mlk is valued by what you can
dowithit. In HIlImr's instance, they were using a | ot of
Jersey m |k, which has a cheese yield advantage in it and
they were paying premuns for that. Wereas just continuing
to increase the regulated mninuns, it essentially
overval ues the | ower conponent mlk, spreads it through the
whol e pool so you can't give a proper incentive to attract
the mlk you want for your plant.

MR. SHI PPELHOUTE: Thank you. No ot her questions.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: Thank you for your
testimony, M. De Jong.

If we could, if you could please sign up at the
back of the roomif you are going to be a witness so we can
kind of plan out the rest of our afternoon and eveni ng.

Right nowit's 3:40. Let's take a ten mnute
break and start over at 3:50, please.

(OFf the record at 3:40 p.m)

(On the record at 3:52 p.m)

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: W will now reconvene; it
is 3:52.

Ms. McBri de.

Ms. McBride, would you pl ease state your ful
name, spell your last name and state your affiliation for

the record, please.
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M5. McBRIDE: Lynne McBride, MC, capital B-RI-D
E, and | amwith the California Dairy Canpaign
Wher eupon,

LYNNE McBRI DE
Was duly sworn.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: Do you have any witten
statenents or any other things you would like to enter into
t he record?

M5. MBRIDE: Yes | do, the statenent | just
passed out.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: The witten testinony of
Ms. McBride will now be received as Exhibit nunmber 48 and
you nmay proceed.

(Exhibit 48 was entered into the record.)

M5. MBRIDE: M. Hearing Oficer and Menbers of
the Panel, ny name is Lynne McBride. | currently serve as
Executive Director of the California Dairy Canpaign. CDC is
a grassroots organi zation representing dairy farmfamlies
t hroughout California. The testinmony I will present today
i s based on positions adopted by the CDC Board of Directors.

| would Iike to begin by thanking California
Department of Food and Agriculture Secretary Karen Ross for
hol ding this hearing today to consider adjustnents to the
whey factor in the 4b price formula. Gven that 4b m |k

utilization now totals over 46 percent of all pooled mlk,
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it is critical that the 4b price is equitable conpared to
other states. W join M|k Producers Council and Western
United Dairynmen in calling for an increase in the 4b whey
scale to better reflect the whey value in the federal mlk
mar ket i ng order pricing system

M| k production in our state is in decline.

According to the California Departnent of Food and
Agriculture "Annual Review," mlk production in California
was down 3.4 percent in 2015 conpared to 2014 and the
decline in mlk production continues to this day. For
years, our state has produced nore than 20 percent of the
nation's mlk, but for the first tinme in recent nmenory
California mlk production has dropped bel ow 20 percent.
For many a decline in mlk production is sinply a nunber to
consider, but for the dairy farmfamlies that we represent,
the decline in mlk production is a grimreality that has a
ripple effect on the local, regional and state econony. Qur
dai ry producer nenbers continue to question their future in
California due to the fact that mlk prices in our state are
routinely some of the | owest of any of the major mlKk
producing states in the nation. Wile mlk production is in
decline here, other states are increasing their mlk
production due largely to nore favorable pricing conditions
in other parts of the country.

The CDFA "Annual Review " for 2015 indicated that
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there are 1,438 dairies remaining in the state. Another 32
dairies went out of business in California |last year. Over
the last ten years nore than 600 dairies in California went
out of operation. W believe a significant reason for the
decline in the nunber of dairies in California is due to the
fact that dairy producers in our state are paid | ess than
dairy producers in the federal m |k nmarketing order system
Qur organi zation strongly supports efforts underway by
California Dairies, Inc., Dairy Farnmers of America and Land
O Lakes, Inc. to establish a federal order for California to
bring our state dairy producer pricing and the process for
determining mninmnummIlk prices inline with the rest of the
federal order system

According to the | atest Statew de Cost Conpari son
Summary fromthe fourth quarter of 2015, the average cost to
produce milk in California totaled $19. 74 per hundredwei ght
while the income received per hundredwei ght according to
that very sane report totaled $16.73 per hundredwei ght. The
situation has only deteriorated on the incone side since
then. According to the |atest CDFA data, the Overbase price
for February totaled just $13.09 per hundredwei ght, well
bel ow average production costs. The last tine the Overbase
price was this Iow was in May 2010, a year when the average
cost of production was $15.19 per hundredwei ght, much | ower

than the average cost of production in our state today.
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Since late 2014, prices paid to dairy producers have been
significantly bel ow production costs |eading to nounting
| osses for dairy producers throughout the state.

And Dairies Continue to Cl ose

Since the | ast CDFA hearing, a nunber of our dairy
producer nenbers have closed their dairies across the state.
| want to briefly talk about some of our dairy producer
menbers who cl osed their operations to illustrate how
rapidly dairy farmng in California is changing. Last tine
| testified before this CDFA panel, | described how one of
our long-time board nmenbers decided to sell his dairy in
California and | eave to start a dairy operation in another
state. He continues to believe that it was the best
deci sion he ever made because his new dairy is far nore
prosperous than the one he left behind in California.

Again this year, another long-time board menber in
our organi zation made the decision to sell his cows earlier
this year. H's dairy was a 600 cow Hol stein dairy that had
been in operation for generations. He is yet another
exanple of a dairy producer in California who was a | eader
in our organization and within the industry as a whol e who
decided it sinply made nore sense to sell his cows than
continue to incur losses on the dairy. He ran a highly
efficient and nodern dairy operation and had a real passion

for dairy farmng. However, he and his famly could no
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| onger justify the long hours and the financial risk
required to keep their dairy in operation.

Anot her dairy that closed since the |ast hearing
was a 500 cow dairy in the Turlock area. The owners of this
dairy were leaders in the dairy industry both at the state
and national |level. Both husband and wife testified before
CDFA many tinmes calling for nore equitable dairy producer
prices in California. Their decision to sell their cows was
due to the fact that although their entire lives were spent
dedi cated to their dairy operation, they decided not to
continue given that dairy prices are again so far bel ow
production costs.

Dairy cows that went up for sale just the other
week were owned by a 900 cow dairy producer who wanted to
stay in operation but was forced out due to a change in
ownership on his rented facility. He nade great efforts to
find another facility but was unable to find another dairy
operation to rent. As nore dairies are bought up and
converted to other crops, the scarcity of dairy facilities
to rent is becom ng nore and nore of an issue in our state.
Sonme other recent dairy sales included dairies with 1,200
and 1,000 cows who decided that they were better of selling
their cows because they could no longer justify the
financial |osses due to mlk prices that do not cone cl ose

to covering their production costs.
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The stories continue to pile up of dairy producers
who decided to sell out and each closure is a loss to the
dairy industry in California and makes the future of mlk
production in our state all the nore uncertain. The dairy
farmfamlies we represent work hard and nake great
sacrifices so that they can pass down the dairy to the next
generation. However, given the chronically Iower mlk
prices here and the high cost of production, many sons and
daughters sinply don't want to take on the stress,
uncertainty and trenmendous sacrifice to run a dairy in
Cal i forni a.

And | did have a chance to, and | could el aborate
on this in a post-hearing brief, but I did have a chance to
talk to a representative froma najor sales yard in
California and he confirmed that the majority of cattle sale
are leaving the state. Sonme of the states that he nmentioned
where they're going are |daho, Utah, Texas and New Mexi co.
He considered the latter two because of the recent weather
event. But he said also one of the sales that he is having
this week, he normally woul d expect over 100 buyers to show
up this week, he'll be lucky to get 15 or so. And it's just
very indicative of what's happening in terms of cows |eaving
the state and m |k production in decline.

According to the recent report published by the

United States Departnent of Agriculture Econom c Research
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Service, dairy farmng in the Unites States is "a highly
speci alized and very risky endeavor.” W deemthis
description to be very apt, but consider dairy farmng in
California to involve nmuch greater risk than dairy farm ng
in the rest of the country. Qur state is one of the nost
highly regul ated states, be it air, water, |abor or other
regul ations that significantly increase the cost to produce
mlk here. In addition, dairy producers in our state
continue to confront unprecedented chall enges due to the
hi storic drought. Although precipitation was nore plentiful
this year, dairy producers will continue to face great
uncertainty about water availability for the foreseeable
future, yet another critical factor that will continue to
affect the cost of production in our state. At the very
| east, dairy producers in our state should be paid prices
that are in line with the rest of the country. But for far
too long we have been at a great disadvantage conpared to
other states and the inpacts are a decline in mlk
production in our state and the loss of dairy farmfamlies.

California Producer Prices Fail to Cover
Producti on Costs

According to the CDFA Annual Review for 2015, the
average annual price paid to dairy producers was just $15.40
per hundredwei ght, the | owest annual average price since

2010 when m | k production costs were far |lower. As CDFA
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determ nes whether to grant an adjustnment in the 4b pricing
formula, the incone received by dairy producers relative to
production costs is an inportant indicator to assess whet her
econom c conditions nerit an increase. The |atest cost of
production data avail able from CDFA, as has been nentioned
before, is the fourth quarter of 2015 which reports the cost
to produce mlk in the state anounted to $19. 74 per
hundr edwei ght. The California Overbase price for February
was $13.09 per hundredwei ght, indicating that income that
mont h was wel | bel ow average production costs and prices
paid to producers have continued to remain substantially
bel ow production costs. And according -- this has been
menti oned before. According to Section 62062, the CDFA
Secretary shall, "consider the cost of managenent and a
reasonabl e return on necessary capital investnment” when
establishing prices. And we believe the current pricing
formulas do not result in a price that is adequate to cover
production costs, proving that an increase in the whey scal e
that we're calling for is nore than justified.

On the | ast page of our testinony we have incl uded
a graph showi ng the percentage of dairies in the North
Val | ey Cost Survey that have been operating at a net |oss
since 2008. W calculate this graph based on the CDFA Cost
of Production Feedback sheets. As the graph indicates,

since the first quarter of 2015 nore than 80 percent of al
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North Vall ey dairies have been operating at a net |oss. The
graph shows that the vast majority of dairies have been
| osi ng noney because producer inconme has not been enough to
cover production costs. The section of the graph show ng
2015 data indicates that the econom c situation for
California dairies has deteriorated significantly and is
nost conparable to periods of negative margins in 2009 and
2012 when nost dairies were operating at a net | oss.

And we believe the disparity between our 4b cheese
price and the equival ent Federal Order Class Ill price is a
significant reason for the decline in mlk production and
the closure of dairies in our state. W appreciate and
t hank CDFA Secretary Karen Ross for focusing on the 4b price
for this hearing today because it has been the greatest
source of difference between California and federal order
prices. As the CDFA analysis for this hearing indicates,
the gap between the 4b and federal order Class Il would
have averaged $1.85 per hundredwei ght over the last five
years under the pernmanent whey scale. W comrended
Secretary Ross for granting a 12 nonth increase in the whey
scal e last year but consider it critical that the whey val ue
in the 4b formula is permanently raised so that it tracks
the whey value in the federal order Class Il formula.

The proposal we join with MPC and Western United
in proposing to CDFA today would bring our 4b prices in

ALL AMERI CAN REPCORTI NG | NC.

(916) 362-2345




© 00 N oo o b~ w N P

N NN N NN R R R R R R R R R
O N W N kB O © O N o 00 M W N L O

247

closer relationship with federal order prices and make it
nore responsive to changes in the whey market. Had our
proposal been in place, the gap between the 4b and the C ass
1l would have decreased to an average 46 cents over the
| ast five years. And we consider our proposal to be a
conprom se proposal because over the last year, if it had
been in place, the 4b price would continue to be 75 cents
| ower than the federal order Class Ill. However, it is
critical that all steps are taken to bring California mlk
prices in line with prices paid in the federal order system
We are opposed to the proposal put forward by the
Dairy Institute that would incorporate a sliding scale based
on whey protein concentrate values. Under the Dairy
Institute proposal the gap between the 4b and the C ass I
woul d have averaged $1.53 per hundredwei ght over the past
five years. Over the last year the gap woul d have been
$1.23, a larger gap than the previous whey scal e that was
capped at 75 cents. W share the concerns raised in the
| ast hearing panel report that inplenenting the WPC34
proposal would incorporate a different price series that
will potentially nove in an opposite direction. The Dairy
Institute proposal would maintain a significant gap between
4b and Class |IIl prices and create an even greater
m sal i gnment between 4b and federal order Class IIl prices

and we urge CDFA to reject this proposal.

ALL AMERI CAN REPCORTI NG | NC.

(916) 362-2345




© 00 N o o b~ w N P

N NN N NN R R R R R R R R R
O N W N B O © O N o 00 M W N R O

248

In conclusion, the increase called for in the
petition we put forward along with MPC and Western United is
supported by California Dairies, Inc., Dairy Farmers of
America and Land O Lakes and will ensure that the whey val ue
in the 4b pricing formula nore closely reflects the whey
value in the federal m |k nmarketing order pricing system
We believe adoption of our proposal is critical so that 4b
prices are nore equitable for California dairy producers who
have continued to | ose substantial income since mlk prices
dropped dramatically towards the end of 2014.

On behalf of the California Dairy Canpaign | thank
you for allowing ne to testify today and I would like to
request the ability to submt a post-hearing brief.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: Your request to file a
post-hearing brief is granted.

Questions fromthe panel ?

MR. MONSON: Thank you for your testinony,

Ms. McBride. | was wondering if you could comment on what
you think the inpact of if CDFA were to adopt the proposal
that you are supporting, that you put forward, in terns of
the declining mlk production as well as the |oss of dairies
that you referred to in your testinony.

M5. McBRIDE: Yeah, | think if you were to take
the nood of the dairy producer nenbers that we represent,

it's very grimright now given where costs are and where
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prices are. So | think that if the Secretary were to adopt
t he proposal that we have put forward it would really offer
a lot of hope to these dairy farmfamlies who literally,
and you have heard testinony of this throughout the day, are
maki ng deci si ons about whether or not to continue to operate
a dairy here in California

And the situation has gotten very dire for --
again, |leaders within our organization who really question,
you know, what their future holds here. So I think, you
know, at the very least if the whey scale could be -- it
could be at an on par with the Federal Order Cass Il whey
val ue, that would just be such an inportant signal that they
shoul d have hope novi ng ahead operating a dairy in
Cal i fornia.

MR. MONSON: Thank you.

MR. EASTMAN. Wul d you go ahead and submt in
your post-hearing brief the evidence of cows |eaving the
state. You nentioned that you would be willing to do that.

M5. McBRIDE:  Yes.

MR. EASTMAN. That woul d be good for the record, |
think. | don't have any other questions besides the ones we
al ready asked you previously.

M5. McBRIDE: Yeah. So yeah. [1'd hope to
incorporate that into ny testinony earlier. | just had a

chance to speak with themrecently but |'m happy to provide
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information on that.

And just in terns, again, a nunber of our nenbers
do participate in these cow sales and that's the story that
we' re hearing back is that, you know, a significant nunber
are |leaving the state.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: Thank you for your
t esti nony.

M5. McBRIDE: Thank you

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: M. Mbore.

M. Moore, would you pl ease state your full nane,
spell your last nane and state your affiliation for the

record, please.

MR MOORE: |'m Mac Moore and the last nane is M
OORE I'mwth Cacique, Inc., a cheese nmanufacturer.
Wher eupon,
MAC MOORE

Was duly sworn.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER. M. Mbore, do you have
any witten statenments or other things you would |ike
entered into the record at this tine?

MR MOCORE: The letter that | left with each one
of you.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER  Ckay.

MR MOORE: | would like to read that to you

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: (Ckay. M. Mbore, your
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witten testinony will be Exhibit nunber 49 and you may
pr oceed.

(Exhibit 49 was entered into the record.)

MR MOORE: M. Hearing Oficer and nenbers of the
Heari ng Panel :

As an introduction, | am Mac Moore, Director of
Busi ness Devel opnent for Cacique, Inc. M dedication is to
support Cacique's vision to be the |largest, npbst successful
and respected Hi spanic perishable food conpany in the
country. A cheese peddler, if you will. Cacique is a
fam | y-owned conpany, born of immgrants that cane to
Arerica with little noney, two suitcases, three children and
one "on the way." They had a will to succeed and dreans of
the prom se of a country where hard work would be net with
fair and just rules of governing. Cacique stands here
today, in its second generation of ownership, as evidence of
t hose proven truths.

Caci que, Incorporated was founded in 1973, has
been a California cheese manufacturer for 43 years. Wth
$800 rai sed and borrowed, Cacique was founded. Cur
begi nni ngs were hunble, rented bottling space in the back of
a drive-through dairy, product sold froma Styrofoam cool er
in the trunk of a teal green 1966 Pontiac, hard work are the
Caci que genesis. W produced high quality cheeses and grew

by selling an additional pound at each corner grocery store
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every tinme they were serviced. Cacique was literally built
one pound at a tinme. Today, after years of very hard work,
sonme | uck and excell ent people, Cacique is America s nost
popul ar brand of Mexican cheese and creans as neasured by
national ly recogni zed auditors of such consuner demands.

We are over 300 California-based enpl oyees and 55
enpl oyees throughout the US. Over 80 percent of our
wor kforce is of mnority origin, including the ownership.
Near|ly every enployee was recruited. W are truly a conpany
with a "famly" spirit and culture. For the record, Cacique
is not a mninmum wage comnpany.

Cacique is a nationally recogni zed H spani ¢ brand
of the food industry that sells into the retail, food
service and prepared food industries. W conpete
nati onw de. On average, Cacique processes about 1 mllion
pounds of mlk on any given production day and nore than 300
mllion pounds of m |k per year. Nearly half of that vol une
is shipped out of California as cheese, sour cream or
yogurt. Qur talents like in our ability to provide
custoners with quality solutions and services that will grow
their business while delighting our consuners with an
exceptional Hi spanic food experience each and every tine
t hey buy our product. That is our pledge and that's our
pri de.

Hi gher quality and service can justify some costs
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over the local conpetitors in other states that allows us to
pay for the additional freight and handling associated with
out-of-state markets. But that justification is very
fragile and very razor thin. Qur out-of-state conpetitors
do not have the same costs for their mlk, energy usage,
| abor nor rent that we incur because we manufacture our
products in California. W struggle mghtily to keep our
costs down, without quality sacrifices to maintain our
growh. The nost vital costs and value to both us and our
out-of -state conpetitors are our mlk supplies. Their mlk
costs, as ours, are subject to the sanme novenents of the
Bl ock Cheese trades on the Chicago Mercantil e Exchange.
When the CME noves, although our m |k supplies are subject
to different formulae, the net effect to our nutual costs is
nearly the same. Qur out-of-state conmpetitors in federal
orders can negotiate directly with their mlk suppliers and
pay below the FMMO Class |1l price, depending on narket
conditions in that region. This is a real advantage to
t hose processors over fully-regul ated cheesemakers. [|f any
factor in the California Class 4b fornmula results in a mlk
cost that nmakes our products unconpetitive it will inpact
our ability to sell our cheese in the nmarkets distant and
near by.

We are here today to discuss the value of whey,

its revenues and how m | k processors have the opportunity to
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pass along profits associated with its sales. Wey to
smal |l er operators like Cacique is a cost rather than a
revenue streamthat we strive to mtigate in order to stay
conpetitive for our survival. W cannot afford the nulti
mllion dollars worth of equipnent that is required to
i nvest necessary to process whey into a tradable conmodity.
Qur volunmes are sinply not high enough to get the
depreci ated value fromthe equi pnent before its |longevity
woul d require replacenment. So for us, benchmarking mlk
pricing with a higher input for whey values is purely a net
increase to our costs versus our out-of-state conpetitors.
W need to pay to dispose of our whey; adding costs for whey
to our mlk pricing is untenable for operators |ike us.
Rai si ng our costs unilaterally will cause us to
raise our prices unilaterally in the markets, absolutely.
Qur conpetitors will be given a new price advantage all ow ng
themto nore easily nove us out of their nmarkets and nore
easily into ours. The volune and dollar loss to California
dairies will be real. Unfortunately, for snmall operators
like us it could be devastating.
Caci que strongly supports returning to the
per manent whey fornula as was in effect prior to this past
August 2015. Any structural increases could cause us harm
Thank you for your generous tine and consi deration

inthis matter.
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HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER  Questi ons?

MR. EASTMAN. So just for the record, what does
Cacique do with its whey strean? Just for the record.

MR. MOORE: There are farnmers that'll pick it up;
they transport it for us. It's a cost to us. W have to --
we have to dry it up as nuch as we can because we can't just
send themwater, so we have to put in sone equipnment to dry
it up a bit. Basically it's just a net.

MR. EASTMAN. Do you get any revenue back when you
sell it or you just strictly are paying a cost for themto
take it?

MR. MOORE: Just paying the cost for them-- well
actually, yeah, we give it to them they nove it out.

MR. EASTMAN. Ckay. And then you nentioned that
nearly half of the volune of your product is shipped and
supposedly sold outside of California.

MR MOORE: That's true.

MR. EASTMAN. |Is that just because that's where
| arger markets are or is the market in California saturated?

MR MOORE: It's where -- we're Hispanic-based.
That's an advantage we have over a lot of other -- but there
are Hi spani ¢ manufacturers throughout the United States,
we're not the only one. W'd |like to be but we're not.

California nakes up a very strong base of the

Hi spanic market but it's spread out through the Sout hwest,
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Texas and into Colorado. So that's kind of -- | would say
maybe even two-thirds of the volunme of the consumers are out
to the Mssissippi. And then the last, the last efforts
towards the | ast end.

MR. EASTMAN. Perfect. And then it appears that
you are supporting no action, really. No action on behalf
of the Secretary would nean that we would revert back to the
per manent table that was in place prior to --

MR. MOORE: Exactly, that's what we --

MR. EASTMAN. -- the decision |ast summer.

MR MOORE: Yes.

MR. EASTMAN. |If the Secretary were to do
sonmet hing do you have a Plan B or you're just here to
support "no action" pretty nmuch?

MR MOORE: Well, raise prices and hope for the
best, you know. W're all subject to the real world. If we
have to raise prices we have to raise prices and we'll fight
to keep it. W're just saying it's a thin margi n already
and anything we give up starts com ng back this way.

MR. EASTMAN. Thank you.

MR. MONSON: A quick question, M. More. Do you
have any opinion as to using WPC34 as the input price versus
dry whey in the fornul a?

MR MOORE: Only that the WPC floats at, say, nore

of the whey stream |It's closer to the, let's say, not
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val ue-added. And that's the trouble with the powdered whey
and the isolates and things like that, they' re val ue-added
type of situations. And if the pricing is indexed to sone
val ue- added that sonebody could get extra noney for it's
noney we woul d never get anyway.

MR, MONSON:.  Ckay.

MR MOORE: It's kind of just Iike watching your
price go up and there's nothing you can do about it.

MR. MONSON: Thank you.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: Thank you for your
testimony, M. Mbore.

MR. MOORE: Thank you.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER M. Gar bani .

M. Garbani, could you please state your ful
name, spell your last name and state your affiliation for
the record, please.

MR. GARBANI: M nanme is Pete Garbani, spelled G
A-R-B-A-N-1, and | amenployed with Land O Lakes. | ama
Director in Menber Relations.

Wher eupon,
PETE GARBANI
Was duly sworn.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER. M. Garbani, do you have

any witten statenments or other things you would |ike

entered into the record at this tine?
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MR. GARBANI: Only the testinony, the witten
testinmony | just distributed to you guys.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: The witten testinony of
M. Garbani w Il be Exhibit nunber 50.

(Exhibit 50 was entered into the record.)

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: You may proceed.

MR. GARBANI: M. Hearing Oficer and Menbers of
t he Panel :

My name is Pete Garbani. | amhere to testify on
behal f of Land O Lakes, Inc. M business address is 400
South M Street, Tulare, California, 93274. M current title
is Director, Menber Relations.

Land O Lakes would like to thank the Secretary and
the Departnent for calling this hearing, on its own notion
to consider amendnents to the Marketing Pl ans.

Specifically, we thank the Departnment for calling a hearing
to consider adjustnments to the current Cass 4b pricing
formul a i ncluding adjustnments to the whey factor. This
hearing will address issues of critical inportance to the
future of both our California dairy producer nenbers and the
entire California dairy industry.

Land O Lakes is a dairy cooperative with 2,200
dairy farmer nenber-owners. Land O Lakes has a nationa
menber shi p base, whose nenbers are pooled on the California

State Program and five different federal orders. Land
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O Lakes nenbers own several cheese, butter-powder and val ue-
added plants in the Upper Mdwest, East and California.
Currently, our 185 California nmenber-owners supply us with
over 15 mllion pounds of mlk per day that are primarily
processed at our Tulare and Oland plants. W al so operate
a dairy dessert plant in Turl ock.

Land O Lakes supports the proposal submitted by
t he producer trade associations of Western United Dairynen,
M | k Producers Council and California Dairy Canpaign to
nodi fy the sliding scale that values dry whey within the
Class 4b m Ik pricing formula. The proposed sliding scale
cl osely approxi mates the whey formula incorporated into the
j oi nt proposal supported by the three cooperatives in
heari ng conducted by the USDA |last fall to consider a
California federal m |k marketing order.

Land O Lakes supports this proposal be adopted
permanently to provide nmuch needed financial support to
California dairy farmfam|lies who have recently experienced
narrowi ng margi ns over feed costs. Land O Lakes agrees that
overall market conditions support this adjustnent to the 4b
pricing formula. W encourage the Departnment to inplenent
t he proposed changes begi nning as soon as possi bl e.

First, I'd like to discuss the nerits of using the
whey sliding scale and nmeki ng the proposed adjustnents to

it.
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Merits of the Whey Sliding Scale

I n previous panel reports the CDFA has clearly
affirmed that using the whey sliding scale is a viable
option to value whey in the Cass 4b formula. In the CDFA
panel report discussing the hearing of June 30 and July 1,
2011, the panel stated that the sliding scale had nerit for
the foll owi ng reasons:

Reason 1: The sliding scale would all ow t he whey
val ue incorporated into the Class 4b formula to be market -
driven so that the whey value would rise and fall as the
price of whey rises and falls in its market.

We agree that adopting the producer trade
associ ation proposal would be consistent with a market -
dri ven approach.

Reason 2: The sliding scale could be updated.

We support this proposal that includes an updated
scal e which woul d better reflect whey's nmarket val ue and
nore fairly incorporate the value into the dass 4b formul a.
The CDFA panel clearly envisioned the need for periodic
updat es as being one of the nerits of this approach.

Reason 3: The mpjority of producers favored using
a sliding scale as a nethod to val ue whey.

As you know, the overwhelmng majority of
California producers support the trade associations

proposal and continue to support the use of the sliding
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scal e.

Si nce adopting the whey sliding scale, the CDFA
antici pated the continued use of it as a nethod to val ue
whey in the Cass 4b fornula and for these three reasons we
strongly encourage the Departnent to adopt this proposal.

Next | would like to offer sone observations about
the market factors that support the pernmanent adjustnent to
the 4b fornmula. These factors include the recent market
trends in mlk production, farmm |k prices and the
financial conditions of California dairy farmers along with
some conments about the inpact that the chronic drought
condi tions have had on our dairy menbers.

California's M|k Production Continues to Decrease
Mont hl y

California's mlk production has experienced year
on year decreases during every nonth in 2015 and the first
two nmonths of 2016. |In fact, since Novenber 2014,
California's mlk production has decreased for 15 straight
months. Conparing daily mlk production in January 2016 of
roughly 111 mllion pounds to the daily m |k production in
January 2014 of 117 mllion pounds reveals a decrease of 120
tanker 1 oads of mlk each day. Simlarly, in February 2016,
California's dairy farns produced 140 fewer tanker | oads of
m |k each day - a decrease of nearly 7 mllion pounds of

m | k each day conpared to the daily mlk production in
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February 2014.

By conparison, Land O Lakes nenber m |k production
has al so decreased; when conparing cal endar years 2014 to
2015 by 5.2 percent, and when conparing the first two nonths
of 2016 to the first two nonths of 2015 our production is
down 4.8 percent. Even in light of the tenporary increase
to 4b pricing, effective August 1, 2015, our menbers' mlKk
production has decreased 5.3 percent for the sanme period of
August 1 through February 28 when conparing 2014/ 2015 to
2015/ 2016.

Qur nmenbers' m |k production appears to be
respondi ng to the conbination of rapidly decreasing mlk
prices and increasing production costs which have put many
of our dairy farmers under extrene pressure as their margins
have narrowed to unprofitable |evels.

Fi nanci al Conditions Challenging California Dairy
Farnmers

By any price neasure, California' s dairy farners
have received far less for their mlk in 2015-16 even with
the tenporary 4b whey factor adjustnment than they received
i n conparable periods in 2014-15. For exanple:

The statew de blend price received by California
dairy farners averaged $14.28 in the seven-nonth period
August 2015 through February 2016. This is $4.16 | ess than

the average of the statewi de blend price for the sane seven
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nmont h period August 2014 through February 2015.

California mail box prices have followed a simlar
path downward. The California nmail box price averaged $15. 63
per hundredwei ght in the five nonth period August 2015
t hrough Decenber 2015. During the sane five nonth period
August 2014 t hrough Decenber 2014, California mailbox prices
averaged $21.23, representing a decrease of $5.60 per
hundr edwei ght .

California' s overbase averaged $15.59 for the
seven nonth period August 2015 through February 2016,
conpared to a seven nonth average of $19.68 during the
conpar abl e period August 2014 through February 2015. The
over base averaged $4.09 | ess per hundredwei ght in the seven
nmont hs since the tenporary 4b whey factor adjustnment was
adopt ed.

These farm |l evel price decreases ranging from
$4.09 to $5.60 per hundredwei ght have had a huge inpact on
the cash flow position of our state's dairy farmers. These
decreases effectively cut our dairy farmers' gross pay by
roughly 20 percent. Think how difficult that woul d be for
anyone to experience that magnitude of a cut in their gross
pay.

At this point, the CDFA has not rel eased cost of
m |k production estimates for 2016. Based on the | atest

data avail able, some m |k production costs increased in
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2015. Specifically, hired | abor costs increased 10.5
percent; operating expenses increased 1.6 percent, mlKk
mar keti ng costs increased 1.7 percent and herd repl acenent
costs increased 23 percent as the demand for replacenent
animals increased. Summing up all the costs previously
listed, the CDFA estimated that the total cost of mlk
production for the fourth quarter of 2015 was $19. 74 per
hundr edwei ght .

Even though this m |k production cost estinmate was
$0.35 lower than the estimate of one year ago, the margin
measur ed by deducting the cost of mlk production frommlKk
pri ces has worsened drastically fromyear-ago | evels.
Conparing the nost current mlk prices with the 2015 fourth
gquarter cost of m Ik production reveals how devastating the
drastic fall in mlk prices has been. The cost of mlKk
production exceeded farmlevel mlk prices by the follow ng
anount s:

The statew de blend price received by California
dairy farners was $14.33 in February 2016. This was $5.41
| ower than the $19.74 cost of milk production in 4 2015.

California s overbase was $13.91 in February 2016.
This was $5.83 | ower than the $19.74 cost of milk production
in 4 2015.

| ncone over feed costs represents a comonly

referred to economc netric when considering the financi al
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health of dairy farm ng. CDFA estimated that total feed
costs averaged $11.23 per hundredwei ght in Q4 of 2015.
Assumi ng that feed costs have remained flat since then and
usi ng the average overbase price of $14.60 per hundredwei ght
for the first two nonths of 2016 reveals that inconme over
feed costs have been narrowed by $3. 37 per hundredwei ght -
clearly a catastrophic margin over feed level for California
dairy famlies

Recal |l that the 2014 FarmBill created the dairy
Margin Protection Program This new ri sk managenent t ool
for dairy farners uses an incone over feed cost |evel of $4
to represent the base insurance |level that all dairy farners
can attain for no cost other than a $100 enrol |l ment fee.
This base level insurance is often referred to as a
catastrophic margin coverage. |In devel oping the conponents
of this program the National M|k Producers Federation
concl uded that when nmargins over feed shrink to the $4
| evel, dairy farners' equity is at risk. Recall the narket
conditions of 2009 when margins over feed shrank to bel ow
this catastrophic level. As stated earlier, the average
margin for the two-nonth period for January 2016 to February
2016 was $3.37. This is $0.63 per hundredwei ght |ower than
the $4 level. |If the current level of dairy farmer margins
continue into future nonths, California dairy farners

equity will again be at risk.
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In light of the severe financial conditions
experienced in the past 18 nonths, nost California dairy
farmers have again taken the opportunity to enroll in the
Margin Protection Program for 2016. The Farm Servi ce Agency
estimated that 78 percent of California dairy farns enrolled
in the Margin Protection Program representing roughly 89
percent of the total mlk. It is inportant to note that
nearly 10 percent nore of California dairy farmers signed up
for the MPP in 2016 - 69 percent of California dairy farners
pur chased MPP insurance in 2015. Cdearly, California dairy
farmers have major concerns about the financial conditions
of the dairy sector in 2016.

Unfortunately, the negative California basis,
meaning that the California all-mlk price falls bel ow the
US all-mlk price, reduces the benefit to California dairy
farmers fromparticipating in this program As you know,
the US all-mlk price represents the price used as the proxy
for mlk income in the calculation of the US dairy margin in
the Margin Protection Program For exanple, the California
all-mlk price averaged $1.69 |lower than the US all-mlKk
price - the California all-mlk price averaged $15. 31
conpared to the US all-m |k price that averaged $17.00 - in
the first 14 nonths of the Dairy Margin Protection Program
January 2015 through February 2016. This nmeans that when

the US income over feed or margin is at a $4 |evel, the
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California incone over feed margin is $1.69 |ower or $2.31
per hundredwei ght.

A significant portion of this negative California
basis is attributable to the ower value for Class 4b mlk
and the lower value for Class 4b mlk is directly
attributable to the | ower value of whey in the 4b formul a.
Thus, an additional benefit of the producer association's
proposal is the narrowing of this negative basis. C osing
t he negative basis gap between the California all-mlk price
and the US all-mlk price could enhance the benefit to
California dairies who have paid the premuns to help them
manage their margin risk by enrolling in the Dairy Margin
Protection Program for 2016.

The chal | engi ng financial environnment has directly
contributed to the departure of 44 Land O Lakes dairy
menbers from our cooperative since August of 2012. The
majority of these nenbers are no longer in the mlk
production business. 1In total these 44 Land O Lakes nenbers
represent a decline of nearly 20 percent of Land O Lakes
California dairy farnmer menbers in 43 nonths, from August
2012 t hrough February 2016.

We are keenly aware that many of our nenbers are
currently operating with negative nmargi ns and several are
considering exiting the dairy business. Wile nany nenbers

are evaluating their exit strategies sone are getting
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pressure fromtheir | enders to consider |iquidation.

Adding to the challenging m |k market is the
chroni c drought conditions. The drought has added
consi derabl e stress and cost to our dairy nenbers. W know
of many cases of dairy farmers taking steps such as idling
cropland, drilling new, deeper wells or planting nore
drought tolerant crops |ike sorghumto manage their farns
with | ess water.

Wil e 2014 was one of the best years on record for
dairy profitability, many of our producers were faced with
reinvesting mllions of dollars back into their facilities
in the formof water wells and conveyance systens. These
infrastructure investnments not only required significant
capi tal but the ongoing operating costs and inpact to their
RO is burdensonme even in the best of econom c conditions.

Position on Alternative Proposals

We do not support the alternative proposal
submtted by the Dairy Institute. Specifically, we have
several concerns about using the WPC34 price as defined by
the alternative proposal submtted and presented by the
Dairy Institute. W have the follow ng concerns:

1. The industry stakehol ders do not know what
vol une of WPC34 products is represented in the suggested
WPC34 price series. No data was nade avail abl e about the

vol une of product traded in the USDA'S Dairy Market News
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price series reported for the Central and Western regions.

2. WPC34 does not represent whey's nost basic,
unprocessed form Neither the CDFA nor the USDA AMS Dairy
progranms, the adm nistrator of the federal mlk marketing
program have ever provided data on manufacturing costs of
WPC34. There is no publicly avail able, publicly audited
data on WPC34 nmanufacturing costs or product vyields.

3. The WPC34 scal e that determ nes the whey
contribution to the Cl ass 4b price caps out at nuch | ower
value than is fair and appropri ate.

4. Wthin the CDFA's background naterials for this
hearing it's worthy of noting, the Dairy Institute's
proposal using WPC34 reached its maxi mum val ue during 19
nmont hs, far nore often than both the current whey factor and
t he whey factor proposed by the producer trade associ ations,
suggesting far |ess value woul d have been passed back to
California dairy producers.

5. Western pricing should be used in the WPC34
series, not Central region pricing or some conbination of
t he two.

6. As noted earlier, the California dairy nen and
wonen continually battle "basis risk” when protecting their
mar gi ns using the Margin Protection Program They al so
battl e the same basis risk when trying to hedge their mlk

price by using Class Il instrunents, specifically due to
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the different values for whey in 4b conpared to Cdass |11
Using WPC34 in 4b pricing will further disadvantage
California dairies with their risk managenent alternatives
and further conplicate an already volatile correlation.

7. The Hearing Panel Report fromthe June 3, 2015
hearing listed simlar concerns about using WPC34 in the 4b
formula including but not limted to: the appropriateness of
using the Dairy Market News WPC34 price series, unverified
WPC34 nmanufacturing costs and possible confidentiality
i ssues with WPC34 nmanufacturing cost data. W are not aware
t hat these sanme concerns have been resolved within the 10
nmont hs since our |ast hearing and believe noving to the use
of WPC34 value in 4b mlk price continues to be
i nappropri ate.

Additionally, the Dairy Institute's proposal is
i nconsi stent with our joint proposal that we supported at
t he hearing conducted by the USDA concerning the adoption of
a California federal m |k marketing order.

Land O Lakes' support of the producer trade
groups' proposal to the CDFA does not change in any way our
continued support for the adoption of a California FMVO,
which is presently in the post-hearing, briefing process.

We and our partner cooperatives, DFA and CDI, remain fully
focused on our joint effort but are hopeful you will support

the proposal submtted by the three trade associ ati ons.
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I n conclusion, we thank the Secretary for calling
this hearing. The California dairy farners need this
increase in the whey factor of the 4b forrmula in |ight of
the dire financial conditions they have weat hered since |ate
2014, worsening in 2015 and continuing into 2016. This
i ncrease has the potential to have a positive financial
impact on California's dairy farmers at a tinme when they
need it the nost. W thank the panel for your consideration
and Land O Lakes would |ike to request the opportunity to
file a post-hearing brief.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: Your request to file a
post-hearing brief is granted.

Questions fromthe panel ?

MR. EASTMAN. | have a couple of questions just
for clarity's sake. On page 4 you nention sonme anal ysis of
prices. You nmention overbase price and California mail box
prices and the statewide blend price. | assune the
statewide blend price is a blend price that's published by
CDFA?

MR. GARBANI: Correct.

MR. EASTMAN. Ckay. And then on the bottom of
page 5 in that |ast paragraph you nention how there's been
44 California Land O Lakes dairy nenbers who have gone out
of business in the last 43 nonths. Do you know what percent

of the m Ik production those 44 dairies would represent?
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MR. GARBANI: No, but | would be happy to give
that to you in the post-hearing brief.

MR. EASTMAN.  Ckay.

MR. GARBANI: Not just off the top of ny head.

MR. EASTMAN. That's okay, we'll forgive you this
time. No, |I'mjust joking.

(Laughter.)

MR. EASTMAN. And then as one of the larger, as a
| arge handler of mlk in the state, as m |k production has
declined as you nentioned anpongst your nenbers, how has your
busi ness plan changed or how are you managi ng that with
regards to mlk that you process in your own plants and m |l Kk
that you sell to your custonmers? How has that affected your
busi ness pl an?

MR, GARBANI: Well | think it's very simlar to
what may have been -- | think Eric Erba from CD described
pretty simlarly how we handl e the sanme situation in that we
use our manufacturing plants to bal ance our commtnents to
our custoners. So our custoners, we have contracts for
vol unes and we have to honor those commitnents and so we
take that mlk, we run less m |k through our plants.

MR. EASTMAN. Thank you; | think that's all | had.

MR. SHI PPELHOUTE: You run a cheese plant in
Oland. 1'mjust curious how the changes |ast year with the

tenporary change to the whey factor, how that inpacted the
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Ol and operation?

MR. GARBANI: I n what regard? Qur producers or --

MR. SHI PPELHOUTE: Financially. How that cheese,
is that traded within your conpany, do you sell it on the
open nmarket, how do you market that product?

MR GARBANI: Most of the tinme that cheese is used
internally as raw material for another plant that we have
Wi thin our system

MR, SHI PPELHOUTE:  Ckay.

MR. GARBANI: You know, as far as how it inpacted
us. W had the sane inpact on our costs that everybody had.
| think | heard $0.034 per hundredweight is what it cost a
cheese manufacturer for the ten nonth period, roughly.

MR. SHI PPELHOUTE: So then you pass that on to

your sister plant, if you will, for internal accounting
pur poses?
MR. GARBANI: Well, that's kind of proprietary.
MR. SHI PPELHOUTE:  Ckay.
MR. GARBANI: But | would tell you --
MR. SHI PPELHOUTE: Fair enough.
MR GARBANI: [|'Il tell you no, we don't pass that

al ong because it's based on market val ues.
MR. SHI PPELHOUTE: kay. And earlier there was a
reference to your whey com ng out of Oland going down to

Kern County. Was that presentation accurate?
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MR. GARBANI: | think you need to ask M. Muirphy
about ny business nore than -- | would not have discl osed
that proprietary information, to be honest, so |I'mgoing to
| eave it at that.

MR. SHI PPELHOUTE: kay, fair enough. No ot her
guesti ons.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: Thank you for your
t esti nony.

M. Paris.

M. Paris, wll you please state your full nane,
spell your last nane and state your affiliation for the
record, please.

MR PARIS: M nanme is Joe E. Paris, P-A-R1-S
and | amtestifying on behalf of R zo Lopez Foods in
Mbdest o, Californi a.

Wher eupon,
JCE E. PARIS
Reaf firnmed bei ng previously sworn.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER:. And do you have any
witten statenents or other things you would like to enter
into the record at this tinme?

MR. PARIS: Yes, the testinony | just handed you.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: Ckay. The witten
testinmony of M. Paris will now be received as Exhibit

nunmber 51.
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(Exhibit 51 was entered into the record.)

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: And you nay proceed.

MR PARIS: | amrepresenting R zo Lopez Foods. |
have had a consulting relationship with Ri zo since 2006. |
work with themon mlk and cheese futures, options and ot her
hedgi ng strategies as well as supplying other market
i nformati on when requested. | was instrunmental in arranging
the first mlk supply that they ever had in their plant when
they started out in R verbank in the 1990s.

This testinony has been authorized and prepared
under the direction of Ivan R zo, CEO of Ri zo Lopez Foods.

Ri zo Lopez Foods noved to a new 130, 000 square
foot building | ocated at 201 South MO ure Road, Modesto,
California, in 2012 as they had outgrown their original
facility in Riverbank. The new facility was a multim/llion
dol I ar investnent that included the |and, enpty buil ding and
much new equi pnent. Rizo Lopez enpl oys over 200 people in
the Modesto facility. Rizo Lopez Foods sells nost of their
products through a network of whol esal ers who supply sone of
the finest supermarkets fromCalifornia to Florida. These
facts were testified to by Ivan Rizo in the June 3rd hearing
in 2015.

Ri zo Lopez Foods produces and markets vari ous
varieties of Hi spanic cheeses and other dairy products under

t he Don Franci sco brand and produce sonme conventional and
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organi ¢ cheese. Rizo Lopez Foods have multiple class
utilizations because of the variety of dairy products they
produce, but over 90 percent of their utilization is 4b.
Changes in the whey factor will change the costs on over 90
percent of their mlk. R zo Lopez buys their mIlk supply
froml ocal cooperatives.

Ri zo Lopez supports the use of the whey factor
that was in effect prior to August 1, 2015. Rizo is opposed
to the producer proposal because of the financial harmit
could do to their company. Since the inplenentation of the
tenporary whey factor on August 1 of 2015, Rizo's ability to
extract value fromtheir whey stream has di m ni shed due to
sonme issues in their cheese maki ng procedure. Mst of their
whey is going as animal feed with little or no value. Had
t he whey price not renained | ow t hrough nost of the
tenporary pricing period, R zo Lopez potentially could have
suf fered an increased cost of over $3.5 million with little
chance of recovery. The national Hi spanic cheese market
does not respond quickly to the volatility of mlk markets
and passing along increased costs can take nonths. Changes,
such as a tenporary increase in regulated prices, can cause
a lot of "heartburn” in specialty cheese markets |like the
Hi spanic market. WMany of the great people that buy R zo's
products are in one of the |owest incone classes in Anerica.

In summary, Ri zo Lopez Foods strongly opposes the
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producer group's proposal and asks for elimnation of the
tenporary whey factor and resunption of the whey factor in
the 4b fornula that was used prior to August 1 in 2015.

This concludes ny testinony and we thank you for
the opportunity to express our concerns and we would like to
request the ability to send in a post-hearing brief.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: Your request to send in a
post-hearing brief is granted.

Any questions?

MR. EASTMAN. | have one question. You nention
t hat had whey prices not decreased that the conpany could
have potentially suffered a | oss of or an increased cost of
$3.5 mllion. How was that cal cul ated?

MR. PARIS: That was estimated based on where they
had figured the futures were going to take the whey. It
didn't go that direction and we cane up with the nunber. |
got this fromthe R zo Lopez financial people there.

MR. EASTMAN. Ckay. So probably based on where
whey futures were | ooking back when it was inplenented | ast
sumer, possibly?

MR PARIS: It was probably an indication of the
tenporary price. Prior to that tine.

MR. EASTMAN. Ckay, thank you.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: Thank you for your

t esti nony.
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M. Hof f erber.

M. Hofferber, would you pl ease state your ful
name, spell your last name and state your affiliation for
the record, please.

M5. HOFFERBER: | am Scott Hofferber, HOF-F-ER-
B-E-R, and | amwi th Farndal e Creanery.

Wher eupon,
SCOIT HOFFERBER
Was duly sworn.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: Do you have any witten
statenents or other things you would like to enter into the
record?

M5. HOFFERBER: Yes, the statenment that |'ve
submitted to the reporter.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: The written statenent of
M. Hofferber will be Exhibit nunber 52.

(Exhibit 52 was entered into the record.)

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: And you nay proceed.

M5. HOFFERBER: Thank you. Good day, Hearing
O ficer and nenbers of the Hearing Panel. | am Scott
Hof f erber, the Chief Financial Oficer of Farndal e Creanery,
Inc. and | amhere at the direction and on the authority of
our Board of Directors. Farndale is a third-generation
fam | y-owned and operated dairy processing facility in

Southern California. Farndale is processing an average 28
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mllion pounds of m |k and cream per nonth into cheese, sour
cream WPC80 powder and buttermlKk.

In June of |ast year Farndal e presented specific
econom c information that clearly described the dismal and
wor sening results fromour very new and costly investnment in
a WPCB0 processing facility. Qur timng for nmaking this
i nvestment could only have been worse if we had del ayed the
proj ect another year from 2013 to 2014. Subsequent to that
| ast hearing we have seen the WPCB0 nar ket erode even
further, becomng the primary cause for us to have
experienced our worst fiscal year results since 2006, the
year leading to the total failure of the variabl e whey
fact or met hodol ogy in 2007.

The call of this hearing to discuss the
continuation of a variable whey factor, intended to transfer
al | eged whey val ue from processors to producers, is highly
unfortunate. It is not the Class IIl federal prem umthat
is the root cause of the continuing di sappearance of
smal l er, under-performng dairy farms. The producers' own
"McKi nsey Study" foresaw this collapse in their producer-
purchased report; a report which was di sm ssed by the very

peopl e who comm ssioned it on no better grounds than sheer

deni al of the conclusions drawn. To paraphrase: "If sone of
you don't go out of business voluntarily, you will go out of
busi ness painfully.” This is purely a supply and demand
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observation that producers chose to ignore |leading to the
current conditions of farmreduction. However, with the
reduction in farns, there has not been a comensurate
reduction in mlk supply, probably because the "haves" have
bought up the viable assets of the "have-nots" and conti nued
t he oversupply situation

Anot her unfortunate el ement of this particular
hearing is the narrowness of its scope. Cheese and powder
processors have not had a practical opportunity to bring the
i ssue of nake allowance adjustnents to the table in
deference to the political pressure to lay off the producer
comunity during their tough tinmes. The Departnent has
specific information, anongst which is Farndale's offering
in Exhibit 1 below, as to the econom c inpact this del ayed
recognition has neant to the cheese conmunity. Wy, we ask,
are we not tal king about all aspects of the pricing
structure under the so-called California Order Systen? The
Departnment’'s own data clearly describes the under-funding,
if you wll, of the costs to nmanufacture the end product the
producers designed for gromh by creating the nmake all owance
systemin the first place.

Far ndal e advocates for nerely letting the
tenporary energency whey scal e expire. The energency has
shifted relative to the notion of whey being the bad guy to

the producers. W, the processing community, are getting
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the back of this bad guy's hand right in the nmouth these
days, with little to no relief in sight for quite some tinmne.
Here is where the producers in the roomcan think, "Wll,
it's about time sonebody el se took sonme of the pain.” No
argunment. However, that sentinent doesn't do anything
towards curing the inherent difficulties of maintaining a
regul ated pricing system based on end-product pricing.
Further, acting on this narrow el ement w thout including the
broader issues, including nmake all owance adjustnents, is
just as counterproductive, in our view.

Shoul d t he panel reconmmend sonet hi ng ot her than
the expiration, as a nenber of the Dairy Institute of
California we woul d support its approach to the whey
val uati on question over the unsupportable notions of whey
val ue as offered by Western United Dairynmen and others in
this hearing.

Where we share the Secretary's concern for the
wel fare of the dairy industry entrusted to her care, we
i nplore the Departnent to recognize the fragile nature of
both sides of this coin, both producers and processors, and
bal ance the needs of industry stakehol ders. Let the
mar ket pl ace determ ne the appropriate |evel of equilibrium
in the price of 4b mlk, not sone arbitrary tinkering with
an out noded pricing nodel .

Respectfully submtted, us. And | request the
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ability to file a post-hearing brief if M. Hyrumneeds it.

(Laughter.)

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER:  Your request for a post-
hearing brief is granted.

Questions fromthe panel ?

MR. EASTMAN. | have a couple of questions. First
| just want to wal k through the table on the | ast page just
to make sure that | get it.

MR. HOFFERBER:  Sure.

MR. EASTMAN. It | ooks like you' re conparing the
cheese cost, per pound cost as rel eased by CDFA, wth nmake
al l omances in the fornmula and then you are just sinply
mul ti plying that by the pounds of cheese you produced.

MR. HOFFERBER:  Correct.

MR. EASTMAN.  Ckay.

MR. HOFFERBER: Yeah, it's very straightforward

l'i ke that.

MR. EASTMAN.  Ckay.

MR. HOFFERBER: The only assertion is what nmy WAG
at 2015 will turn out to be based on the progression of the

previ ous years.

MR. EASTMAN. Right, okay. And then on page 1 of
your testinony you nmentioned how t he WPC80 mar ket eroded.
Are you referring to the market price of the finished

product in the marketpl ace?
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MR, HOFFERBER:  Yes.

MR. EASTMAN. Ckay. Do you have any sense of what
that is, maybe on percent ternms or sort of what you could
share in terns of --

MR. HOFFERBER: Yeah, we haven't traditionally
been one to really stand on cerenony about confidentiality
and all that stuff. Qur nmarket price for that product has
gotten as low as $1.10 a pound; it cost nme $2.50 to nake it.

MR. EASTMAN. And where were prices, nmaybe, in the
recent past?

MR. HOFFERBER. We've gotten it up to around $1.50
for whey that we are going to sell in May, plus or mnus 5
or 6 percent of that nunber. M guys are out negotiating
LTL deals all the tine for this stuff trying to nove it at
an ever-better price but we are so far behind cost it's
ridicul ous right now.

MR. EASTMAN. G eat. W appreciate that
i nformation, even though sonetines it's held close to the
vest, there's not a lot of public outlets for that where
it's published.

MR HOFFERBER: | under st and.

MR EASTMAN.  And then | was sort of -- not
confused but you nentioned how -- at the bottom of page 1,

t he begi nning of page 2 of your testinony, that there has

been a reduction in dairy farns but not the commensurate
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reduction in mlk supply. Wat do you nean by that,
exactly?

MR. HOFFERBER: Well, what it appears to nme is if
you took a pure percentage reduction in the nunber of farns,
you are not seeing that sane simlar 14 percent, 16 percent
kind of reduction in the mlk supply. And the only
conclusion | can make is it's little under-performng farns
going out with very few cows that are -- yes, we are
reducing mlk supply but not nearly at the sanme rate,
per centage-w se, as we are reducing farnms. So it becones a
little bit inaccurate to equate the |oss in percentage basis
of farms to what's really going on in the mlk supply.

MR. EASTMAN:. CGotcha.

MR. HOFFERBER: That's, | guess, ny point there.

MR. EASTMAN. Thank you. Those were ny questions.

MR. SHI PPELHOUTE: So before you put the
i nvestnment into the WPC80 processing facility what were you
doing with your whey and what woul d have been the inpact to
your conpany had you not done that?

MR. HOFFERBER: So not to go on for too |ong but
prior to 2007 as that initial variable whey factor that was
instituted, I don't know, back in '03, | think. At that
time we were roller drying and maki ng popcorn ani mal feed
whey. This product we were selling at sonething |ike 80

percent of the Mostly market for dry whey plus we were
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paying the freight to ship it to the Mdwest; so it was
definitely a whey di sposal expense being feathered back into
t he cheese side.

As we were close to being put out of business in
2007 when the dry market went north and everything, you
know, just went south for all of us, at that point in tine
we went to a fixed whey factor, which as far as we're
concerned as a snaller cheese maker, pretty much saved us.
We recovered fromthat, becane, you know. Again as | said,
we had sone nore profitable years than we had had in 2006
And we were continuing to nake the ani mal feed whey once we
were down to a very -- sonebody said earlier, kind of a base
| evel cost of the whey stream

And back in the '07 hearing what was testified to
there by us and others was what had conme out of Wsconsin's
John Umhoefer regarding $0.10 ki nd of a value of the
protein, where we had settled on a $0.25 nunber in the 2007
hearing. The Decenber 1 fixed factor came out at $0. 25.
There was even testinony the val ue shoul d have been $0. 10.

So if we really want to tal k about the val ue of
the whey streamlet's talk about what's it worth in its raw
state when it cones off the cheese plant. Because everybody
is making so many different kinds of things, howin the
worl d can you pick one product to try and price everything

back into the mlk fromthat?
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Wi ch has, again, been our repeated testinony at
this thing. Just knock the price down, let us go out and
figure it out based on true end-product val ue what that
particul ar whey streamis worth at that cheese plant. For
Caci que, you know, they're saying they're selling it off as
animal feed. How are they going to achieve the sane sort of
val ue that we theoretically would be getting?

O to go back to your question, the base nodel
that we had to decide to build the whey plant presuned a $3
m ni mum price for WPC80. And now we're getting the nunbers
we're getting and we're getting sl aughtered.

That was probably nore information than your
guestion presuned.

MR. SHI PPELHOUTE: No, that's great, thank you.

MR. HOFFERBER: But there you go.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: Ms. Tayl or.

Ms. Taylor, could you please state your full nane,
spel |l your last nanme and state your affiliation for the
record, please.

M5. TAYLOR Certainly. It's Sue Taylor, T-A-Y-L-
OR and I'mw th Leprino Foods, L-E-P-R-I-N O Foods.

Wher eupon,
SUE TAYLOR
Was duly sworn.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: Do you have any witten
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statenents or other things you would like entered into the
record?

M5. TAYLOR Yes | do; | have two docunents that |
have distributed to each of you. The first one is titled
"Statement of Sue M Taylor" and is dated April 11th, 2016
and the second is the post-hearing brief for the Federal
M| k Marketing Order hearing for California.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: The witten testinony of
Ms. Taylor will be Exhibit nunber 53.

(Exhibit 53 was entered into the record.)

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: And you nay proceed.

M5. TAYLOR  Thank you. | am Sue Taylor, Vice
President of Dairy Economi cs and Policy for Leprino Foods
Conmpany. Leprino operates nine nozzarella plants in the
United States. Three of these are |located in California,
two in Lenoore and one in Tracy. Wey fromour California
plants is processed into protein concentrates and | actose.
Concentrated retentate fromone of the plants is shipped to
anot her of our California plants for final processing. The
other two plants fully process both the retentate and
perneate. W are one of the |argest dairy manufacturers in
California, purchasing well over 10 percent of the mlk
produced in the state.

| amtestifying today in support of the Dairy

Institute of California s proposal for whey valuation in the
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Class 4b formula. | fully support Dr. Bill Schiek's
testinmony presented at this hearing. This proposal
appropriately updates the whey factor in the Cass 4b
formul a based upon the value for liquid concentrated whey
priced relative to the Whey Protein Concentrate-34 narket,
t he nost comon basis for value creation by cheese plants
that do not have the scale to nake full whey processing
economcally feasible. It reflects recent advances made by
sonme of those cheesemakers and i ncreases the Class 4b price
consistent with those advances.

| amalso testifying today in opposition to the
Class 4b formul a whey val uati on proposed by Western United
Dai rymen, California Dairy Canpaign and M|k Producers
Council. The Western United et al. proposal is even nore
onerous than the policy that existed prior to Decenber 2007.
The pre-Decenber 2007 val uation contributed to the closure
of several proprietary cheese plants, producer paynent
defaults and eventual sale of a cheese conpany, and
di vestiture of some cheese plants by cooperatives. The
Western United et al. proposal values whey at $0.40 to $0.58
per hundredwei ght hi gher than the pre-Decenber 2007
val uati on and does not provide for any structural reform
that would allow the outcone to be any different than
exi sted under the pre-Decenber 2007 hearing. This proposed

whey factor exceeds the Federal O der whey val uation,
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di sregardi ng the fundanmental |ocation value of mlk rel ated
to proximty to market and ignoring the significant
di fference in how CDFA and Federal Orders apply the price to
cheese m | k.

Roughly ten nont hs have passed since the | ast CDFA
Class 4b hearing. During that tinme, given the nine week
USDA Federal M Ik Marketing Order hearing, much has been
debated but little has changed in a neaningful way relative
to the ability to extract value fromwhey in the
mar ket pl ace. In fact, the ability of cheese manufacturers
to capture value in the marketpl ace has becone nore
chal I engi ng, given a global surplus of mlk that has
pressured gl obal cheese prices below US prices. Although US
prices for skimmlk powder have been pressured down to
gl obal |evels, cheese prices have renai ned above gl obal
| evel s. Cheese and whey exports each declined by 14 percent
in 2015. Cheese exports are down another 13 percent year-
to-date through February of this year. Although these
trends will eventually reverse thenselves, this decline in
exports and downward price pressure is likely to | ast over a
nor e extended period than recent downturns due to structural
i ssues contributing to the gl obal inbalance. The current
pain is shared across the supply chain and m |k production
in California has al so declined as drought inpacts on water

and feed availability and costs take their toll on the
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producer sector.

Largely, the key policy-shaping factors remain the
sanme and are consistent with my June 3, 2015 testinony and
ny Federal Order hearing testinony and post-hearing brief,
attached for reference.

Specifically, whey valuation in a regulatory
context remai ns chal |l engi ng.

1. Whey processing is highly capital intensive and
is not economcally viable on a small to nmedium scal e basi s.

2. Wth whey driving up regulated m ni muns by over
$3 per hundredwei ght at times in 2007, plants w thout
processi ng capacity struggled and sone were shuttered. The
financial stress was reflected in sonme plant closures, three
cheese plants being placed on the ineligible |ist for the
Producer Security Trust Fund, and the sale of a proprietary
cheese conpany.

3. It was clear that CDFA had overvalued mlk to
cheesemakers before the Decenber 2007 fornmula change due to
the crisis anongst cheesemakers just noted, in conbination
with the stimulation of increased m |k production that |ed
to disorderly marketing conditions, including mlk being
sold out-of-state, to calf ranches and being di sposed of in
manur e | agoons.

4. The table on page 6 of CDFA s "Background

Mat eri al s" nade avail able for this hearing shows that only
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12 of the 59 cheese plants in California have the ability to
process at |least a portion of their whey. These 12 plants
i ncl ude processors who only have concentration capacity and
cannot produce a finished dry product.

5. Testinony at USDA's California Federal Oder
heari ng, recapped on pages 12 to 21 in the attached post-
hearing brief, confirms that:

a. Several snmall/nmedium size cheese producers -
Caci que, Marquez Brothers, Farndale, Pacific Gold - do not
have the ability to fully process the whey stream

b. Several |arge cheese producers - Leprino,
Saputo - transport |iquid whey |ong distances for final
pr ocessi ng.

c. Scale barriers to whey processing are not
unique to California cheese makers. Prelimnary results
froma survey of cheese makers across the country conducted
by Dr. Mark Stephenson of the University of Wsconsin were
consistent wwth California s whey processing chall enges.
Conpl eted survey results from 62 cheese plants showed that:

"Not surprisingly, all of the plants

processing | ess than 100, 000 pound of m |k per day
are selling or disposing of all of their whey.
Fifteen percent of plants processing from 100, 000
to 2 mllion pounds of m |k per day process a

portion of their whey into sone form of product
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for sale. Eighty-three percent of plants
processing nore than 2 mllion pounds of mlk per
day are processing sone or all of their whey into
a final product for sale. O the plants not
processing a final product, about 15 percent are
di sposi ng of whey by | and spreading or fed to

| ocal livestock. All plants disposing of whey

i ncur the hauling cost but sone also pay to

di spose of the whey beyond the cost of hauling.
The average di stance to di spose of whey was about
85 mles although some plants had options as cl ose
as 20 mles. The remaining plants not processing
a final product are selling or transferring whey
in various forns to another plant. These plants
averaged about 65 mles to the receiving
destination but the range was from2 to 250
mles."

d. This problemexists throughout the country,
even in Wsconsin where the density of cheese plants has
facilitated whey consolidation. Two Wsconsin cheese
makers, Steve Buhol zer of Klondi ke Cheese and Steve Stettler
of Decatur Dairy, testified at the Federal O der hearing.
Klondi ke ultrafilters the whey streamto 34 percent protein
and utilizes reverse osnbpsis to concentrate it prior to

shi pping. The whey nmust be comm ngled with | arger vol unes
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of other whey given its acid | evel associated with Feta
production. Klondike's whey revenue fell $0.65 per
hundr edwei ght m |k short of the Cass Ill valuation in 2014.
Decatur is |located close to a whey processor willing to
accept warm whey. Their returns were $0.71 per
hundr edwei ght bel ow t he Federal Order Class Il assunption
-- whey assunption in 2014 and $0. 0676 bel ow year-to-date
t hrough Septenber 2015. The Wsconsin Cheese Makers
Associ ation responded to USDA's call for comments on snal
busi ness inpacts in early 2015 with conments outlining the
chal I enges for snmall cheesenakers to achieve the whey
returns assuned in the Federal Order Class Il price.
W sconsin's higher |ocation value of mlk due to its closer
proximty to the |large demand centers of the East provide a
partial offset to the whey overvaluation, but it does not
negate the fact that the Cass Ill fornula overval ues whey.
Dairy Institute' s Proposal Val ues Whey Most
Appropriately
The Dairy Institute proposal to val ue the whey
portion of the Class 4b mlk formula relative to its liquid
whey val ue repl aces the existing sweet whey factor with a
nore rel evant factor for today's marketplace. It reflects
recent advances that have facilitated investnent in
concentration capacity by some cheesemakers that did not

previously have it and increases the C ass 4b price
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consi stent with those advances.

The WPC34 price index is the nost common reference
used for the sale of liquid concentrated whey by cheese
pl ants that do not have the scale to make full whey
processi ng econom cally feasible. As nmany w tnesses
testified at this hearing, the prices received for that
liquid whey are discounted to reflect that the liquid
concentrated whey requires additional processing with highly
speci alized and capital intensive equipnment in order to
produce a full value product. The Dairy Institute proposal
reflects a survey of cheese plants that was corroborated by
i ndustry consultants working with many of the cheesemakers
with insufficient capacity to have econom cal ly viabl e whey
processi ng operations produci ng dry whey.

The Dairy Institute proposal appropriately caps
the whey contribution in the Cass 4b fornula at $1.50, in
recognition of the Class 4b mlk that is not even recovering
a liquid whey value. The viability of sone of those plants
will likely be threatened by the increased cost burden
related to a product that they cannot, even under best
managenent practices, extract a value from

Western United et al. Proposal Was Proven
Untenable in its Less Onerous Version

The Western United proposal attributes nore val ue

to whey than the Cass 4b formula did before Decenber 2007
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when overvaluation led to the financial difficulties and

cl osure of cheese plants, three cheese plants being placed
on the ineligible list for the Producer Security Trust Fund
for failure to pay tinely, and the sale of a proprietary
cheese conpany referenced above. |In fact, the proposal even
val ues whey at a level as nuch as $.12 per hundredwei ght

m |k higher than it is valued in the Federal Orders, a

regul atory structure for which participation is voluntary
for cheesenakers. Even with the safety valve that is

provi ded t hrough the voluntary application of the Federal
Orders to cheesemakers, the | evel established in the Federal
Order Cass Il formula is problematic.

It is not difficult to anticipate the damage that
woul d be done if the Western United et al. proposal is
adopted. The proposal once again sets up the scenario of
signals to producers to increase mlk production while
signaling to cheesemakers to reduce nmanufacturing capacity.
Based upon history, that signal will be once again
mani fested in increased bankruptcies, plant closures and a
shift in manufacturing volune from California to other
states by nultistate operators. The proposal would set up a
scenario in which even those of us with the scale and
capability to econom cally process whey woul d be better off
shifting production. 1In addition to our cheese making

assets, we have invested hundreds of mllions of dollars in
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capital to produce specialized whey products in our
California plants and continue to need to reinvest in order
to maintain markets in a highly dynam c market pl ace.

Adoption of the proposal would, over the |ong
term result in a loss of reinvestnent in California
facilities and their eventual obsol escence and cl osure.

The Current Cl ass 4b Fornul a Overval ues Cheese

The Departnent's March 8 Notice of Hearing |limted
this hearing to a tenporary or permanent alteration of the
whey factor in the Class 4b fornmula, elimnating the
opportunity to review the Cass 4b fornula nore
holistically. The proposals being considered today conform
to the restrictions outlined in the Notice. However, any
deci sion the Departnment makes fromthis hearing should not
be done wi thout consideration of the inplications of the
cl ear overval uation of the cheese conponent of the fornula
based upon the Departnment’'s own cost and "prices received"
data. The current nake all owance of $0.1988 per pound
cheese is $0.0367 per pound cheese bel ow t he Departnent's
cost study published in Decenber 2015. Additionally, the
f.o.b. factor of -$0.0252 is slightly understated based upon
the Departnent price data released in October 2011 covering
sal es from Sept enber 2009 through August 11. That data
showed a deteriorating trend with a $0.0237 cent discount to

the CME in the first 12 nonths and a $0. 0281 di scount in the
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second 12 nonths. G ving the benefit of the doubt and using
t he $0. 0259 cent averaged conbined with the updated cost
data i ndicates that the O ass 4b cheese value is $0.38 per
hundr edwei ght m | k higher than is being achi eved by
California cheddar plants. This overval uation nakes upward
adjustnents in the whey factor an even greater threat to the
viability of cheese manufacturing assets in California. It
is critical that the Departnent make a decision that is
econom cally sound in this broader context.

Concl usi on

M| k used for manufacturing, whether for cheeses
or for butter and dry mlks, is the primary method for
California diary farners to market the volunme of m |k that
i s produced beyond the higher valued and nore perishable
Class 1, 2 and 3 products. The utilization of nearly 80
percent of California's mlk production in C asses 4a and 4b
hi ghlights the inportance of these manufacturing outlets in
mar keting California's mlk production. Because of the
critical role that Cdass 4 products play in marketing farm
m | k beyond the borders of California, it is crucial that
the price formulas remain market-oriented, reflecting the
val ues of California-manufactured products.

The policy chall enges associated with
incorporating an explicit whey factor tied directly to

mar ket novenents in a mninmumregulated mlk price that
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obl i gat es busi nesses that may not have a vi abl e mechani sm

t hrough which to recover the whey value are no | ess today
than in 2007. The Departnment nust be careful not to
recreate the financially tenuous environnent that existed in
2007 and j eopardi zed both cheese processors and the outl et

t hey provide for California-produced mlKk.

The Dairy Institute of California proposal does
t he best job of bal ancing producer interest and market
realities. The Departnment should accept Dairy Institute's
proposal and reject the Western United proposal and the
entire industry should dedicate its energy and efforts
toward |l onger termpolicy refornms that will benefit al
sectors, including producers.

Thank you for your tine and consideration. |
respectfully request permssion to file a post-hearing
brief.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: Your request to file a
post-hearing brief is granted.

Questions fromthe panel ?

MR. EASTMAN. | guess I'll go first; | have a
coupl e of questions. On the second page of your testinony
on bullet point nunber five you highlight sonme pages that
confirmwhat a few California cheese processors are doing
with their whey stream Your post-hearing brief for the

federal order matter, did you submt that primarily just for
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that citation or are there other parts that you think would
be applicable to our matter here today? O it just an
overall general nmanifesto of how you view sort of the
California industry, maybe?

M5. TAYLOR | think it provides sone good,
broader context on the Class Ill formula. But the pages
that | called out, pages 12 through 21, are specific to the
whey factor so nost specific to the matters at this hearing.

MR. EASTMAN. Perfect, thank you.

And then on sub-bullet B, | guess. No, on A [|I'm
sorry. You nention that those entities don't have the
ability to fully process their whey stream \hat is your
definition or what do you nean by "fully process the whey
streanf? Wat do you need to do to fully process it?

M5. TAYLOR It would be processing into finished
dry product the entire whey stream so a conbination of both
t he whey proteins and the carbohydrates. So sonme of those
are producing only liquid concentrated whey, sone are
produci ng fini shed WPC80, but not doing anything with the
carbohydrate stream And the costs associated with
di sposi ng of that carbohydrate stream are degrading their
returns fromthe 80.

MR EASTMAN: That's all | had.

MR. SHI PPELHOUTE: So when we put the current

table into the market order for August there was a price
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increase for the nonth of August. How did that affect your
conpany? Wre you able to absorb that, did you pass it on
to your custonmers? And if you passed it on to custoners did
you do it on the cheese side, the whey side? |If you could
el abor at e.

M5. TAYLOR: W, concurrent with the CDFA deci sion
i npl enentation, did go to custoners, certain custonmers. W
did seek a premium adjustnent. | would say, as | have
al ways said, that the conpetitiveness of the national
mar ket pl ace di sci plines the passing on of costs like that to
custonmers and | think that our conclusion, in fact, is that
remai ns the case. W were successful in passing on a
prem um adj ust nent with some custoners where, quite frankly,
we had underval ued the cheese. W had expanded our capacity
in Colorado and had, to sonme extent, bought sonme sal es
t hrough aggressive pricing. And in that case where we were
pricing probably below the overall marketplace we were
successful in increasing our premuns. But we have al so
| ost sone volune in that attenpt and in nany cases we are
not able to pass on any of that cost.

MR. SHI PPELHOUTE: And so those custoners you went
to were your cheese custonmers not your whey custoners?

M5. TAYLOR That's correct.

MR SHI PPELHOUTE: That's all | had.

MR. MONSON: Ms. Taylor, on the top of page 2 you
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tal k about export markets in decline and downward price
pressure and that's likely to |last |onger due to structural
i ssues. Can you clarify what you neant by that?

M5. TAYLOR: Sure. On the denmand side the Russian
enbargo has di splaced trenendous volunes fromthe EU.  They
are normally cheese volunes that are normally exported into
Russia. Although that is schedul ed through this August
there are very few people who think that it will be lifted
until 2018 at the earliest. And there is also a question of
whet her once they lift the enbargo the demand will resune to
the pre-enbargo | evel s because of damage that's occurred
wi thin the Russian econony itself.

The other structural issues, nostly in New Zeal and
and in the EU. The New Zeal and dairy industry with the high
profitability that's come in recent years has seen a | ot of
investnent and that investnment has cone into -- has
stinmul ated the devel opnment of nore specialized dairy assets
than what they ordinarily would have and nore conpl ex
ownership structures, so we are not seeing the supply
retraction that you ordinarily would expect from New
Zeal and, which has usually been quite quick to react to
profitability.

The EU situation is related to the elimnation of
t he production quotas in March of 2015. And simlarly there

has been a ot of new investnent in dairy farm
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infrastructure and given that new investnent it's a little
stickier. Even though a |ot of those fol ks are underwater
it"'s alittle stickier in terns of getting the supply
response and the retraction that you woul d expect just
because they're concerned about debt servicing.

MR. MONSON: Thank you. That's all | have.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: Thank you for your
t esti nony.

M5. TAYLOR  Thank you.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: M. Vandenheuvel .

M . Vandenheuvel, will you please state your ful
name, spell your last name and state your affiliation for
the record, please.

MR. VANDENHEUVEL: The full name is Rob
Vandenheuvel, V-A-N-D-E-N-HE-U-V-E-L, and I'"'mwith MIK
Producers Counci |l .

Wher eupon,
ROB VANDENHEUVEL
Was duly sworn.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: Do you have any witten
statenents or other things you would like entered into the
record?

MR. VANDENHEUVEL: | do, the witten testinony I
j ust handed you.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: Thank you.
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M. Vandenheuvel's witten statenent will be Exhibit nunber
54.

(Exhibit 54 was entered into the record.)

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: You may proceed, please.

MR. VANDENHEUVEL: 1'd ask for your indul gence; |
have about a one hour presentation. |'m kidding.

(Laughter.)

MR. VANDENHEUVEL: 1'1l nove through this quickly,
as quickly as | can.

Hearing O ficer and Menbers of the Panel, ny nane
i s Rob Vandenheuvel, | amwth M|k Producers Council. W
are a non-profit trade association with office locations in
Ontario, Bakersfield and Turlock, California, representing a
vol untary menbership of dairy famlies throughout the State
of California. M testinony today is based on positions
adopted by the MPC Board of Directors.

Qur dairy famlies appreciate the Secretary
calling this hearing on her authority under the California
Food and Ag Code, hereafter called the Code. W believe the
testinmony we are about to give, as well as the testinony of
t he ot her producer groups and cooperatives, will provide
anpl e evidence that a pernmanent nodification to the Cass 4b
monthly mlk price calculation is warranted.

Before going into the details of the producer-

sponsored proposal, the Hearing Notice published by CDFA
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asked that we address, "at a mninmm the economc
conditions that woul d support extending the effective date
of the tenmporary dry whey scale or adjustnent to either the
tenporary or permanent dry whey scal es contained therein.”

The nost | ogical place to start is an anal ysis of
CDFA' s published "Cost of Production,” conpared to the
average prices paid for mlk throughout the state. In fact,
as referenced in CDFA s Notice of Hearing, Section 62062 of
the Code specifically directs the Secretary to consider the
"reasonabl eness and econom ¢ soundness” of California' s mlKk
prices - the conbined inconme fromall classes - in relation
to the cost of producing and marketing that mlk. It's
worth noting that Section 62062 of the Code goes on to
specifically note that, "In determ ning the costs, the
Secretary (sic) shall consider the cost of managenent and a
reasonabl e return on necessary investnent."

The tabl e bel ow di spl ays the statew de cost of
production for the past eight years as well as the average
m |k prices received, as published by CDFA s Cost of
Production Unit. And these nunbers are just reorganizing
nunbers that are from CDFA's own data that you see there.
Cost of Production, that's statewide, and the MIlk Price
Received fromthat sane report.

The next table applies these figures to a sanple

dairy with 1,000 m |k cows, producing an average of 70
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pounds per m |k per cow per day. And so all that table is
there is applying the table fromthe page before to that
production profile. So you take the per hundredwei ght and
you get a Gain or a Loss Total for each of those years, with
a Cunul ative 8-Year Total of over $2.2 million |ost.

Plotting these data points on a line chart gives
us a glinpse into what dairy farmng in California has been
i ke the past eight years. You can see that |ine graph
there showi ng a steep collapse in 2009, sone smal
recoveries in '11 and '14 but not really making up ground
fromwhat we lost there in '09.

As this chart based on CDFA' s data clearly
denonstrates, while 2014 was by all neasures a year of
strong m Ik prices that exceeded the cost of producing that
mlk, in the context of the past several years we are still
very much an industry trying to recover.

Some might point to the general US dairy market
trends as a source of the volatility in producer
profitability over the past several years. Wiile there is
certainly a cyclical nature at play generally in the US
dairy industry, California's dairy famlies have been
consistently realizing lower mlk prices than our out-of -
state col |l eagues. CDFA maintains data on mail box mlk
prices in California conpared to other select regions of the

country and below is a sunmary of that conparison
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| believe that data was reported earlier by
M. Hollon as well but this is 2015 Miilbox MIk Price
conpari son between California and the other regions that
CDFA nonitors

As denonstrated by this information, the current
state of California dairy famlies isn't sinply a story of a
national trend downward, but rather a story of a significant
di sadvantage to our out-of-state conpetition. Wen
conpeting with dairy industries in other states, whether
that be for animals or for feed, our California producers
are at a significantly weaker relative position than our
conpetition. In addition to price alone, another strong
i ndicator of this is the conparison of California's
production growth conpared to ot her states.

And this is very consistent, that table there,
wi th previous data you' ve seen showi ng that California has
really struggled in terms of our m |k production grow h.
There has really been no growh. W produced |less in 2015
than we did in 2008 while the rest of the United States
continued to see grow h cumnul atively.

The past 15 nonths has been a period of
particularly strong downward production trends. And we've
heard about that 15 strai ght nonths of year-over-year
declines in mlk production here. And | point to that just

as further evidence of the financial inpact. W believe
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this is a direct result of the many years of financial
stress being on dairies here -- applied to California
dairies in the previous tables.

A Reasonabl e and Sound Econonic Rel ationship with
the Federal MIk Marketing Order Prices

As has been referenced many tines in previous
heari ngs before this panel, producers interpret Section
62062 of the Code as a clear directive that CDFA nust
establish "nmethods or fornulas" that shall be "reasonably
calculated to result in prices that are in a reasonable and
sound econom c relationship with the national val ue of
manufactured m |k products.” While MIk Producers Counci
certainly continues to believe this |egal standard exists in
CDFA' s task of establishing our mninumm Ik prices, it is
worth noting that there is a real-world logic to that
directive as well, beyond just being a | egal requirenent.

California producers do not operate on an island.
We operate within the context of a national, and
increasingly international, industry. The prices we are
paid for our mlk are in large part affected by the
cunmul ati ve decisions of tens of thousands of dairies
t hroughout the US, not to nention the overseas conpetition
as well. Further, the dairy commodity markets on which we
rely on in setting our regulated mlk prices are national

mar ket s, which have been extrenely volatile in the past
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decade and show no signs of slow ng down.

California producers have been at a distinct
di sadvant age through that volatility as our mail box mlKk
pri ces have consistently | agged bel ow t hat of our conpeting
dairy producers in the rest of the country. In short,
California's mlk price "peaks" have been smaller and our
"val | eys" deeper than that of our out-of-state conpetition.

Looki ng at our state's m |k producers as a whol e,
this reality has neant two things: 1) Wien California
producers are | osing noney, often producers in other parts
of the country are not, resulting in financial stress on
California producers but no reasonable hope for a tinely
nati onal supply response to | ow operating nmargins; and 2)
When California producers are benefiting from higher prices,
such as 2014, we are still falling behind nost of the
producers around the country in our relative position as
t hey are experiencing even higher margins, better preparing
them for any future financial challenges.

The point is that while the Legislature has given
CDFA and the Secretary significant discretion in
establishing regulated m |k prices, they recognized the risk
of putting our state's producers at a di sadvantage to our
out-of -state conpetition, and specifically included a
directive in the Code to maintain a "reasonable and sound

econonmic rel ationship.™
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The producer proposal put forth for this hearing
is based on our premse that: 1) the Legislature was correct
in prioritizing that reasonable relationship in establishing
our regulated mlk prices; and 2) that the nonthly m ni mum
prices used by the 10 current Federal M|k Marketing O ders
provi des us with the best benchmark avail able in determ ning
the representative value for significant volunes of mlk
sol d around the country.

The Producer Proposal

G ven all the discussion above, MPC would have
certainly liked to present a pernmanent proposal that woul d
result in a Cass 4b price equal to the nonthly Federal MKk
Mar keting Order Class Il price. However, given the
specific limtations included in the hearing notice that al
proposal s address only the whey-related cal culations in the
formula, we testify today in full support of the joint
proposal submtted by California Dairy Canpai gn, Wstern
United Dairynmen and ourselves. Testinony has already been
provi ded earlier today by Annie AcMody of Western United
Dai rynmen, delving into the details of this unified producer
proposal. Therefore, | would sinply echo Ms. AcMoody's
comments with regard to those details.

As for the inpacts the proposal woul d have had on
California's prices, | would refer to the Summary Anal ysi s

of Estimated I npacts of the Alternative Proposals on
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California Class and Pool Prices published by CDFA in
preparation for this hearing. Table 1 of that analysis
notes that under the producer proposal, average C ass 4b
prices over the past five years would have been $1. 38 per
hundr edwei ght hi gher than under the current pernmanent whey
scale. Along the Iines of ny earlier testinony about the
rel ati onship between California's Cass 4b price and the
Federal Order Class Il price, Table 2 indicates that under
t he producer proposal California' s 4b price would have
averaged $0.46 per hundredwei ght bel ow the Federal Order
Class IIl price. This CDFA data is consistent with our own
i nternal analysis, which shows that addressing only the
whey-rel ated portions of the formula would continue to
result in a lower Class 4b price, relative to the Federa
Order Cass Il price, albeit a nuch snmaller difference than
we have seen in recent years.

And that's a point that really needs to be
anplified. That CDFA s analysis, our own internal analysis,
it's clear that even under the producer proposal the
regul ated price -- the processors buy mlk. They don't buy
whey, they don't buy cheese, they buy mlk. And the
regul ated price they pay for that m |k under the producer
proposal would be a | ower regulated price than the Federal
Order Cass Il price. Wen | hear things like, the

producer proposal would cross the line of rational econom cs
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and sonme of the other extrene talk that we've heard today
that this producer proposal is sone sort of Armageddon for
our cheese maki ng processors here in the state. There is
apparently no recognition that we, even under the producer
proposal, no one has advocated today on the producer side
for a price above or even equal to the Federal Order d ass
1l price. There would continue to be a discount regardless
of whether that producer proposal was put in place.

The Dairy Institute Proposal

In addition to the unified producer proposal, MPC
has had an opportunity to review and anal yze the proposal
submtted by the Dairy Institute of California on behal f of
the dairy manufacturers they represent. W are opposed to
this proposal for two primary reasons: 1) W believe there
are significant problens associated with using WPC34 as an
"end product” in the Cass 4b mlk price calculation; and
2) The real-world inpact of the DI C proposal falls
significantly short of what producers believe is
appropri at e.

First, the use of WPC34. The DIC proposal ainms to
utilize the market value of Whey Protein Concentrate 34%in
calculating the Class 4b price. This concept was proposed
in the |ast hearing before this panel and rejected due to
significant questions regarding its inplenmentation. MPC

woul d echo the previous panel's position rejecting the idea
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of using WPC34 as the surrogate price in the Cass 4b
calculation. Wiile all the concerns raised by the Panel
Report were certainly valid, the nost significant reason for
MPC s objection is the potential it creates for added
volatility in the relationship between California' s C ass 4b
price and the benchmark Federal Order Class Il price.

In addition it is also worth noting that enbedded
inthe DOC s proposal is the theory that WPC34 is a better
surrogat e because, quote, and this is fromthe proposal:
"The whey scale currently used in the Cass 4b formula ..
is based on dry whey prices and costs that are no | onger
representative of the whey val ues received by cheese plants
operating in California.” End quote. Wthout conceding
that point | would note that there is no requirenment that
the end products within the California m ninumprice
formul as be representative or even close to the market
prices received by California' s manufacturers. | would
poi nt out that according to COFA's Dairy Information
Bul I etin, cheddar cheese made up only 15 percent of al
cheese manufactured in California in 2015, and that included
all types of packaging, from 40 pound bl ocks to be sold at
bul k prices to individually packaged finished products sold
at higher prices per pound. Mozzarella actually nade up
nearly 59 percent of all cheese manufactured in California

| ast year. So under that DIC s logic in their proposal, is
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it still appropriate to use 40 pound bl ocks of cheddar
cheese sold in 40,000 pound lots at the Chicago Mercantile
Exchange as the "end product” in the Cass 4b fornmula when a
majority of the actual cheese being produced is nozzarell a,
a hi gher-val ued product with significantly nore noisture,
resulting in higher yields of cheese per 100 pounds of m | Kk?
That' s obviously outside the scope of this hearing but it's
a question worth asking in the context of DIC s supporting
statenents for their proposal

Second, the analysis of DIC s inmpact. CDFA s own
anal ysis of the inpact that the two proposals woul d have had
on California mlk prices over the past five years was very
telling. Wen conpared to the current permanent whey scal e,
the DI C proposal would have resulted in a | ower Cass 4b and
Overbase m |k price over the past year. This at a tinme when
California producers were henorrhaging mlk production and
experienci ng year-over-year production declines for 15
straight nmonths. Further, even in previous years, the
i ncreases over the permanent whey scal e woul d have been
nodest, leaving California's Cass 4b prices nore than $1.50
per hundredwei ght on average bel ow the Federal Order C ass
Il price.

In addition, while CDFA's anal ysis conpared this
proposal to the current pernmanent whey scale, | also took

the opportunity to conpare it to the current tenporary whey
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scale. Over the past five years from March 2011 to February
2016, the DI C woul d have reduced the Cass 4b price by $0.65
per hundredwei ght when conpared to the current tenporary
whey scal e.

To put it bluntly, we are a state that is in the
process of bleeding off its valuable m |k producing
investment - reducing mlk supplies that are essential to
t he continued success of DIC s own nenbers - and any
proposal that attenpts to structurally reduce our regul ated
m |k prices beyond today's fornulas should be firmy
rej ect ed.

I n conclusion: The financial challenges facing
California's dairy famlies are well-docunented, backed up
by CDFA's own data and now clearly resulting in significant
reductions in mlk production. 1In a State M|k Marketing
Order that was set up to "enable the dairy industry, with
the aid of the state, to ... bring about and naintain a
reasonabl e anmount of stability and prosperity in the
production of market mlk", there is anple evidence that a
significant upward pricing adjustnment fromthe current
per mmnent whey scale is justified. W greatly appreciate
Secretary Ross' initiative in calling this hearing and we
encourage both the Secretary and the Hearing Panel to
strongly consider the joint producer proposal in

establishing the whey portion of the Cass 4b formnul a.
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And before | close, because | have 3 m nutes and
30 seconds, | wanted to read an excerpt here froma Hoard's
Dai ryman editorial. And take it with a grain of salt, it is
an editorial so it is not a factual -based article, but it's
an accounting of a neeting that the editors had recently
attended. And | read this because as | listened to
testinmony today - and we all conme here arned with the best
data that supports our cause - it is worth noting that that
doesn't always reflect the discussions that happen outside
of this room
"Federal Orders Have Not | npeded Dairy Sal es”
"It was refreshing to hear a global dairy
processor suggest that Federal M Ik Marketing
Orders and the associ ated regul ati ons have not
prevented his conpany fromgrowing in the United
States. This dialogue took place as fellow dairy
processors continued to harp on federal mlKk
pricing rules as a market inpedinment during the
| argest gathering of North American dairy
manuf acturers. ™"
"Granted, Lino Saputo, CEO of Saputo Inc.
has a far different perspective fromhis Anerican
counterparts. Based in Canada, Federal Mk
Mar keti ng Orders appear nore |ike a single strand

of a chain conpared to Canada's supply managenent
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systemthat resenbles a nmuch stronger chain-1link
fence. "It's regulatory and market access to mlk

that is key to us,"” Saputo said, when discussing
where his fam |y business m ght pursue its next
dairy plant acquisition.”

"When stating that access to mlk is key to
hi s grow ng busi ness, Saputo and his 75-year-old
conpany back up that statenment with action
Starting in 1980, Saputo acquired its first two US
plants. Since then that nunber has grown to 24,
now outranki ng the conpany's total in Canada.

That |ist includes Stella Foods, Treasure Cave,
Nauvoo, the Land O Lakes West Coast industria
cheese business, Fairnount Cheese Hol di ngs and

Mor ni ngst ar Foods. The bol dest nove took place in
2008 when Saputo purchased controlling interest in
the Alto Dairy Cooperative, the nation's 19th

| ar gest farnmer-owned busi ness."”

"To say the | east, Saputo has repeatedly
voted with its wallet, reconfirmng that the USis
a place where the conpany can grow and mar ket
regulation is not a hindrance. "Qur job is to be

t he best processor,"” said Saputo of his
organi zation's focus. "Qur job is not to change

regul ations."
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And the editorial goes on but it's nostly about
Fairlife after that. | bring that up because |I think we all
get very confortable with our own rhetoric about the
barriers to gromh. |'ve heard nunerous tinmes today that if
t he producer proposal is put in place it will be the end of
sone small to md-sized cheese manufacturers.

And | think it's inportant to take all of this
rhetoric in context and | ook at the facts, which is why I
brought up the fact that even under the producer proposal
there would be a | ower regulated mlk price.

You could parse it out on the whey factor, the
cheese conmponent, the make all owance, whatever. The end
resulting, regulated mlk price that a plant has to pay when
you nake cheese in California would be | ower under the
producer proposal than in the federal order system That's
an inportant fact.

So with eight seconds remaining | thank you for
the opportunity to testify, happy to answer any questions
and request the opportunity to submt a post-hearing brief.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: Your request to submt a
post-hearing brief is granted.

Questions fromthe panel ?

MR. EASTMAN. Wul d you, just for the ease of
handling the information, do you want to include in your

post-hearing brief what you read or the portion of that
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article that dealt with that issue.

MR, VANDENHEUVEL: Happy to, yes.

MR. EASTMAN. WaAs there any reason you didn't
include that in your testinmony or it just didn't nake it in?

MR. VANDENHEUVEL: | didn't think about it until
was sitting here.

MR. EASTMAN. Hopefully there's not a huge
copyright issue or sonething.

MR. VANDENHEUVEL: | already put it in our
newsl etter with perm ssion fromHoard' s Dairyman so |'ve
gotten their perm ssion to use that for our use.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: Thank you for your
t esti nony.

MR. VANDENHEUVEL: The beauty of going | ast,
you're worn out.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SUTHER: | would like to rem nd
you that the post-hearing briefs will be due by 4:00 p.m on
Monday, April 18th.

| s there anyone who has not testified who w shes
to do so at this tine?

Not seeing anyone else. All persons present and
desiring to testify have done so and no additional evidence
to be presented, this hearing is now closed at 5:54 p.m on
April 11th, 2016. W are off the record.

(The public hearing adjourned at 5:54 p.m)
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